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Combined Ratio”

Direct Premiums Written
(% millions)

Return on Equity

Net Income
{$ millions)

s 3905 | s 3576
$ 3840 | 53365 8 I
$ 4,446 § 73781 83015 :
s 2| s 64 s asil .
S 28931 °8.°2060° “§ 9891 .
§ 127] .8 256 5. 483
42% | % -_--328%m
$63% | 56.6% . 681% .
297% | . 294% .- 300% "
86.0% |  86:0% 98.1% - -
31'.5% L 409% o 16.5%:




Chairman’s Message

Our Strétégy s Working -

ING Canada proved its proficiency at
implementing its growth strategy in 2005,
leading to another year of record results.

- The COmpany’s growth strategy, overseen by |
the Board of Directors, has remained consisfeﬁt
over several years. It is to acquire and build upon
ING Canada’s scale advantage as the country’s
leading provider of property and casualty insurance,
through both organic growth and acquisitions.
‘This size advantage is in turn applied in several key
ways to enhance the quality of the Company’s
operaiions and th? value it extends to customers.

By virtue of the growth in the scale of its o
operatioﬁs; ING Canada has developed high levels
of skill and expertise in risk assessment and
management across the country. This knowledge
translates into sophisticated application of pricing
and underwriting, which helps ensure that .
products are priced fairly for consumers as well
as profitably for ING Canada and its shareholders.
Scale is also used to advantage in the timely
management of claims and the optimal utilization
of capital and investments.

Size alone, however, does not guarantee success.

In 2005, ING Canada also furthered its customer-

centric strategic focus with the introduction of
innovative new products and investments to grow
its main distribution channels. S

ults Are Exceeding Expectations’

rough the successful execution of its strategy
005, ING Canada continued to reach its goal
iutperforming its industry peers, delivering
fellent value to shareholders. The Company
tinued to grow despite a softer premium
ironment, achieving exceptional earnings

le implementing new measures and platforms
fo ':fu_mre growth. ' '

ING-Canada has a lengthy history of successful
acquisitions and integrations and demonstrated
this yet again last year with Allianz Canada,

hich was acquired in December of 2004.




The successful integration of Allianz was

an excellent example of ING Canada’s ability

10 gréw through strategic, well-managed
acquisitions. Allianz contributed greatly in 2005
to ING Canada’s overall results and to posiiioning
it for further organic growth in ﬂxe future, °

_ Shareholders Have Been Rewarded

We attracted tremendous support from investors
in our first full year as a public company.

This cnnsti_mtés a strong vote of confidence

for the Company and the stratégic direction of
management and the Board of Directors. The
Board is respon51ble for the supervision and
guidance of management, with the objective of
enhancing value for shareholders and ensuﬁng
the Company’s long-term growth and viability.
In 20b5, ING Canada clearly demonstrated to
shareholders its commitment to creating
measurable, sustainable value.

With its new status as a_'pub'licly
traded company, the structure and
responsibilities of ING Canada’s Board
and committees expanded.

Active Oversight Remains a Priority
The Board of Directors is actively involved,
directly and through its committees, in overseeing

~all aspects of ING Canada’s operations. As a

member of one of the world’s largest and best-
known public financial services companies, ING
Canada already maintained before its initial public
offering in 2004 a long history of meeting and
exceeding best practices in corporate governance.
With its new status asa publicly traded company,
the structure and responsibilities of ING Canada’s
Board and committees expanded.

Over the past year, the Board was actively
involved in guiding the overall strategic p]aﬁs
of the Company while also conlinuing to bring
independent oversight to key corporate functions
such as financial analysis and reporting,

ING Canada Inc.

co:‘npliance, risk:a_ssessment and management;
as well as human resources and succession
planning. We intfroduced new guiding principles
for governance, éspecially in the context of

our relationship with our majority shareholder,
and continued to{independently‘assess
Directors’ perforplance to ensure we fully meet
our obligations to shareholders. We continued
to implement p;c%ccdurcs to further our
commitment to ft'nlly meet our expanded public.
displosure requ'irt::ments.

‘An Exqtlng Year 3

It was a busy and excntmg year for ING Canada’s
Directors, scmor'management and staff. On behalf
of the Board and the shareholders we represent,

I would like to extend our thanks and appreciation
to the entire ING'Canada team for another
excellent year, | \Ivould also like to offer our thanks
and warm wnshes to Michael Mackenzie, who i is
retiring from the Boarcl of Dlrcctors after ten years
of distinguished serv1ce Mr. Mackenzie’s m31ght
and breadth of experience have been of great

 benefit to ING Canada, and his wise counsel will -

be missed. | woﬁld also like to offer thanks and.
congratulanons to Mark Tul!ls, yvho has joined the
senior management team and will leave the Board
of Directors at lhe year's annual general meeting.
Mr. Tullis is succcedmg Senior Vice-President and
Chief Financial Oﬂ"lcer Mike Cunningham, who
has elected to retlnre. To Mr. Cunningham we also -

* - offer our sincere thanks and best wishes. -

We look forward to continuing to work closely
with the management team as ING Canada
furthers its comn:aitmem to provide shareholders
and customers alike with the best possible value
in Canada’s property and casualty industry,

|

| O C?:«qum

Yves Broufllette,
Chairman |
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President and
CEO’s Message

Outperformance Builds a
Solid Foundation for Growth

2005 was another strong year for ING Canada, one
tn which the Company achieved excellent results
and positioned itself for continued growth in the
Canadian property and casualty insurance industry.

Once again, ING Canada attained levels of
performance above the industry average, with a
return on equity in 2005 of 31.6%, a 9.2% growth
in direct premiums written and a 25.2% increase
in net income over 2004 to $781.8 million.

Our strong results in 2005 stemmed from
another successful acquisition and our superior
skills in pricing, underwriting, claims and asset
management. We continue to capitalize and
build upon our position as the largest provider
of property and casualty insurance in Canada.

The single greatest contributor to our growth in
2005 was Allianz Canada, which we acquired
late in 2004. The contribution of Allianz to cur
earnings was even better than expected, and is
reflected throughout the results detailed on the
following pages.

With eleven acquisitions over seventeen years, we
have proven that we can successfully integrate
strategic acquisitions. Through these acquisitions
we have gained experience and knowledge and
become better at the integration process, making
it another of our core competencies. We have

also built our internal strengths and our ability

to achieve solid growth into the future.

Profitability in 2005 was driven by
our investment and underwriting
performance.-

Profitability in 2005 was driven by our investment
and underwriting performance. In automobile
insurance, cost containment measures introduced
by provincial governments over the past two

to three years have been successful. In home
insurance, our results were impacted by significant
weather-related losses in Alberta, Ontario, and
Quebec. Meanwhile, results in commercial lines
were affected by a move toward lower premiums
while at the same time costs associated with
settling claims continued to rise. Our underwriting
expertise allows us 1o adapt to such changes in the
marketplace while continuing to deliver superior
results and value.

With a large network of underwriting and claims
staff across the country, our scale provides us with
a better understanding of local market conditions
and the particular needs of individual clients. We
have the skills and expertise to offer a better value
proposition to our clients, with the appropriate
products at the right price backed by “customer-
centric” service.

We understand that our success is linked
with that of our broker partners.

Distribution Is Key

~In 2003, we continued to launch new initiatives

10 strengthen our relationships with brokers

and improve their ability to serve customers.

We understand that our success is linked with that
of our broker partners. Last year we implemented
new technology to make brokers’ operations

. more efficient and increase their ease of doing

business with vs. We expanded our already
extensive broker training offerings with new
products and small business training programs.
And we increased our efforts to conduct joint
marketing with brokers, helping them leverage
our internationally recognized brand.




ING Canada Inc,

. | ‘
The Allianz acquisition brought to our orgaruzatmn As with underwriting, our size and scale advantage

a wealth of talented insurance professionals who is extended to clients in claims management. Our
have further improved the extent of our market - presence throughout Canada allowed us to make
knowledge and expertise. We also gained from . further improvements to claims handlmg last

Allianz’s two broker networks, Canada Brokerlink year, building on one of the best service levels of
and Grey Power. Added to our existing Equisure our industry offered through our Client Service
Financial Network, these new channels will be Guarantee. With this Guarantee, we commit to

. major drivers of future growth. : make meaningful contact with a customer within

30 minutes of them calling us so as to provide
At the same time, through belairdirect, we & P

continued to make substantiat investments.in « i
technology to better serve those customers who

a551stance and advrce in case of emergency. If

'not ‘we will i |ssu 3 heque to the Customer m :

. . A amount equal- to then‘ annual premrum uptoa.
choose to do business with us over the Internet.. - . . _

. ST maxifoum ofSIOO '
Qur goal is to grow belairdirect into “the” * -

web insurer in Canada.

We re Customer-centnc
Being customer—centnc means workmgrh d_ to

anticipate and understand customers needs 'u

finding new ways to exceed therr expectauon

Through research of our customers and brokers

we track our perfo:rnance and seek: ew Way!

grow and improve, We ask customers wha hey

customem one at—fault accrdent, w1th no i
their insurance premlums or ¢ nvmg recq

R R

- “Our hlstory of growth and proﬁtablllty
“above the industry. average demonstrates
our ablhty to wnhstand industry cycles.”

Fpen
#

Claude Du_\sauh
President & CEO~




QOur claims management proficiency, customer
focus and financial strength mean we are there

for Canadians during major disasters, such as

last summer’s violent storms. In these cases of
multiple, serious losses we are able to call in extra
claims staff, emergency specialists and outside .
adjusters to address damage immediately and help
customers recover as quickly as possible.

Our success has in turn allowéd us to increase
our commitment to Canadian communities,

. through sponsorship of major events like the
ING OQttawa Marathon and the work of the ING
Foundation, which focuses on youth initiatives.
We are making our presence in Canadian
communities better known, while simultanecusly
growing our reputation and stature in the
insurance marketplace.’ '

On the Horizon

Looking ahead to the challenges and opportuﬁities
in 2006 and beyond, we are committed to continue
to grow at a rate greater than the industry average
and to exceed average industry return on equity
levels by at least 500 basis points (5%).

Our history of growth and profitability above

the industry average demonstrates our ability to
withstand industry.cycles. And our flexibility as .
a public company and increased access to capital
position us well for additional acquisitions,
should appropriate opportunities arise.

In automobile insurance, our industry has made
significant improvements in recent years by

working coilaboratively with regulators and other

stakeholders to curb factors contributing to
claims inflation while also ensuring customers -

. reforms, automobile insurance premiums have
been reduced. We must now encourage regulators
and governments to remain diligent, so that
improvements which have stabilized costs remain
in place. '

in 2006 our scale, skill at core
competencies and financial strength
‘will continue to be what allow ING
Canada to outperform our fndustry.

Home insurance has historically been counted on
mainly for fire and theft protection, and has been

priced accordingly. More and more now, however,

home insurance is used for protection against the
elements. Stringent health and environmental
standards have made water damage repairs more
costly, while at the same time many people invest
more in the contents and structure of their home,
Similar changes in risks and values have appeared
in commercial insurance. Our broker partners play
a key role in advising‘customers on how to make
sure they have appropriate coverage,

In 2006 our scale, skill at core competencies and
financial strength will continue to be what allow
ING Canada to outperform our industry. We
continue to grow, as a leader in our industry and as
an organization. In keeping with our recent growth
and future plans, 2006 will see 1,700 of our staff
brought together at a new head office facility in
Toronto and another 800 employees consolidated

" at our location in St. Hyacinthe, Quebec.

[ would like to thank all of our staff for their

dedication and commitment to achieving our

ambitious goals. I also wish to thank our
customers, brokers and shareholders for their
continued confidence in our ability to meet
their needs.

Ll ﬂ/_

have adequate coverage. With the success of these

Claude Dussault
President & CEO




Off to a Great -Starlt

Our First Year

2005 was our first full year as a public 'company

following our initial public offering and listing on

the Toronto Stock Exchange on Decernber 15, 2004,

The year was highlighted by exceilent financial
resulls, attributable in part to the smooth  *
integration of Allianz Canada and a significant

financial contribution from this recent acquisition.

We also continued our efforts to extend a track
record of industry outperformance across all

stages of the business cycle.

Allianz immediately became an important
contributor to our results.

These efforts put the customer first and include
enhancement and expansmn of distribution,

and distributors.

ING Canada Inc.

The Allianz Acquisition Has Been a Winner
Allianz of Canada was purchased in December
2004 and immediately became an important
contributor to our results, generating underwriting
income of $49 million in 2005. This company was
quickly integrated into our existing operations,
business retention levels tracked our assumptions
and healthy market conditions generally resulted
in better than expected earnings.

We welcomed over 1,000 new employees to ING
and our subsidiaries from Allianz, and beginning

in March, we renewed more than 347,000 Allianz
policies on our systems in 2005.

The policy renewal and integration process has
been substantially completed. '

As well as bringing new talent and clients to
ING, Allianz brought additional distribution,
including the Canada Brokerlink and Grey Power
networks. These channels are now part of a new
Affiliated Distribution Network comprising 141




left ta right:

Jeff Martens

Claims Repreunu.-live,
Alberta

‘Doug Lepan

The Customer Is.King

Leveraging our core competencies of pricing,
underwriting and claims management, we will
continue in 2006 to differentiate our value
proposition, .

This w1|l include expanded Internet capabili.ties
at direct distributor betairdirect and enhanced
customer service to homeowners through roll-
out of Property Rely, a network of preferred

contractors and suppliers similar to our Auto Rely :
* network of preferred auto body shops.

Our focus on the customer extended to our
commercial clients with expansion in 2005 of our
small business “Accel” offering and an improved
service proposition to brokers. Results in Ontario
were particularly enc':ouragin'g with insured risks

up more than 10%.

As always, customer centricity means being

there when we’re needed most. We paid out over -

52 biltion in total auto, property and commercial
claims in 2005 including settlement of more than
12,700 claims following torrential tain in.the

~ As we’ve done many times before in the

face of nature’s fury, we assembled staff from

‘across Canada in the case of the Alberta

storms, to respond immediately to the many
people impacted.

Despite occasionally calling on others, we handled
97% of all claims in 2005 through our in-house
team of over 1,750 claims personnel. Many of
these claims involved our preferred provider:
network, enabling us to resolve things quickly and
cost-effectively. Approximately one-half of our
automobile policy claimants took advantage of
our Auto Rely network of preferred body shops
resulting in expedited service and reduced costs.

.94%' of our claimants

were satisfied with the claims process
and the payments they received.

—~

“ING s about helping people. We sell
a promise, and work hard to keep

. that promise.”




Advisory Council

Paul Martin .

Broker, KRG.
Insunij:cc Brokers Inc.
" Member, ING
" Ontario Broker

We know the little lhingslcount too, like ha\;ing

the tow truck bring a rental car on weekends and .

evenings when an accident leaves a client without
wheels, a service we began piloting in Montreal
and Ottawa during the year. o '

ustomer satisfaction surveys during the
ear indicated that 94% of our claimants were
atisfied with the claims process and the

payments they received.

echnology Is Our Friend ' ,
We spent $109 million or 2.8% of direct written
remiums on information technology last

- year including $64 million on new initiatives.
Significant developments in 2005 included:

’I’I}iS was an added benefit of the acquisition as
we were already looking at alternatives to our
existing system. The new system is improving
workflows, inéreasing productivity and ensuring
consistency in claims-handling.-This is of no
small consequence considering the costs of

settling and adjusting claims totalted $2.2 billion

or rbughly 65% of our total expenses in 2005.

Leveraging statistics is a key to success in our

business. Enhancements to our Data Warehouse
made it easier for our claims people and under-
writers in the field to access and make practical

use of the industry’s largest proprietary database,

A commitment to making belairdirect the
Internet insurer of choice through an improved
value proposition, expanded functionality and
closer integr-ation of our web site and call centre.

ING Canada Inc.

Leveraging statistics is a key to success -
in our business.

Adoption of Allianz’ claims management system.

Taming the Business Cycle "

‘ . 4 .
Property and casualty (P&C} insurance is
a cyclical business, fluctuating between “harg”

markets characterized by higher premium rates
and “sofi” markets reflecting aggressive pricing

and inadequate returns on capital.

For example, a hard auto markeg was in effect
during 1998-2002 pushed by claims inflation

resulting from rising health care costs and

systemic fraud. This gave rise beginniﬁg in 2003
to regulatory reforms in Atlantic Canada,
Ontario and Alberta that took costs out of the
system and choked inflation. Meaningful
premium rate reductions and a softening of
the market have followed, although competition
has remained rational. .

The resultin g premium swings tend to cause
concem to policyholders, shareholders, regulators
and legislators and to us as well.

While cycles tend to play out over five to seven
years creating volatility in the medium term, the
industry has actixally tended toward stability over
longer periods." During the past thirty years, for
example, the industry’s return on equity averaged
rbughly 10% over this entire period as well as
during each.decade within this timeframe.

Why do cycle.s occur and what is ING doing

to manage within them?

Cycles tgke place principally as a result of:

. sﬁpply-driver_l pricing and inefficient
capital management;

+ the time lag between pricing and
confirmation of costs; '

» legislative and regulatory procésses
that tend to increase cycle amplitude.



Supply drlven Prlcmg A - Efficient capital management is a priofity at .
leftroright:  The Canadian P&C mdustry has hlstoncally had  ING Canada. And this priority is closely aligned.

Ge""""‘f:hffd 'fr"": few opportunities to deploy capital outside its with the discipline we must demonstrate as a’
CaliCentre  ONgOINg activities, capital which has tended to . . pubiic company. The issuance of publicly traded =
Team ;g::;c grow primarily through earnings. . shares additionally provides an acquisition

currency which can be used to facilitate industry
consolidation and market stabilization, Finally, as -
a well capuahzed company, we are better able to

Carofine Turgeon . As a result, excess capital generated in hard .
belafrdirect ' ‘

Cal Centre,  Markets tends to end up increasing competition
Quebec for business, leading to inadequate pricin zmd
& equate pneing weather cycllcal swmgs in the market

RitaRoy  creating soft markets,
belalrdirect
Call Centre,. . .
Quebec - - ’ - ' ) . T . ’ Lo

! Camlme Turgeon
belalrdirect Cnll Centre Quebec
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Lag Between Pricing and Cost Confirmation

While policies issued are typically for a one-year

terin, the basis on which pricing is determined, the

time involved in designing and selling a product
and the prolonged periods involved in settling *
a claim can span five years or more.

Pricing is based on actual experience over

. the preceding three to five years. Automobile

insurance rates need to be filed, the product has
to be sold, premiums earned and claims made.
Bodily injury claims in particﬁlar, can ta%ke :
prolonged periods of time to fully settlé. This
can result in inadequate pricing that doesn’t
fully consider the longer term costs of

. . '
doing business.

+

ING Canada Inc.

ING has made a commitment of time and
resources to actively engage governments
and regulatdrs in a dialogue.

. 1

ING leverages the industry’s largest

:. proprietary client database and

actuarial staff to “stay ahead of the °
curve” and avoid major pricing swings
and inadequate reserve levels.

ING leverages the industry’s largest pro'pn'eitary ‘

client database and actuarial staff to “stay ahead

. of the curve” and avoid major pricing swings

and inadequate reserve levels. Although we’re
not immune to rapid changes in c¢laims inflation,

increased fraud and other ncgati.ve trends, we have

often been able to mitigate the impact relative to
the industry’s overall experience. For example,

over the past 11 years, which includes the difficult -

1998 — 2002 period when the industry suffered '

* * heavy undcnmiﬁng losses in Ontario, ING was

able to generate a return on equity that was
some 750 basis points (7.5%) greater than the
industry result. s .

Regulatory and Legislative Intervention
We believe free, open markets that foster
competition, product innovation and efficient
capital management work best in meaking
insurance coverage affordable and accessible
for consumers. Automobile insurance is a

"compulsory product, the costs and pricing of
* which are not always fully or widely understood.

Regulatory and legislative interventioﬁ has

a tendency to amplify cyclical swings by
occasionally overreacting to coqsufner concerns
that can be better dealt .with_b'y competitive
market forces. o '

ING has made a commitment ofl time and
resources to actively engage gox%ernments and
regulators in a dialogue and collaborate to
achieve a more effective regﬁ!al:ory model that:

» addresses product availability and affordability
at the macro level; ‘

» maintains a competitive environment driven
by efficient capital management and effective

risk management.

Liserre Dagher
IT, Helpdesk
Co-ordinlwr.
Quebec .

Gary Lemaire
IT, Systems
Analyst,

o . Quebee
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Louise Fournier
Consultant,
Communications,
: .Quebec

Stephanie Dotto

+ Top 20 Under 20
Reciplent,

Quebec

Caring by Sharing

At ING Canada we believe success is something

. that’s shared, that investments in our youth and

communities yield high returns and that there are
initiatives worth sponsoting by one of the world’s

strongest brands. .

At ING Canada we believe success
is something that's shared.

" Through the ING F oundation, we continued to
establish partnerships with community-based

organizations that deliver meaningful and
sustainable programs aimed at improving the
quality of life for Canadian youth. '

Qur signature program, ‘Youth in Motion’s

“Top 20 Under 20” celebrated the inspirational

achievements and leadership of twenty individuals
aged-10 to 19. The program supports the personal
and professional development of these youth
thi'ough a leadership summit and a unique

mentoring program.

extraordinary op
- horizons, have th

. our-employees live and work. Cur United Way

_UNICEF aimed at raising funds to help give

We also support the communities in which

employee matching program was once again
a great success. Thanks to the generous
contributions of our employeés', we were able
to present this charity with a~gi_ﬁ of $955,000.

QOur two main sponsorships, the Montreal Bike

Fest and the ING Ottawa Marathon were big hits, '
attracting some 30,000 cyclists and more than
26,000 participants respectively. The Women in
Insurance Cancer Crusade was just one of many
beneficiaries of the ING Ottawa Marathon, using
the event to raise more than 516,000;

And‘we expect to do more in 2006.

We have become a Premief:VPartner of Canada’s
national speed skating teaghs, and i\f_e will acﬁvcly
parti"cipate in'the ING Chances for Children
program, a global initiative in partnership with

50,090 children in developing countries access '
to education by the end of 2007. .

* ’ ‘




Industry returns
in automobile
Jinsurance in
2006 are likely
to exceed

historical fevels.
¥

jING Canada, with its scale advantage underwntmg discipline and pncmg SDphlStlcathll is well
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

March 3 2006

- The following discussmn an_ analysas of our ﬁnancml cond:tron and results of aperations should
be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated ﬁnanc:ai statements and accompanying notes
' rherem in our Annual Report and our Annual Information F orii available at www.sedar.com.

“ The Company uses both generaliy accepred accounting prmczples (GAAP) and certain non-GAAP

measures 1o assess performance. Non-GAAP measures do not have any standardized meaning
prescribed by GAAP and are unlikely to be comparable to any similar measures presented by other

- companies. ING Canada analyzes performance based on underwriting ratios such as combined,

expense and loss ratios. These terms are defined in the glossary of terms found on the Investor
Relations section of our web site at www.ingcanada.com and appear with a footnote description

' whenever the term ﬁrst appears m the management s discussion and analysis.

Certam rotals, sub.rola!s and percentages may not agree due to mundmg

Current Outlook

Several key factors will affect the property and casualty (“P&C") insurance industry in 2006.

* Stable claims costs in automobile insurance: Automobile insurance reforms adopted by various .
provinces over the last two. years contmued to be effective in 2005 at containing and stabilizing claims

- costs Product ava:lablhty and aﬁ'ordablhty have accordmgly been restored. Sustamabnllty of these .

" drivers in 2006.

g

* Low frequency of automobile claims: Automoblle claims frequency remains low and we believe
frequency will either increase.or continued low frequency will lead to premium reductlons in 2006.
Nevertheless, barring unexpected developments, industry returns in automobile insurance in 2006
are likely.to exceed historical'-levels.

» Commercial insurance cbmpetiﬁon' Commercial insurance continues to be competitive; prices are
softening but continue to yreld rctums above historical levels. We remain disciplined in pricing and
underwrltmg and commmed __o supenor service to our brokers and commercial customers,

'+ Non-residential constructlun' cost increases: Non-residential construction cost increases are putting

pressure on commercial insurance underwriting margins. We are working with our brokers to ensure
that our commercial customers retain sufficient coverage.

» Lower industry grewth rates but still strong underwriting profits: We expect the industry’s top-line
growth rate for the next 12 months to be below historical levels, and for the industry, underwriting
results to fall short of the favourable level expenenced in 2005, That said, underwriting results in

" 2006 should exceed hlstoncal retums

positioned 1o capitalize on the above conditions and continue to outperform the industry’s return
on equity for the foreseeable future. Qur distinct product and service proposition delivered through
a multi-channel distribution network will be a key driver in fuelling organic growth.
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Challenges and Strategy

Cur strategy continues to be to levcrage our scale and core competencnes in underwntmg jpricing and

opos:tlon,

leading to sustainable oxgamc growth and industry outperformance.

Longer-term, domestic acquisitions enabling us to increase our market share in existing product lines
within existing geographies is an important, complementary aspect of our strategy. '

While 2005 extended the strong financial performance we and the industry enjoyed in 2004, key factors
in determining future perfonnance will include the ablhty of provincial reforms to continue to kecp
costs in check and contmuanon of historically low levels of clalms frequency.

" Top-line growth-wﬂl be a challenge in 2006 as premium rate reductions implemented in ;ﬁrior years

continue to work their way through the portfolio.

Legal and constitutional challenges to the caps on compensation for minor injuries enacted by various
provinces will be closely monitored. While claims frequency has remained at benign levels, we have
seen increased severity of claims in recent quarters, as water and wind damage seem to take a larger toll
than in the past. Also, non-residential construction costs are rising faster than premium rates, creating
some pressure on margins '

“While premium gruwth will likely’ be constrained in 2006 we believe that we can contmue to generate

meaningful increases in the number of risks insured dunng the year, an important measure of organic
growth. We expect organic growth will result from initiatives focused on improved technology,
making it easier to do business with us, and by increasing the value of our offerings through service
enhancements and product innovation. '

We will also continue to use our sophisticated pricing and underwriting approach, together with our
strong in-house claims capability, to closely monitor the nature of losses incurred to ensure our products
provide for appropriate levels and types of coverage priced in accordance with the risks assumed.

Creating Value for Shareholders

As we did in 2004, ‘we exceeded by a wide margin in 2005 our objective of outperforming the industry’s
return on equity (ROE) by at least 500 basis points (5%).

The 35.2% ROE achieved by our insurance subsidiariesfin 2005 compared to a Canadian property

and casualty industry return of 17.0% for federally regulated P&C companies. During the period

1995 through 2003, the ROE of our insurance subsidiaries averaged 17.4%, exceeding the correspoudmg
industry average of 9. 9% by 7.5 percentage pomts

We believe this track record of consistent uutperformance and value creation fundamentally speaks
to the advantages of scale and the importance of an underwntmg culture and capability.




" Net income
for the year ended
Dec. 31, 2005 was

$781.8
million

" anincrease of
25.2%

from $624.2 million

for the year ended
Dec. 31, 2004,

Jetse de Vries
Chief Operating
Officer,

Western Region
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IG Canada —— PAC Insurance Industry

1995 1986 1997 1998 1999

r’ * Excludes ROE of our non-insurance companies,

Source: Insurance Bureau of Canada; Office of the Supenntendem of Financial lnsmuuons for 2005 industry ROE.
Company reports for ING Cnnnda ROEs.

¢ from the prior year.

L
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Overall Performance -

Net Income .
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was 8781 8 million, an increase of $157.6 million,
or 25.2%, from $624.2 mllhon for the year ended Decepllzer 31, 2004.

These results are driven by: (1) continued strong underwriting income, particularly in personal
automobile, despite the impact of increased catastrophe claims, most notably in personal property,

(2) actual claims experience being less than previously. reserved for, creating redundant reserves to the
benefit of eammgs and (3) robust investment results e :

- The following table presents the major changes in net mcome for the year ended December 31, 2005

Year ended December 31 .
(in millions of doilars} = . . 2005
2004 Net income o 7 s 624.2

Prior year claims development (excludmg pools) o 113.6

Allianz s : LT 258,

Current accident year (54.0)

Industry pools® -~ L e (8.0)}

Catastrophes” R : E (33.1)
Underwriting income . - s 43
Investment income ' ' 329
Realized investment and other gains ) - T1.5
Other : X : 2.9

ZOOSNetincome & . o 3 $ 7818

[ . B
" excluding Allianz
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Underwriting
Income

$537.7

$470,0 I
2004 2005

Shareholders’
equity increased by

$833.0

million

or 40.4%, to

$2,892.6

million

| in 2005.
|

Shareholders Equnty

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Shareho!ders equity mcreased by $833.0 mllhon, or 40.4%, to $2 892 6 million in 2005 compared
to $2,059.6 million at December 31, 2004, This increase reflects net income of $781.8 million plus
$131.6 million in additional proceeds from-our December 2004 initial public offering received in

Januaxy 2005 less $86 9 mllllon in dmdends ($0 65 per share) pald durmg the year. :

‘The ﬁnanclal data in the followmg tables was prepared usmg Canadlan generelly accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and is taken from our consolidated financial statements for the years ended

Year ended December 31

2003

(in millions of dollars, except pef share data) 2005 2004
Direct premiums written $39049 | $3,5759 $3,4438
Total revenue 4,446.1 3,780.9 3,0154
Underwriting income 531.7 470.0 51.7
Net income 781.8 624.2 150.5
Dividends per common share 0.65 0.0 0.0
Earnings per share (in dollam) ‘
Basic 5,85 6.51 1.61
Diluted 5.85 6.49 - 1.61
As at December 31 2005 2004
Invéstments $6,721.0 | $6,2851
Total assets 9,926.5 " 9,663.1"
Debt outstanding 127.0 256.2
Total shareholders’ equity 2,892.6 2,059.6
The foliowmg table shows selccted non-GAAP ﬁnancml ratios and retum on equity (ROE) data,
Year ended December . ~ 2008 2004 2003
Claims ratio (V 56.3% 56.6% 68.1%
Expense ratio 2 29.7% 29.4% 30.0%
Combined ratto ® 86.0% 86.0% 98.1%
ROE © . 31.6% 40.9% . 16.5%
ROE of our P&C insurance ¢ subsidiaries 35.2% 39.6% 15.5%

M Claims and claims expenses incurred, net of reinsurance during a defined period and expressed as a percentage of
net premium eamed for the same period. The financial numbers used to determine these ratios are determined in
accordance with GAAP but the ratio is a non-GAAP measure. ’

@ -Expense including commissions, premium taxes and all general and administfative expenses, incurred in operating
the business during a defined period and expressed as a percentage of net eitned premiums for the same period.
Components of the expensé ritio - commissions, prémium taxes and general expenses are individual tatios expressed
as a percentage of net eamed premiums, The financial numbers used to determine these ratios are determined in
accordance with GAAP but the ratio is & non-GAAP measure.

) The sum of the claims ratio and the expense ratio. A combined ratio below 100% indicates a profitable underwriting
result. A combined ratio over 100% indicates an unprofitable result. The financial numbers that comprise the ratio are
determined in accordance with GAAP but the ratio is a non-GAAP measure,

|
|
|




A key non-GAAP
measure of our
growth is written
insured risks

- defined as the
number of vehicles

\ in automoehbile

“ insurance, the
4 number of premises
‘Fin personal property
{ insurance and the
. number of policies
I in commercial
.l insurance (excluding

j commercial

auto insurance).

Debbie

Coull-Cicchini

Chief Operating
‘ Officer,
Ontario Region
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) Return on equity (ROE)isa noq—GAAf; measure which rcpmmts our net income-for the twelve months ended on
the date indicated divided by the average shareholders’ equity over the same twelve-month period, Net income and
shareholders’ equity are determined in accordance with GAAP.,

©) Return on equity of our P&C insitrance subsidiaries is a non-GAAP measure which represents net income of éur
P&C insurance subsidiaries for the twelve months ended on the date indicated divided by the average shareholders’
equity of our P&C insurance subsidiaries over the same twelve-month period. Net income and shareholders” equity

* are determined in accordance with GAAP. Our P&C i insirance subsidiaries consist of Belair Insurance Company Inc.,

ING Insurance Company of Canada, ING Novex Insurince Company of Canada, The Nordic Insurance Company of
Canada, along with our warranty company, Wellington Warranty Company Inc. After November 30, 2004, the results
of our P&C insurance subsidiaries consist of those results of the above-mentioned subsidiaries, as well as those of
the subsidiaries of Allianz; Allianz Insurance Company of Canada and Trafalgar Insurance Company of Canada.

' Dlrect Premiums ertten

Direct premiums written increased $329.0 mllhon, or 9 2%, in 2005. Allianz contributed $423.5 million
more in direct premiums than last year. Results in 2004 included one month only of Allianz. Premium
growth was lower due to reduced premiums from industry pools of $104.2 million.

A key non-GAAP measure of our growth is written insured risks defined as the number of vehicles in
automobile insurance, the nuinber of premises in personal property insurance and the number of policies
in commcrc1a1 insurance (excludmg commercnal auto msurance)

The number of written msured risks increased 14.6% in 2005 over 2004. The increase excluding Allianz,
representing organic growth, was 3.4% in 2005.

Premium growth excluding Allianz was unable to keep pace with the growth in insured risks given
lower average premiums, largeiy due to rate reductions in personal automoblle insurance averaging
7.5% for 2005.

;

Revenne
Revenue increased by $665. 2 million, or 17 6%, to $4,446.1 million in 2005 compared to
$3,780. 9 million in 2004. - ~5 )

The followmg table presents the major changes between 2004 and 2005

Year ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)

Netpremiums eamed , - : § 4756
Investment income . o 71.5
Realized investment and other gains 91.1
Commission and adv1sory fees ; 27.0
{ncrease inrevenue : : ’ $° 6652

Net premiums earned increased by $475.6 million, or 14.1%, to $3,840.2 million in 2005 from
$3,364.6 million in 2004. Allianz accounted for practically all of this increase, or $461.2 million
in 2005. Lower earned premiums from industry pools (3.6%) and earned __prémium rate reductions
averag’ing 6.9% in pe_rsoﬁal.’automobile insurance reduced earned premium growth in 2005.
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‘Net unrealized
gains of

$304.3
million

at year-end 2005,
however, were

$62.1
million
greater than
last year.

lnvestment income was $338 5 mllllon in 2005 an lincrease of $7L.5 mllllon or 26 8%, from -

the $267.0 million reportcd in 2004, Growth in invested assets from the _A_l_l_:an_z acquisition of )
$1,061:5 million and retained profits of $694.9 million in the last year were the main contributing
factors to higher investment income. ' ’

Realized investment gains in the equity and fixed income [-)onfolios increased revenue by $91.1 million
for 2005. Net unrealized gains of $304.3 million at year-end 2005, howe\;e_f, were $62.1 million . :
greater than last year. The gertﬁ in realized gainé comes primarily from $53.3 million in fixed income
securities resulting from a repositioning of the portfolio to improve the efficiency of managing fixed
income securities. The increase in our gains on common stock of $31.4 million reflects $19.0 million
of gains from the sale of seed capital in ING mutual funds. '

Commission and advisory fees increased by $27.0 million in 2005, 'I’he increase is related entlrely
to the addition of Canada Brokerlink, part of the Allianz acquisition.

Underwriting Income

Undenvr{ting income (the difference between net premiums earned and the sum of net claims incurred,
commissions, premium taxes and general expenses) increased by $67.7 million to $537.7 million’

in 2005 yielding a claims ratio of 56.3% which is 0.3 percentage point lower than last year. The
improvement in the claims ratio was offset by an equal increase in the expense ratio, resulting in

a combined ratio of 86.0% for both 2005 and 2004,

The increase in underwriting income was due to:

Year ended December 31
(in mllhons of dollars)

Pnor year claims development excluding items below : TR $ . 1735 ‘
Allianz acquisition ' S _ 394
Catastrophes® _ ' (50.5)
Industry pools® . , 22
Current accident year” ) _ . (82.5) -

Total . L T ‘ i $ 67.7
* excludes Allianz BT '

Personal automobile continued to be the biggest contributor to underwriting income, accounting for
$411.5 million in income in 2005 (2004: $292.0 million). The combined ratio for personal automobile
decreased from 82.9% in 2604 to 78.8% in 2005. The personal automobile portfolio, including Allianz
but excluding pools, benefited from favourable claims development of $161.2 million in 2005, primarily
the result of automobile reforms and continued low frequency, which offset the decrease in underwriting
results from industry pools. .




Persdnai
automobile
continued to be
the biggest
contributor to
underwriting
income,
accounting for

$411.5
million
" ina005,

-of the Company.
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Industry pools consist of the so-called “res:dual market” as well as risk-sharing pools (RSP) in Alberta,

. Ontano, Quebec and New: Brunswmk These pools are managed-by the Facnhty Association except for
- the Quebec RSP. Dunng 2005'::the premiums transferred to us: decreased in the residual market and

-~ transfers both to and from the RSP increased, pnmanly in Alberta. Transfers in and out of these pools ::

including Allianz during the year, on balance, resulted in $8.1 million'less underwriting income from
pools in 2005 than we had in 2004, These transfers also reduced t_he amount of our reported net written
premiums and eventually the net eamed premiums.

Significant Transactions
Initial Public Offering

- The Compaﬁy completed an [PO on December 15, 2004, pursuant to the filing of a prospectus dated

December 9,.2004. As a result of the offering, 34.9 million common shares were issued at $26.00 per.
share for proceeds of $858.5 million net of underwriters’ fees and other expenses. Pursuant to the
underwriter’s agreement for the prospectus, an over-allotment option was granted and then exercised
subsequent to December 31, 2004 upon which 5.2 million additional common shares were issued and
net proceeds were received of $129.2 million. ING Groep remains the controlling shareholder with
70% of the shares issued and 'outst'anding.

Acquisition of Allianz

The Company entered into a share and loan purchase agreement dated October 7, 2004 with Allianz
AG and Allianz of America Inc. to acquire most of Allianz’ operations in Canada. Included in the
acquisition were two msurance compames Allianz Insurance Company of Canada and Trafalgar

- Insurance Company of Canada as wcll as a network of insurance brokerages; Canada Brokerlink, which

sells the products of P&C i msm_‘ance companies to individuals and small to medium-sized businesses;
The acquired operations have been integrated as planned (see note 19 of the accompanying audited

consolidated financial statements).

The transaction was recorded with an effective date of November 30,‘2004 and was completed
December 8, 2004, The results of Allianz for the month of December 2004 have been included in the

-Company’s consolidated stateriients of income for the year ended December 31, 2004, In 2005 Allianz
. contributed direct premiums written of $483.3 million (2004: $59.8 million), net premiums earned of ’
: '$511 3 million’ (2004: $50. 1 rm]hon) and underwriting income of $49.4 miillion (2004: $10.0 million).

The “AGR Business”, related to insurance coverage of industrial nsks for large Canadian compames
" and multi-national clients of Alhanz AG, was not part of the acquisition as it was subject to a 100%

quota share agreement with Allianz Global Risks Riichversicherungs AG pending the re-transfer of
this business to the Canadian branch of Allianz Global R.|sks US Insurance Company (“AGR") in
September 2005,

Consequently, the AGR business had no net impact on the consolidated statement of income
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Su

ary of Quarterly Results

(in millions of dollars, 2005 2004

except per share data) - Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Qi
Diréct premiums B N - L

writen © |$ 9050 S1,006.5 $1,171.4 § 8219 |§ 8830 § 921.6 §1,0434 § 727.8
Total revenues LIL6 1,1233 L1123 1,098.8 | 1,0047 9197 9009  955.6
Underwriting )

income 1263 1167 1798 1149| 184 1337 1745 434
Income before . ) :

income taxes 2693 2693 323.6 2286 2297 2171 2386 1704
Net income 1969 2028 2236 1585| 1731 1636 1723 1151
Combined ratio 89 877 812 881! 87 839 789 947

Seasonal indicator (V) 1.1 1.02 0.94 1.02 1.01 098 092 1.10
Earnings per share )

Basic 147 . 152 1.67 1.19 1,69 175 1.84  1.23

Diluted : 1.47 1.52 1.67 119 1.67 1.75 1.84 1.23
Earnings per ' ' '

adjusted share @ |

Basic pro-forma |  1.47 1.52 1.67 1.19 135 . 1.27 134 - 090

Diluted pro-forma 1.47 1.52 1.67 1.19| . 129 122 "1.29 0.86

(1) The seasonal indicator.is 8 non-GAAP measure which represents the ratio of the quarterly combined ratio to the
annuat combined ratio. Historically, the seasonal indicator pattern shows that Q2 is the lowest loss quiarter and Q1
is the highest loss quarter. ‘ '

@ 1o facilitate comparison between performance in 2004 and 2005, management calculated basic eamings per edjusted
share, a non-GAAP measure, on a pro-forma basis as if the 128.5 million common shares outstanding after our
reorganization and completion of the initial public offering were outstanding at the beginning of each of the quarters
prior to 2005, and calculates diluted eamings per adjusted share as if the 133,7 million common shares, the difference

being the shares issued in January 2005 as part of the over-allotment granted:'io.lhc underwriters, 'har_i been outstanding
during each of the quarters ISrior to 2005. Net income used for the pro-forma eamnings per adjusted share caleulations
has not been adjusted for interest income and expense that would have been realized by the Company from investing
the net proceeds of the initial public offering and reducing the debt outstanding. o

-
b

S



Underwriting
Income

Parsonal insurance

$382.1
$339.2

2004 2003

1 Commarcial insurance

| $155.6

' $130.8

l 2004 2008
|
i
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Segmented Information

‘We report our results on the basis of five: scgmeﬁts cdﬁ_siétin'g of the three segments of our property and
casualty (P&C) insurance business (personal insurance, commerc:al insurance and the investment results
of our P&C insurance subsidiaries}, corporate and other and reahzed investment and othcr gains.

The followmg table presents selected 1_n_fon_nauon_on our business segmen_ts.

Year ended December 31 : .
(in mitlions of dollars) - 2005 2004 2003

Revenue
Net premiums earned e
Personal insurance o $2,680.7] $23435 § 18287

Commercial insurance _ : 1,159.5 1,021.1 932.2°

Total et premiums earned 38402 | 33646 27609
investments ' Tl , 3232 256.7 208.8
Total P&C tnsurance ‘ o ,- l $4,1634 l ' $£3,621.3 £ 2,969.7
Corporate and other o 59.2 o272 13.6
Realized investment and othergains ~ . .. - 223.5 1324 - 321
Total revenue o o ga4461 | §3,7809  $3,0154

Income before income taxes
Underwntmg income _ B R . )
Personal insurance 3 R § 3821 § 3392 $ (359)

Commercial insurance C R 1556 | - 1308 87.2
Total underwriting income ’ o 537.7 470.0 © 517
Investments ‘ _ T 300.7 - 2470 . 200.5
Total P&C insurance 2o s smsal| s mr0 s 2522
Corporate and other . T 290 - .64 (513)
Realized investment and other gams . R 2235 1324 321
Total income before Income taxes 7 ] s1,00009] s 8558 s 2270

L e e e e o e U ————— —
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Direct premiums
written in

personal automobile
insurance reflect

" an average

rate reduction

of approximately

7.5%

in 2005.

Alan Blair
Chief Operating
Officer,

Atlantic Region

$ 1,877.0
779.9

$ 2,656.9

$ 2,680.7

1,550.5
433.2
91.8

2,298.5

$ 3821

57.8%
16.2%
3.4%
8.3%

85.7%

2230 :

‘ automoblle further reduce p mmm growth y .9% dunng the year 2




R TS,

__m the combmed ratlo of 11. 5 percentage pomts Catastrophes occurring in Q205 and Q3 05 reduced

: underwutmg income by $36 3 million and class actions reduced- underwntmg income; by $14.7 rmlhon
i in Q4 05. These events 1ncreased the combmed ratro by 6 6. 3 percentage pmnts We saw increased stofm

’ actmty in' 2005 and an mcrease in our’ retentmn of individual catastrophe exposure from SS 0 rmlhou

i in 2004 to $17 5 rmllron in 2005 whlch negatlvely 1mpacted results. :

: reductlon in‘the combmed ratlo of4.1 percentage points. Frequency in 2005.was lower than in 2004,

. year. excludmg all other claims and cEalms expenses’ related to prior years incurred during the calendar

Undexwrltmg mcome from the p‘ rsonal roperty decreased by $76 6. mllhon in 2005 on an increase

...... : 4

Underwrmng income from personal automoblle mcreased by $119 5 million in 2005 along with a
The current accndent year loss ratio, deﬁned as: clalms and claims expenses incurred during the current
year expressed as a percentage of net premrum eamed,; is very similar i in 2005 to that of 2004 even

though the earned premlum has decreased Favourable claims dcvelopment contnbuted $161.2 million
of the annual i mcrease m personal automobﬂc undcrwntmg income.
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Underwriting income
from commercial
insurance increased

$24.8
million
in 2005,

"Commerc.ial Insuranc
The following table presents the ditect
"msurance segmcnt

-Year ended December 3

_Dtrect Premmms Wrttten

_ The number of msured risks’ remalned the same as:in 2004 after excludlng A
'books of busmess S

. tNet Premtums Earned. .
; Net prennums eamned mcreased_by_$138 4 mtliton or 13 6%,': '
_majonty (2. 1%) oftlus incre ' -

Underwmmg Income : : N
-Underwriting i income from commerctal msurance mcreased $24 8 million in:
“the combined ratio of 0. 6 percentage pomts Favourable clalms development of $66 5 mtl]mn more than - - -

';'Dlreetpremrums wrttten N
- Commercial automobtle § 3304 3010 . § .29110,
' Commerctal other - , 917.6 -
_Totaldlrect premlums written -7 o0 7T §1,248.0 [ 81,160 $1,0057
Net premlums earned ' $1,159.5 | 10211 $ 9322
'Expenses ‘ - ‘ N L -
Claims and loss adjustment expenses g e : 6112 . '538.1
.Comm1ssmns W s ‘ 241.0 182.5. .
Premium taxes o 4191 340
General expenses ' 109.8 | - . 904
Total expenses o 11,0039 8450
i $ 1556 -5 8 872
Ranos - : e :
Claimsratio 52.7% 57.7%
' Comm1ssrons ratio il 20.8% 19.6%
_Premmmtaxesratto T ‘ -';_i. ol 3.6% 3.6%
General expense ratto B h o 9.5% |
)E___Combmed ratio 86.6%

:Dtrect premrurns wntten mcreased by $84 9 mtllron or 7 4%, in 2005 excludlng the AGR busmess

(see note 6 to the audlted consohdated ﬁnancral statements) Allianz accoun'ed for growth of 82%:+

on a‘decrease in-

oﬂ'set the 1mpaet ﬂ-om catastrophes of $17:4 mlliton aud htgher seventy m the 'current aectdent year

Our commerc:lal msurance expense tatio was 33 9% ifi 2005 compared to 35 3%. in 2004 A decrease
of 2 0 percentage pomts in the com:msston ratlo was due to lcwer proﬁt—shanng comm15510ns of

1.5 percentage pomts and htgher ceded comrmssmns of 0.5 percentage pomts

The general expense rano mcreased by 0 6 percentage pomts frorn 8 9% 1n 2004 to 9. 5% in 2005

due to mcreased expenses of $3 4 mtlllon and Allianz’s transmon expenses of $3 1 mllllon o

andithe sale of e
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Investment Income. )
The follov'ving table presents the results of our investment segment,

Ye_ar ended December 31

(in millions of dollars) C T4 2008 004 2003 =
Interest income _ oL ' s 2036 § 1549 § 109.1
Dividend income e - S 110 98.7 94.5
Other o 2.7 3 52
" Investment income from P&C subsidiaries i $ 3233 l $ 2567 § 2088
Investment expenses ' (22.5) 9.7 (8.3)
Investment income from P&C subsidiaries !
before income taxes - $ 3008| $ 2470 § 2005

Investment income increased by $66.6 million, or 25.9%, to $323.3 million in 2005. Interest income of
$14.5 million related to the 2001 Portfolio Purchase is included in the 2005 results. {The 2001 Portfolio
Purchase refers to an agreement entered into with Zurich Insurance Company to acquire its personal and
small and medium-size commercial business and, in turn, sell our large size commercial lines business.)
Investment income in 2004 is higher than in 2003 due to the transfer of investments of $665.0 million
from reinsurers related to a 100% quota-share treaty commuted as at January 1, 2004.

Average pre-tax yield was 5. l% for 2005 compared to 5. 3% in 2004, These yields exclude realized

_ mvestment gams and losses and?mterest income related to the 2001 Portfollo Purehase

: Investment expenses totalled $22.5 million.in 2005 compared to $9 7 rmll:on in 2004 This growth is
. due to increased assets from the Allianz acquisition and an increase in asset management charges as
~ of January 1, 2005 to better reflect current market costs. These charges of $18.8 million are paid to our

in-house investment operations. An equivalent amount is reported as a negative expense in the corporate
and other segment with both entries eliminated on consohdatlon of the financial statements.

‘Corporate and Other .~

The following table presents the results of our corporate and other segment including the results of our

2 brokerage operations (Canada Brokerlmk and Equisure), our mvestment management company and )
) mter-company ehmmatlons pnmanly commlssmns and general expenses Dl

(in millicns of dollars) L - 2005 2004 2003

Investment income o - $§ 153 § 103 § 5.1
Commission and advisory fees - 43.9 16.9 8.4
Revenue. | s92| . 272 13.5
Commissions_ - E 27.9) ‘ 1.8 2759
General expenses ST ) G- s 73 . 305
- Interest on debt SR i 8.0 11.7 126
Expenses S i 30.1'} 20.8 709
l

Income before income taxes -

$ 291] 8 64 $ (574)
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Realized investment
and other gains

$223.5

51324

After-ta'x Total
$169.4

.9

2004 -

Corporate and other revenue increased $32.0 million in 2005. The increase in 2005 was-due largely to
commission income from Canada Brokerlink (part of the Alllanz acquisition) of $25.7 mlllmn increased

revenue from Equlsure of $1.8 mlfllon and 1ncreased mterest mcome of 4.6 mllhon

Commission expenses were lower, however, due to non-récurring commissions of ($4.3) million in °
2004. Higher brokerage commissions earned from our insurance companies of $26.0 million in 2005
were offset in the commission expenses of this segment. Commission in 2003 included $25.8 million
related to the 2001 Portfolio Purchase. .

Higher general expenses of $42.7 million in 2005 were due mostly to Canada Brokerlink expenses.
General expenses in 2003 included $16. 0 million related to the 2001 Portfolio Purchase,

. Realized Investment and Other Gains

The followmg table presents realized investment and other gams (losses)

Year cnded December 31

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Realized investment and other gains (losses)

Fixed income . . ) . $§ 8719| § 346 $ 362

Preferred shares ) 4.8 (6.3) 24 4

Common shares . 131.% 100.1 ©(3.2)
Other R BTN 89| 40 (25.3)
Total _ 0l s 23s] s 1324 5 32

After-tax total : . $ 1694 ] $ 919 § 6.5

- Realized investment and other gains in'creased by $91.1 million in 2005 on the strength of $53.3 million
in fixed income portfolio gains, Share gains mclude gains from the sale of seed capital in ING mutual
funds in 2005 of $19.0 million, which offset hlgher impairment charges of $3.6 million. Other includes
gains of $8.9 million in 2005 on the sale of books of busmess agpregating $6.4 mllllon and a gain of
$2.5 million on the fransfer-and sale of mutual funds. - o

Balance Sheet Analysis

Premiums and Other Receivah]eﬁ

Premiums written are either billed to brokers or billed to policyholders directly. As at December 31, 2005,
premium receivables from brokers stood at $129.0 million and $1,120.0 million from policyholders. As
at December 31, 2004, premium receivables from brokers stood at $163.8 million and:$1,076.0 million
from policyholders. )

Other receivables corﬁprised $195.0 million (2004::$202.8 mitlion) from the Facility Asét;éiéfion
and other industry pools, $31.3 million (2004: $137.3 million) from other insurers and $43.2 million
(2004: $62.5 miilion) from other,

Investments

We have an investment policy that seeks to provide an attractive risk-return profile over the medium to
long term. In developing our investment policy, we take into account the current and expected condition
of capital markets, the historic return profiles of various asset classes and the variability of those returns
over time, the availability of assets, diversification needs and benefits, regulatory capital required to
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support the various asset types, security ratilngs and other rnaterlal variables likely to effect the overall
performance of our investment portfolio. The overall risk profile of our investment portfolio is designed
to balance the investment retum needs of our liabilities while optimizing the investment opportunities
available in the marketptace. Management monitors and enforces compliance with our investment
policy. The majority of our investment portfolto is invested in well-established, active and llquld

markets. Fair value for most investments is determined by reference to quoted market pnces In cases -

where an active market does not exist, fair value is esttmated by reference torecent tmnsactrons or
current market prices for similar investments, C | :

Our investment portfolio is managed on a total return basis which views realized gainis and losses as
important and recurring components of the return on investments and consequently of _income, elthoﬁgh
the timing of realizing gains or losses may be unpredictable. Our portfolio construetion” methodology
takes into account the availability and tiquidity of potenttal investments. We also set constraints by
economlc sector and by investment strategy to provide diversification across mdustnes We believe this
dwerslﬁcatlon of exposure across a range of business sectors provides positive 1nvestment benefits.

At the s same time, economic difficulties concentrated in a select business sector are dampened

Due to,potemtal tax ramifications of these strategies, specific focus is placed on the management of the

portfolio to optimize the after-tax total return,
i . )
Our investment objectives remain consistent with those in 2004. Beginning in 2006, we are expanding

the investment options to include investment grade international bonds and the use of derivatives to
support the management of the duration of our fixed income portfolio The duration has moved from-
6.3 years at December 31, 2005 to 4.3 years at January 31, 2006, This more closely aligns our

mvestment duration with the duration of our liabilities. We do not intend to match exact]y but will target.

duratlon of 4.0 to 4.5 years. We have lowered the duration by trading the portfolro and through limited
use of denvatwes The relatwely flat yteld curve has allowed us to reposrtmn the portfolro with only

i

a modeist drop in yreld

The followmg table presents our cash and mvested assets asat December 31 2005 and
December 3] 2004 : :

i v

f o “ ¥ As at Deceinber 31, 2005 o As at Dect:mt}er 31, 2004

(in millions of dollars) -  Book value (BV) . % of BY Fair value BV % of BV Fair vatue’
Cash and cash equivalents |$  341.1 48% $§ 34L1{$ 825 ‘.;l.3% % 825
Short-term notes 440.4 6.2% a04| 2747 43% 2747
Fixed income securities(" 3,520.8 499%  3,595.8| 36851 57.9% 37765
Commercial mortgages 70.4 1.0% 73.1 78.7 1.2% 833
Preferred shares 12573 17.8%  13199] 1,0696  168%  1,1363
Common shares® ' 1,266.5  17.9%  1,430.4 9977 . 157%  1,077.2
Other investments 165.6 2.4% 165.6 1793  2.8% 1793

Total investments ind cash|$  7,062.1 | 100.0% § 73663]S 63676  100.0% § 6,609.8

n Fixed income securities and common shares include our seed capital investment in ING mutual funds, with
“a book value of $155.0 million as at December 31, 2004. Due to the sale of our mutual fund operations, there were
no such investments as at December 31, 2005,

'
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- As at December 31,

2005, the weighted
average rating of
our fixed income
portfolio was AA,
and the weighted
average rating of

our preferred share
portfolio was P2,

The followmg table sets forth our exposure to: the'ten largest mdustnal sectors for our cot

Cash and cash equivalente-and investments increased by $6§4.5 million, or 10.9%, to $7_.06 billion in
2005. This increase results from higher income from operations, an-interim settlement of $116.9 million

the Facility Association. These transferred funds are not needed by the association in the short term;
however they will eventually be retumed to. the association to pay claims related to the funds

Other mvestmems consisted of Ioans to brokers with a book valie of 8151 4 mn]lron as at December 31,
2005 ($156.3 million as at December 31, 2004), investments in brokerages with & book value of
$14.2 million as at December 31, 2005 ($13.4 million as at December 31, 2004) and other commercial
-loans wnth a book value of nil as at December 31,2005 ($9.6 mlllxon asat December 31 2004)

mcome securitiés and preferred and common share portfolios as at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

from the 2001 Portfolio Purchase and the receipt of $173.5 million of investment funds transferred from

(in millions of dollars) As at December 31, 2005 As at December 31, 2004
. BY % of BV Fair value BV % of BV Fair value
* Banks IS 878 123% S 89521 6362  10.0% § 674
Diversified financiel ~ "~ AT o
- services U 12 104% CT13263  211% 13845
Utilities : 449.7 6.7% 4353 6.9% 461.9
Insurance 361.2 5.4% 246.3 3.9% 266.7
Telecommunication , . L
services - 286.9 43% 284.7] 2928 47%: 2992
Oilandgas'.  ~ - 2741 . 41% LA1843 0 29% - 1887
Special purpose 2523 3.8% L1520 24% 155.5
Real estate 248.8 3.7% 124.7 2.0% 1323
Media - 1216 18% 106.8 7% 1096
Food & drug retail 76.8 1.1% 522 0.8% 54.7
Total top ten sectors |8 3,600.4 53.6% $ 13,8222 $ 3,556.9 ‘ 56.6% ‘§ 3,727.2
Government | 2,035 304%  2,0915] 20755  33.0%  2,124.7
Otlier’ 10771 160%  1,11L6 6527  10.4% 675.4

Total investment assets  ($ 6,721.0 100.0% § 6,527.3

100.0% S 7,0253(5 6,285.1

As at December 31, 2005 the welghted average ratmg of our fixed i mcome portfolio was AA and the
werghted average rating of our preferred share portfolio was P2 (ratmgs are by Standard & Poor’s
(“S&P”) or Dominion Bond Rating Services). Approximately $16.1 million of securities with a rating
below investment grade or not rated were included in the fixed income and preferred share portfolios
at December 31, 2005, compared to $42.9 million as at December 31, 2004. )

]
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Fixed lncome by C-redit‘Quaii_ty Lo Fixed Income by Credit Quality

as at December 31, 2005 o as at December 31, 2004
Carrying Value . e o Carrying Value

) A L
a-

2% 33.9% -~
o 38.5%

Exposflre to the preferred share asset class ciomributes positively to the overall afier-tax return of the
investn:wnt poftfolio. Qur continuing profitability allows for material exposure to preferred shares in
our investment portfolio and enables us to realize the benefit of receiviﬁg preferred shares dividends
ona tax-free basis. The following charts set-forth our preferred share portfolio by credit quality as at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, -

Prefem?d Shares by Credit Quality E Preferred Shares by Credit Quality
a5 at Dec‘emberTBI, 2005 . 1 ’ as at December 31, 2004
Carrying,Value T . Carrying Value

[ .4
5%

i
i
|
|
|
|
4
;
Comrnon equity cxposurc focuses pnmaniy on hngh dividend paying equities. We seek enhariced
return by identifying and investing in shares likely to increase their dividends or pay a special one-
time dividend. We undertake intensive analysis of investment opportunities to identify special dividend
candidates. Similar evaluations are conducted to assess investment candidates most likely to increase
dividends paid. We also manage the equlty portfollos to achieve additional dividend payouts. Through
active managcment we seek mcremental dmdend income versus a statlc portfolio.

The results of our common equity su'ategles general]y dcpcnd on overall equity market trends. -
Accordingly, many factors outside of our control affect the aggregate increases or decreases in the
equity portfolios. We seek to select investments that will provide incremental value in excess of
our benchmarks. Unfereseen events aﬂ‘écting specific companies, industries or sectors can have
significant detrimental effects on the return proﬁle of the equity investments.

I
+
5
i.
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Favourable <laims
development
largety results from
cost containment
associated with the
automobile reforms
which appear to

be sustainable and
continued low

frequency of claims.
Both factors have
been more favourable
than anticipated.

Gilles Roy
Chief Operating
Officer,

Quebec Region

Unpaid Claims. and Adjustment Expenses R o

Unpaid claims and adjustment expenses, net of reinsurers’ share (“clalm llabllmes“) at December 31,
2005 decreased by $44.7 million, o 1:3%, to $3,491.1 million in 2005. The main contributing factors |,
were the attrition, as expected, of the acquired Allianz business plus increased transfers to thé
automobile pools of $66.0 million and favourable claims expenence partially offset by an increased

assumed share of pools of $28.0 million.

Claim liabilities, which are measured using_ accepted actuarial practice, take into accourr't_: the time value
of money and provisions for adverse deviation. Changes in these estimates will affect the valuation of -
the claim liabilities. Compared to December 2004, discount rates have been reduced by approximately
25 basis pomt_s, from an average rate of 4.86% to 4.63%, thereby reducing the impact of discounting

in 2005. The amount of the discount as a percentage of claims liabilities decreased from 10.2% at
December 31, 2004 to 9.7% at December 31, 2005. The provisions for adverse deviation were set on a
basis consistent with those used at year-end 2004, The amount of the provision of adverse deviation as a

The claim llablimes used in the tablés below are taken from the;ﬁnancm] staternents, are dlscounted
and include a provision for adverse deviation. The cumulative payments are not discounted and do
not include a provision for adverse deviation. The net effect of the discount rates and the provision for
adverse deviation is that booked claim liabilities are slightly higher than undiscounted best estimates
(by approxlmately 2.0% at year-end 2005 and 1.4% at 2004).

We have taken the posmve claims development for both the- current and prior accident yea.rs into
account in arriving at our best estimate of claim liabilities. The favourable claims development largely
results from cost containment associated with the automobile reforms which appear to be sustainable
and continued low frequency of claims. Both factors have been more favourable than anticipated.

Claims Development ExcludmgAlhanz

Excluding Allianz, the favourable reserve development of all prior accident years during 2005

was $236.9 million, or 8.3% ( $70.5 million in 2004), with every accident year except. 199_8 being
favourable: This development was mainly from automobile insurance in the amount of $201.5 million,
excluding assumed pools. It includes favourable deveiopment on known cases as well as the favourable
impact resulting from the quarterly reserve analysis. Most of the remaining favourable development
came from automobile assumed pools in the amount of $25.7 million, commercial general Hability in
the amount of $17.2 million, which included the positive development of two large claims during Q3
05, and some adverse development on two other large claims during Q4 05. Conversely, we expenenced
$7.7 mllllon of unfavourable development in property.
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The followmg table (whlch excludes Alllanz) shows the development of the claim liabilities for the -

: 10 ‘most: recem accident years w1th subsequent development estimated for each accident year up to
_December 31; 2005, mTlle ongmal reserve: estlmates are re-evaluated over time for redundancy or
deﬁmency This is based on actual payments in full or parual settlement of claims as well as on current

estimatesiof c]axm habnlmes for claims still open or clalms still unreported.

(1nrrmll;ons of dollars) L ' Accident year
‘Excluding Allianz 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1998
P _ &-
; Reserve originally . : '
esaimatxed" . 590435 8149 % 7119 $ 6553 § 607.7 § 5572 § S31.2 § 5472 § 493.4 $1,0735

Cq e,
Reservere-
estima%tedasof ' . :
One year later $ 7892 57500 5 7216 $ 7168 §$ 6077 § 5507 $ 5076 § 4239 § 4473 § 9869

Two years later . 6717 7214 7306 6484 STBI 5089 407.0 4415  9BLS
Three years later : 7079 7296 6642 6074 5042 4215 4452 10155
Four years later ; 7200 6574 6130 5188 4219 4354 9924
Five years later P 6473 6144 5201 4209 4338 9616
Sixyearslater - . 1. - 602.5 5175 4263 4320, 9534
‘Sevenyeaslaer - . C 5228 4246 4179 9559
Eightyearslater” -~ = - . - 423.5 . 4144 - 968.5
‘Nine yejhr:‘s-later UL T e s . 4128 9772
) Cunivilative' -

deﬂcit’:ncy

(redurldancy) (E1S.1) (143.1) (4.0) 647 39.5 453 (84) (123.7) (80.6)- (97:2)
o (12.7%) (17.6%) (0.6%) 9.9% 65% 8.1% (1.6%) (22.6%) (16.3%) (9.1%)
’ Development . . . : .
during2005 of

(12.7%)  (9.6%) (1.9%) (1.5%) (L7%) (22%) 1.0% (0.2%) (0.3%) (0.1%)

Cumulatively, we have experienced favourable developrnent for accident years 2004, 2003, 2002, 1998,
1997, 1996 1995 and prior years and unfavourable development for accident years 2001, 2000 and
1999, ln the years in which unfavourable development occurred, the overall P&C insurance industry
had snrpllarly poor development. This negative development was caused by unexpected changes in claim
-patternjs, in particular in automobile insurance claims in Ontario.

' S(Z369)m|lllon S(IISZ)S (78.3)$ (13.5)8 {95)S ao.ns (12 0)s$ 538 (LLS ll.G)S 0.9) -
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For 2006, our
retention is being
increased to

$25.0
million
with a reinsurance
coverage {imit of

$1.25
billion

Claims Development Relating to Allianz , B :
The table below shows the development of claim liabilities relating to the Allianz aquisigion ﬁ‘,’m”;; .
December 2004 only, as the acquisit@on took place in late 2004. . R . :

(in millions of dollars) o Accident year

Allianz 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
: _ ’ ..

Reserve as of .
December2004 $ 2134 $ 1584 $1267 § 736 § 478 8 299 % 169 % 1005 365 02
Reserve : '
re-estimated
as of . )
December 2005 § 1879 $ 1465 $ 1268 8 71.5 % 474 8 277 % 184 % 1008 23§ 12
Development
during 2005 of
$(40.8) million § (25.6)$ (11.8)S 0.1 § (22)$ (O3S (22)S 168§ (0.0O)sS (13)s 09
(11.9%) (1.5%) 0.1% (2.9%) (0.7%) (13%) 9.4% (0.4%) (36.9%) 408.2%

We had $40.8 million of favourable reserve development in 2005 on an opening balance of $680.5
million in claim liabilities as at December 31, 2004. Automobile insurance excluding pools was the main
contributor with favourable development of $21.4 million as well as pools which added dn additional
$9.8 million in favourable development. -

! ) -
Policy liabilities ceded to reinsurers were $347.8 million at December 31, 2005 and $765.4 million

expenses. As part of the Allianz transaction relating to the AGR business, $508.6 million of policy
liabilities were ceded to reinsurers at the end of 2004, After receiving reguiatory-appfoval, these , _
liabilities were taken over by the Canadian branch of AGR in September 2005. At-December 3 lx, 2005,

~17.7% (December 31, 2004: 11.6%) of the remaining reinsured poiicy liabilities were toINGRe,an - °
affiliate and our main reinsurer. We also have reinsurance treaties with se\‘(elfﬁl.unaﬁ'"lliat_ed reinsurers ’
that meet our financial strength rating Tequirements. P LT

In 2005, for multi-risk events or cathstrophes, our retention was $17.5 million with a reinsurance
coverage limit of $1.2 billion. We also retained 10% of the exposure between $25.0 million and .

$600.0 million. For 2004, our retention was $5.0 million with a coverage limit of $1.2 billion and 10%
retention of the exposure between $12.5 million and $600.0 million. For 2006, our retention is being
increased to $25.0 million with a reinsurance coverage limit of $1.25 billion. In addition we will retain
20.25% of the exposure between $25.0 million and $50.0 million, 10% of the exposure between
$50.0 million and $100.0 million, and 9.5% of the exposure between $100.0 million and $600.0 million,

| Following industry practice, our reinsurance recoverables with licensed Canadian reinsurers

{December 31, 2005; $264.5 million; December 31, 2004: $415.9 million) are generally unsecured
because Canadian regulations require these reinsurers to maintain minimum asset and capital balances
in Canada to meet their Canadian obligations. Policy liabilities, however, take priority over a reinsurer’s

subordinate creditors. .

Reinsurance o ) .
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-Undcr'thc Company s 2005 ]ong-tcrm mccntlvc plau, ccrtam employccs arc awarded pcrformance

that are expe tcd to vest at cach rcpomng pcnod The cstlmatcd number of performance umts was..

ING Canada Inc..

re reinsurance recoverables wtth non-

units: (onc pcrformance unit equa]s one common ‘share) ; as part of their compensation. The number of

' perfonﬂinance umts that w1ll eventually vest at: the end of the three-year perfonnance cycle depends on. K

,,,,,

- cqual to the number of vcstcd shares The Company re-estlmates the number of performance units

1mmg and amount of whjch are inherently .

licensed reinsurers with cash, letters of credit and/or assets-
counts__ __The Company was the a551gned beneﬁclary of such trust accounts from unllcensed- .

*:Addltlonal sources of cash’ ﬂow lnclude the ek




34

The Company has-
ample capital to
support business

growth with
our insurance |
subsidiaries having
capital of

$718.0

million

in excess of

the minimum  } : §

supervisory target. ,Ca"pit'al'.';’ g
The Company has ample capltal to suppon busmess growth w1th our insurance subsndlanes

Denis Guertin
Chief Operating , _ ,
Officer, | Ji 1,028.7 6549 - 430 2334 342.1 51.9 23540

belairdirect bll 5466 2482 142 826 I81.6 174 10906

[b: 4821 4067 287 1508 1605 345 1,263.3
188.2% 263.9% 302.2% 282.6% 188.4% 298.5% 215.8% |
208.8 6 216 1095 697 . 258 TI8N|

msurance laws but is sub_|' _t‘to MCT 11m1tanons
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; The,Board of Dlrectors of the Company declared quarterly cash dwldends of 16 25 cents per ;

: The nature srze and'tlmmg of any ﬁnancmgs wrll depend on. ING Canada’s assessment-of i its credit
and general market condnuons If any securmes covered by the base. shelf prospecms are

uffered for sale a prospectus supplement contammg speciﬁc mformatmn about the use of the proceeds
and the terms of these securmes w1ll be provrded :

On Segtember 12, 2005 ING Canada announced that holders of its common shares and potential
mvestdrs would be able to. reinvest thelr dlwdends in add1t10nal shares of the Company through
a d1v1dend reinvestment plan admrm stered through the Company S transfer agent or through a

) co~operatwe mvestmg serv:ce admlmste d b Can dian ShareOwner Inveslmeuts Inc Comm:ssmns

"t reafﬁrmed our- ﬁnancial strength ratmg

of Canada and Trafalgar lnsurance <

- After

1-3 .y::eal;l..c';:'lt_-s Y.‘;'.l_lll_ 5 ye_m“‘-::.- :
7L L U8BTi
181 . 3197

2140 $ 1'315'2*$~ 3'89"2:$ '“lit)s”}f?
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" infixed income securrtaes Our exposure to: forelgn exchange nsk is not srgruﬁcant 'We have no-direct
: cornmodlty nsk ‘ R SR

mformanon on related party transactrons

¢

Rlsk Management

As a prov1der of i msurance products effective risk management is fundamental to our abllrty to protect
the! mterests of both our customers.and our’ shareholders We are exposed to potentlal loss from vanous :
market risks, including interest rate: and equity’ market ﬂuctuatton risk, credtt nsk quu1d1ty risk, and to .

a lesser extent foreign currency nsk and denvanve nsk o

MorketRis , o
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rate nd pnces such as. mterest:; -
rates, forelgn currency exchange rates, and other relevant marl(et rate or pnce changes Market riskis”;

dlrectly mﬂuenced by the volatllrty and hquldtty m the markets in whlch the related underlymg assets _ :W

The pnmary market nsk to the mvestment portfoho is mterest rate nsk'ass ociated wrth mvestments :

i

Durmg 2005 for our mvestment portfoho there wete no srgmﬁcant changes in our prrmary rnarket nsk
exposures or in how those. exposires are managed compared to the year ended December 31, 2004
" As: prevrously noted begmnmg ift 2006 we will begm usmg derivatives to support the management

' of duration in ouf ﬁxed mcome portfoho Thls will siot srgmﬁcantly change the nsk but does expand :7

“the opttons for dealmg wrth mterest rate; nsk For the remamder of the prrmary market nsk we do not

changes in realtzed and unreallzed gams and losses Generaily, our tnvestment mcome wril be reduced
durmg sustained penods of lower interest rates as higher yteldmg fixed i mcome securmes are called
mature or are sold-and the: proceeds are reinvested at lower rates. During pertods of rising interest rates
the market: value of our existing fixed i income securities will generally decrease and our realtzed gains.

on ﬁxed income securities will lrkely be reduced Reahzed losses will be 1ncurred followmg srgmﬁcant

increases in interest rates.




Generally, declining interest rates result.in unrealized gains in the value of fixed income secuﬁties we
continue to hold, as well as realized gains to the extent the relevant securities are sold: General ecohomic
conditions, political conditions and many other factors can also adversely affect the stock markets and,
consequently, the value of the equtty securities we own.

"Credit Risk

Credit {'isk is the possibility that counterparties may not be able to meet payment obligations when they
become due. We assume counterparty credit risk in many forms. A counterparty is any person or entity
from w'hich cash or other forms of consideration are expected to extinguish a liability or obligation to us.
Our credlt risk exposure is concentrated primarily in our fixed income and preferred share mvestment
portfohos and, to a lesser extent, in our reinsurance recoverables,

Our nsk management strategy and mvestment policy is to invest in debt instruments of high credit
quality.issuers and to limit the amount of credit exposure with respect to any one issuer. We attempt to
limit our credit exposure by imposing fixed income portfolio limits on individual corporate issuers based
upon credit quality. Currently, our fixed income paortfolio limits are 3% for issuers rated “AA-" and
above, 2% for issuers rated “A-" to “*A+", 1% for issuers rated “BBB-",to “BBB+", 0.34% for issuers
rated “BB-" to “BB+" and 0.19% for insurers rated “B-" to “B+". We use the lower of Dominion Bond
Rating Service Limited or S&P ratings to determine an issuer’s ratmg These constraints may be revised
from time to time as we deem appropriate.

Foreigh Exchange Risk
Forelgn exchange risk i is the possibility that changes in exchange rates produce an unintended-effect -
on eammgs and equity ‘when measured in domestic currency. This risk is largest when assets backing

, l:abllmes are payable in one currency and are invested i in financial mstnlments of another currency.

We are’ exposed to some foreign exchange nsk arising from the investment in some ot' our U.S. dollar-
denomlnated assets, Invested assets denominated in U.S. dollars were 0.7% of our total mvested assets
at December 31, 2005 (0. 9% at December 31, 2004), Our general pollcy 1510 mlmm.lze forelgn currency
exposure I : SN el
We mltllgate foreign exchange rate risk by buymg or sellmg successive monthly forelgn exchange
forward contracts. Foreign exchange forward contracts are commitments to-buy or seIl forelgn
CU.lTeI'lCleS for delivery at a specified date in 'the future ata fixed rate. Forward contracts are transacted
in over—the-eounter markets. The notional amount of these forward contracts approxlmates the market
value of the foreign denominated investments covered by these contracts.

Derivatlves ,
Our use of derivatives exposes us to a number of risks mcludlng cash flow risk and replacemeut cost
risks. However, we do not use a significant quantity of derivatives.

Cash ﬂ(ow risk is the risk that future cash flows associated with a monetary financial instrument will
fluctuate in amount. We mitigate cash flow risk by entering into foreign exchange swaps, whereby
forelgn denominated principal and fixed interest receipts are sold in exchange of Canadlan dollam
These swaps are transacted in over-the-counter markets.

o b e e na o n
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The noticnal amount of these swaps approximates the nominal value of the foreign denominated
investments covered by.these,s'waps.

" The replacement cost of exchange-traded denvauve ﬁnanctal instruments is: based on quoted market

rates. The replacement cost of over-the-counter derivative ﬁnanc1a1 instruments is an estimate and is
determined using valuation models that incorporate prevailing foreign exchange rates, 1nterest rates,
market rates and pnces on underlymg instruments with srmtlar maturities and charaetensnes

The replacement cost reflects the estimated amount that we would have received or might-have had
to pay to terminate the instruments as at December 31, 2005 See Note 5 to our audlted consoltdated
ﬁnam:tai statements. _ N )

 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions” .

Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial
statements, The preparation of our financial statements ifi accordance with GAAP requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our financial statements. These estimates
and assumptions principally relate to the establishment of reserves for claims and expenses, impairments
of investment securities, amounts recoverable from our reéinsurers, goodwill and incorne taxes. As

more information becomes known, these estimates and assumptions could change and impact future

-results. The above noted esttmates and assumptions regarding reserves for claims and expenses and
-amounts recoverable from our remsurers will impact our personal and commercial i msurance ‘segment; -

impairments of i mvestment securmes will impact the realized investment and other gaitis segment; and
goodwill wnlI impact our personal and commercial as well as the corporate and other segment. The
most s1gn|ﬁcant estimates and assumptions we make in prepanng our financial statements are described
below,

Policy Liabilities

" Policy liabilities consist of provrsrons for claim llabllmes and premtum liabilities.

: 'Clalm liabilities are mamtamed to cover our esttmated ultifnate ltablltty for: losses and ioss adJustment
=expenses with respect to reported and unreported claims mcurred as-of the end of each aecountmg

period. The provision for unpaid ¢laims and adjustment expenses is first determined on a-case-by-

case basis as claims are reoorted and then reassessed as additional information beeomes___l%nown. The
provision also accounts for the future development of these claims including claims incurred but not
reported. Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent estimates
developed using projection techniques in accordance with Canadian accepted actuarial préactice. These
reserve estimates are expectations of the ultimate cost of settlement and administration of clatrns based

On our assessment. of facts and circumstances then’ known our review of hlstortcal settle 1
estlmates of trends in clalms seventy and frequency, legal theones of liability and other -factors

Vanables in the reserve-estimation process can be aﬁ'ected by both mtemal and external events, such as

changes in claims handling procedures, economic inflation, legal trends andzleglslatwe changes. Many
of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis. Additional!y, there may
be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured event and the time.it is actually
reported to the insurer. Reserve estimates are refined in-a systematic ongoing process as historical

loss experience develops and additional claims are reported and settled. Because the establishment of




ING Canada Inc. 39

reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates, current reserves may not be sufficient..
- Adjustments to reserves, both positive and negative, are reflected in the statement of income of the -

eriod in which such estimate

value éf money. It also includes a provision for adverse deviation, as required by Canadian accepted
actuarial practice. The appointed actuary of our P&C insurance subsidiaries, using appropriate actuarial
technidues evaluates the adequacy of our policy liabilities,

i
Premium liabilities are consrdered adequate when the uneamed prermum reserve (after deducting any
deferred acquisition cost asset) is at least equal to the present value, at the balance sheet date, of cash

~flow of the claims, expenses and taxes to be incurred after that date on account of the policies in force
at that !date or at an earlier date, Deferred acquisition costs comprise commissions, premium_ taxes and
expensles directly related to the acquisition of premiums. They are deferred to the extent that they are
recoverable from unearned premiums, afier considering the related anticipated claims, expenses and
investment income in respect of these premiums. Deferred acqmsmon costs are amortized on the same
basis as the premtums are recogmzed in income.

+

A premrum deficiency would be recogmzed immediately by a charge to the statement of income as a
reduction of deferred acquisition costs to the extent that the unearned premiums reserve, plus anticipated
investrhent income, are not-adequate to recover all deferred acquisition costs and related claims and

: expenses If the premium deﬁcrency was greater than unamortlzed deferred acqulsltron costs a habrllty

would be accrued for the exces ' deﬁcrenoy L
< B I
'Investments

We obtam values for actwely traded securities from external pncmg sérvices. For private placements,
commercral mortgages and a small number of infrequently traded securities, we obtain quotes from
brokerf or we estimate values using internally deve]oped pricing models. These models are based on
common valuation techniques and require us to make assumpttons regarding credit quality, liquidity
and other factors that affect estlmatcd values.

Impamnent of investment secuntres results in a charge to earnings when a market decline in the value of
an mvestment to below cost is other tha.n temporary. Our methodology to identify potential impairments

of 25% or greater of the book value where that unrealized loss has been outstanding for more than six
months. Members of our investment and accounting departments meet quarterly to assess impairments
and report quarterly to the Investment Committee on important investments that are included on a
“Watch-list”. Management assesses which of these securities are other than temporarily impaired.
Assessinent factors include, but are not limited to, the financial condition and rating of the issuer of the
security, any collateral held and the length of time the market value of the security has been below cost.
" Any iﬁpéirments are recognized when the assessment concludes that there is objective evidence of

temporarily impaired is written’down to its expected recoverable amount, with the amount of the write
-down reflected in our statement of income for that quarter. Previously impaired securities continue to:be
- monitored quarterly, with addmonal write downs taken quarterly if necessary

e e ——— e e e

" The proviston for unpaid claims and adjustment expensee is discounted to take into account the time *

4
- requires professronal Judgment and places partlcular emphasm on-those securities with unrealized losses .

_ impairment. Each quarter; any security with an unrealized loss that is determined to have been other than *
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There are inherent risks and uncertainties involved.in makmg these judgments. Changes i

* circumstances and critical assumptlons such as a weak economy, a. pronounced economlc downtum
or unforeseen events which affect one or more companies or industry sectors could re_sul; in additional
write downs in future periods for impairments that are ‘de¢med to be other than temporary. See also

_ Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial statements foi;"a description of our impairment policies.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance recoverables include amounts for expected recoveries related to claims liabilities as

well as the portion of the reinsurance premium which has not yet been earned. The cost of reinsurance
is accounted for over the terms of the underlying reinsured policies using assumptions consistent

with those used to .account for the policies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated ina .
manner consistent with claim and claim adjustment expense reserves and are reported iq'ouf audited
consolidated balance sheet. The ceding of insurance does.not dischafge our primary liability to our
insureds. An estimated allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded on the basis of periodic evaluations
of balances due from reinsurers, reinsurer selvency, management g experience and current economic
conditions.

Goodwill

Under GAAP, goodwill is not amortized but is tested annually for impairment of value on.a reporting
unit basis, Managemeﬁt’s.judgment is required to identify reporting units with similar economic
characteristics and to select an appropriate valuation model. In the P&C insurance brokerage industry
and the P&C insurance industry, it is common for companies to be acquired at a multiple of revenue or
book value, adjusted for net assets other than intangibles. A range of values used to evaluate-the multiple
is developed using discounted cash flow valuation techniques. Accordingly, we assess the carrying value
of our net assets on this basis. Any impairment identified through this assessment is charged to income
as a result of a reduction in the carrying value of the goodwill. :

Income Taxes

We use the liability method whereby income taxes reflect the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences betiveen the carrying amounts of financial statement assets.and llabﬂmes
compared with their respective tax bases. Accordingly, a future tax asset or liability is detennmed
for each temporary difference based on the income tax expenses that are expected to be in effect
when the underlying items of revenue and expenses are expected to be realized.

Future income taxes accumulated as a resuli of temporary differences are included in the audited
consolidated balance sheet. In addition, the audited consolidated statement of income contains items that
are non-taxable or non-deductible for income tax purposes, which cause the income tax expense to differ
from what it would be if based on statutory tax ratés. v

Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption

As a result of the adoption-of a long-term incentive plan for certain employees and a deferred stock unit
plan for mdependent directors, the Company adopted the recommendations of the Canadiai Institute of
Chartered Accountants’ Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based
Payments” effective January 1, 2005. Section 3870 sets a fair value-based method of accountmg for all
stock-based compensatmn

The Company also amplemented the requirements of the éICA’s Accounting Guideline '.19, “Disclosures
by Entities Subject to Rate Regulation™, '
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In 200,5 the Company cﬁanged its definition of cash equivalents in order to better align itself with
prevallmg industry practice. The-Company now defines cash equivalents as highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into a known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and have a maturity date of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Prev1ously, cash equlvalents were defined in reference to a maturity date of three months orless from

the audlted consolldate balance sheet dates. The change has no impact on the Company s audlted
consolidated statements of income but results in a reclassification of $274.7 million between cash
equwalents and investments in the 2004 audited consolidated balance sheet

Notes 2, 17 and 20 to our audrted consolrdated financial statements further describe. these

accountmg changes

‘Dnsciosure Co___"' d ro‘cg_:_d:rés--.:._. SR e

The Company is commnted to prov1dmg nmely, accurate and balanced disclosure: of all matenal
mformatlon about the Cornpany and to providing fair and equal access to such mformatlon

The Company s management is responsible for establlshlng and maintaining the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures to ensure that information used internally and disclosed externally is complete
and rehable

- Due td the inherent limitations in all control systems, an evaluation of controls can provide only ‘

reasonable, not absolute assurance, that all control issues and instances of fraud or error, if any,
w1thm the Company have been detected. The Company continues to evolve and enhance its system
of controls and procedures

Management at the direction and under the supervision of the Chief Executive Oﬂicer and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company ] drsclosure controls
and procedures Lo

Thrs evaluatlon conﬁrmed sub_]ect to the mherent limitations noted above, the effectlveness of the:

desrgn and operatlon ’o closure controls: ‘and procedures as at December 31, 2005, The evaluation

was conducted n accordance with the requlrements of Multilateral Instrument 52- 109 of the Canadian
matenal information relatlng to the Company and its subsidiaries is reported to it on a trrnely basis so
that it may. provrde investors with complete and’ rellable mformatlon ‘

Recent Dev.elo'pmentsf )

In the fourth quiarter, the Quebec financial services sector regulator, the Autorité des marchés financiers
(AMF!), concluded its investigation initiated in March 2005 in relation to the business practices of the
P&C industry, inciuding ING Canada affiliates in Quebec. The AMF investigation did not find that

any fraudu]ent act was committed, nor that any customers of the brokerages represented by Equisure
Flnancml Network Inc. (Eqmsure) suffered harm or damages. However Equisure agreed that disclosure
practices needed improvements with regard to disclosure to customers of brokerage ownership and
portfollo transfers and agreed to review its corporate structures. Equisure also agreed to pay a sum of .

50.8 mllhon, whrch included the investigation costs mcurred by the regulator.
5

‘ Domrmon Bond Rating Service assrgned an A (low) ratmg to the long-term senior unseeured debt

of the Company on February 20 2006
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internal auditors review and evaluate the system of mtemal control.
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MAN:C\(:SEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Manag[ement is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidated ﬁnancml statements
of ING Canada Inc. and its subsndlanes, collectively known as “the Company”. This responmbnhty
mcludel:s selecting appropriate accounting policies and makmg estimates and informed judgments based
on the amlclpated impact of current transactions, events and trends, consistent with Canadlan generally ‘
accepted accounting principles. :

" In meetmg its responsibility for the reliability of consohdated financial statements, the Company
.mamtams and relies on a comprehensive system of internal control comprising organizational procedural

controls and internal accounting controls. The Company's system of internal control includes the
commlilmcatlon of policies and of the Company’s Code of Conduct, comprehenswe business planning,
proper segregauon of duties, delegatlon of authority for transactions and personal accountability,
seleetu'm and training of personnel, safeguarding of assets and maintenance of records. The Company’s

’

The Company s Board of Directors, acting through the Audit and Risk Review Comrmttee which

is composed entirely of Directors, who are neither officers nor employees of the Company, oversees ° '
management s responsibility for the design and operation of effective financial reporting and internal
controi sjrstems, the preparation and presentatior: of financial 'information z_md the management of

risk areas.

The Audlt and Risk Review Committee conducts such review and i inquiry of management and the
mtemal and external auditors as it deems necessary to establish that the Company employs an appropriate
systeni of internal control, adheres to legislative and regulatory requirements and applies the Company’s
Code of Conduct. The internal and external auditors, as well as the Actuary, have full and unrestricted
aecesslto the Audit and Risk Review Commrttce, with and without the presence of management

Pursuant to the Insurance Compames Actof Canada orto Quebec s Part 1A of the Compames Act
(“the Acts”) the Actuary, who is a member of management, is appointed by the Board of Directors.
The Actuary is responsible for discharging the various actuarial responsibilities required by the Acts
and conducts a valuation of policy liabilities, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted actuarial
standatrds', reporting his results to management and the Audit and Risk Review Committee.

The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada for the federally regulated property
and calsualty (*P&C*) subsidiaries and L’ Autorité des Marchés Financiers for the Quebec regulated
P&C subsidiary make such examinations and inquiries into the affairs of the P&C subsidiaries as
deemed necessary.

The Company’s external auditors, Emst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, are appointed by the
shareholders to.conduct an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and mieet separately with both management and the Audit and Risk Review Committee to discuss the
results of their audit, financial reporting and related matters. The auditors’ report to shareholders
appeall's on page 44, - :

ol A7 fJZ/ & %
| .
Claude Dussault Michael W. Cunningham
President and Chief Executive Officer ‘ Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer




AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: the Shareholders of ING Canada Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of ING Canada Inc. (the “Company”) as at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s managetﬁent. Our responsibility is to exprgsé an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. - '

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally acceijled auditing standards. Those

 standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statemt_énts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements preseﬁt fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the‘C.ompany as at December 3 1,2005 and 2004 and the results of its
operations a;nd its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
éccepted accountiﬁg principles. l_-* | '

w . ?dﬁn?/ AP
Toronto, Canada Ernst &‘ Young LLP '
February 13, 2006 Chartered Accountants




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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December 31

Asat . December 31
(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Assets J o :
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 2 and 3) $ 341,138 5 82,473
Investments (note 4) 6,720,965 6,285,145
Accrued fnvestment income 50,100 43,266
Due fr(I)rnl affiliated companies (note 8) 230 .-
Premlum ‘and other receivables 1,518,511 1,642 362

‘ Remsu‘rers share of unpald claims

and loss adjustment expenses (notes 6 and 7) 330,519 687,201
Reinsulfelis' share of unearned premiums (notes 6 and 7) 17,279 78,199
Deferred acquisition costs 381 ,992 389,688
Income taxes receivable _ 55, 684‘_ 2,591
Other sliss:ets note 11) 182 119;_. 127,543
Long-tlén:n investments (nots 14) - 741,587 | 48,108
Future lim;ome tax asset (note 9) ‘3 141 101 148,488
Intangiblé assets (note 10) _ -~ 36, 948 36,944
Goodwill (note 10) .: , » ‘; 108,362 . 91,116
| :4 199926535 5 9,663,124

Liabilities SRR
Payables and other liabilities S 815,674 3 669,604
Due to affiliated companies (note 8) ; 2,968 3,025
Income taxes payable 67,705 100,913
Unpald claims and loss adjustment expenses (note 6) 3,821,609 4,222,961
- Unearned premiums (note 6) 2,194,837 2,340,997
Unearned reinsurance commissions ‘ 4,129 9,785
" Debt oLtstanding (note 15) 127,000 256,230

| ' 7,033,922 7,603,515
Shareholders’ equity _ .
Share capital (note 16) 1,183,846 1,052,290
Contributed surplus 89,713 83,336
Retained earnings 1,619,054 923,983
| | 2,892,613| 2,059,609
| | s 9,926,535 |

% 9,663,124

{ . . .
" See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

On beh alf of The Board

Director Director .

Claude Dussault !van Duvar




CONSOQOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31 December 31
(in thousands of dollars except for per share amounts) 2008 2004
Direct premiums written $ 3,575,900
Net premiums written $ 3,608,990
Revenue :
Net premiums eamned "~ % 3,364,563
Investment income (note 14) 267,000
Realized investment and other gains 132,418
Commissions and advisory fees 16,905
' 3,780,886
Expenses
Claims and loss adjustment expenses 1,905,545
Commissions (note 8) ' 614,379
Premium taxes’ 116,794
General expenses 276,681
2,913,399
Interest on debt outstanding il,?lS
Inceme before income taxes 855,772
Income taxes (aote9)
Current 270,469
Future (38,849)
231,620
Net Income § 624152
Earnings per share (note 18) .
Basic ' $ 6.51
Diluted $ 6.49

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF'CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
i ‘ : ' -

For the lyez;m ended December 31 December 31
(in thousands of dollars). 2005 2004 "
Share l:a;llital ' }
Balance, lI)eginning of year $ 605905
Cbm?n shares issued (note 16)' : 906,880
. Reductlion of capital (note 16) ! (428,684)
Share issuance costs, net of income taxes (31,811)
Balanc!e, J:nd of year | 1,052,290
Cpntri'bu:ted surplus ‘ o
Ba!ancle, beginning of year l 83,336
Stock-based compensation (note 17) - -
'Balancfe, énd of year - 83,336
Retain‘edl earnings . .
Balance, beginning of year I 299,831
~ Net income ' ' 624,152
' Dividelnd!s paid ' -
Other | ! -
Balance, énd of year 923,983
L
Total sfha!reholders’ equity

b . o .
Sec accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
i 3 N

$ 2,059,609




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended ' .- B . December 31 December 31

(in thousands of dollars) ‘ : 2005 2004
Operating aétivities - o
Net income S 624,152
Adjustments to determine cash provided by operating activities: -
Amortization of property and equipment 12,685
Amortization of intangible assets - 305
Amortization of net premiums on fixed income securities 16,813
Net income from long-térm investments ' | L (8;098)
Dividends received from long-term investments 7,795
Realized investment and other gains (132,418)
" Decrease in loan provision - -
Deferred acquisition costs, net (64,571)
Future income taxes, net (38,135)
Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses, net 573,537
‘Unearned premiums, net } 244,427
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities 155,756
Stock-based compensation -
" Cash provided by operating activities 1,392,248
Investing activities.
Proceeds from sale of investments 12,601,021
" Purchase of investments- (13,701,019)
Purchase of property and equipment, net (14,215)
Purchase of brokerages and books of business (note 19) a -
Sale of brokerages and book of business -
Net cash used in the acquisition of Allianz ' {359,312)
Proceeds from sale of long-term investments and other, net 6,615

Cash used in investing activities

Y (1,466,910)

Financing activities

Dividends paid -
Debt repayment - (226,852)
Proceeds from capital issuance 906,380
* Share issuance costs (48,344)
Reduction of capital (428,684)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities 203,000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ' 128,338
Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft), beginning of year (45,865}
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ' $ 82473
Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes paid $ 243,781
Interest paid on debt outstanding 13,433

See sccompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousani:is of dollars except for per share a.mount_s)
- | . : o ' . ,

1. Status of the Company - " !

ING Canada Inc. (the “Company”)} was incorporated under the Canada Busmess Corporatrons Act,
The Company has investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries which operate principally in the Canadian
property and casualty (“P&C") insurance market. The Company'’s significant subsidiaries are ING

- Insurance Company of Canada (“ING Insurance”), The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada, ING

Novex'Insurance Company of Canada, Belair Insurance Company Inc. and Equisure Financial Network
Inc., as well as Allianz of Canada, Inc. and lts principal subsidiaries, Allianz Insurance Company of
Canada, Trafalgar Insurance Company of Canada and Canada Brokerlink Inc., which were acquired
pursuant to a share and loan purchase agreement, dated October 7, 2004, with Allianz AG and Allianz
of America, Inc. (“Allianz AG™) to acquire most of Allianz AG’s operations in Canada (“Allianz”)

(note 19). The agreement was effectrve November 30, 2004 and was completed on December 8, 2004.

The Company is the resulting corporatlon from the amalgamation on December 10, 2004 of ING -
Canada Holdmgs Inc. and its former subsnirary, ING Canada Inc. The amalgamation is presented on

a contmurty of interest-basis, as if the hlstoncal ﬁnanc1a1 position and operating results of these
compames had always been amalgamated. Immediately pnor to the amalgamation, the share caprtal

of ING Canada Holdings Inc. was reduced and all of the previously issued and outstanding preferred
sharesiwere redeemed in exchange for promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $687,766.

The Company completed an initial public o'ﬂ'crin'g (*IPO") on December 15, 2004, pursuant to the filing
of a prospectus dated December 9, 2004, As a result of the offering, 34,880,000 common shares were
issued at $26.00 per share for proceeds of $858,536, net of underwriters’ fees and other expenses.
Pursuant to the underwriters’ agreement in relation to the prospectus, the underwriters were granted an
ovcr—allotment option to purchase 5,232, 000 additional common shares at the offering price within thirty
days ﬁfom the date of the offering. The optron was exercised in full in January 2005, generatrng net
proceeids of $129,230 (note 16). The Company used net proceeds generated by the IPO and the exercise
of the over-allotment option to fully repay the prormssory notes issued prior to the amalgamation.

Subsequent to the closing of the oﬂ'ermg and the exercise of the ovet-allotment option, ING Groep
N.V. (‘[‘ING Groep”) both as the owner of 70% of the Company’s outstanding common shares and the
Speciat Share (note 16) and as a party to the Co-Operation Agreement (the “Agreement”) has substantlal
mﬂuenlce over the ongoing business and operation of the Company. The Agreement provides, among
other things, that for so long as ING-Groep holds not less than one-third of the Company s outstanding
common shares, the Company may not carry out certain corporate acts, including entering into business
comblnauons with unaffiliated third parties or making acquisitions or dispositions above certain
monetary thresholds or changing the leldend policy without the prior written approval of ING Groep.

\ 1

2. Summary_of Significant Accounting Policies
These consolidated financial statéments have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian GAAP requires management to make assumptions and estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, the reported
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amounts of revenue and expenses for the years presented, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. These estimates are subject to uncertainty. Significant estimates include the '
determination of impairment losses (notes 4 and 10), policy liabilities (note 6), income taxes (note 9),
employee future benefits (note 13), stock-based compensation (note 17), the allocation of the purchase
price (note 19) and contingenciés (note 21). Changes in estimates are recorded in the accounting period
in which these changes are determined. ‘

Further, the accounting policies used to prepare the financial statements of the Company’s regulated
insurance subsidiaries must also comply with the account{ng requirements of their respective regulators.
The significant accounting policies used in preparing these consolidated financial statements, including
those specified by the insurance regulators are, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian

- GAAP and are summarized below. These policies have been consistently applied.

(a) Significant ﬁccuunting changes

Stock-based compensation

In 2005, as a result of the adoption of a Long—Tefm Incentive Plan for certain employees and a Deferred
Share Unit Plan for independent directors (note 17), the Company adopted the recommendations of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (*CICA”) Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”, which requires that stock-based compensation
awards to non-employees, direct awards of stock, awards that call for settlement in cash or other assets
or stock appreciation right awards to employees be recognized on a fair value basis as an expense.
Unider this policy, the fair value of the eamed or awarded amounts is estimated on the grant date and
such amount is recorded as a compensation expense over the related vesting period with a correspondmg
increase to contnbuted surplus for those awards granted to employees and to liabilities for directors.

Rate regulation

In 2003, the Company implemented the disclosure and presentation requirements contained in the CICA’s
Accounting Guideline 19, “Disclosures by Entities Subject to Rate Regulation”. The objective of this
guideline is to ensure that the users of the financial statements of entities providing services or products
for whichi customer rates are established, or subject to approval, by a regulator or a governing body
empowered by statute or contract to set rates are better informed about the existence, nature and effects of
all forms of rate regulation, The guideline requires companies to disclose general information useful to
an understanding of the nature and economic effects of rate regulation (note 20) and, if applicable, §peciﬁc
information when rate regulation has affected the accounting for a transaction or event. '

Cash and cash equivalents '

~ In 2005, the Company changed its definition of cash equivalents in order to allgn itself with prevailing

disclosure practices. The Company now defines cash equivalents as highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into a known amount of cash; are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and have a maturity date of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Previously, cash
equivalents were defined in reference to a maturity date of three months or less from the consolidated
balance sheet dates. The change has no impact on the Company’s consolidated statements of income
but results in a reclassification of $274,740 between cash equivalents and investments in the 2004

consolidated balance sheet.

-~
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The in:1péct of this change on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31 ,

2004 i;s as follows:
|
Year eﬁde_d December 31, 2004 . ) Previously Restated Impact of
reported amount restatement

¥
1. .
Amortl:zatlon of net premiums

on ﬁlxe'd income securities 5 19224 § 16813 § (2,411)
Procec'}ds from sale of investments 10,743,137 12,601,021 1,857,884
Purchase of investments ' (11,721,330)  (13,701,019) (1,979,689)

1 .
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3 252,554 § 128338 . 3§ (124,216)

Employee furure beneﬁts . .

In 2004 the Company adopted the provisions of the CICA’s amended Handbook Section 3461
“Employee Future Benefits”, which requires additional disclosures for employment future benefit
plans as disclosed in note 13.

Accouifiti.ng Jor non-hedging derivative financial instruments

In 200|4, the Company adopted the provisions contained in the CICA Emerging Issues Committee

EIC 1%8, “Accounting for Trading, Speculative or Non-Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments”,
which require that freestanding derivative financial instruments, including those that are not designated
or effective as part of a hedging relationship be recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as other
assets or oth?r liabilities and measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the
consoliidéted statements of income.

The impact of these changes is not significant to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Basis of consolidation ‘
The Company consolidates the financial statements of all subsidiary companies and eliminates on
consolidation all significant inter-company balances and transactions. The equity method is used to

: account for investments over which the Company exerts significant influence. Gains and losses on sales

of thesle investments are included in income when rccogmzed while expected losses on “other-than-
temporary” impairments are recognized lmmedlately.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or

less from the date of acquisition. They are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
! .
(@) lnvestments and investment income

Short- term notes with a maturity of more than three momhs from the date of acquisition are carried
at amortized cost which approximates fair value and are amortized on an effective yield basis. Fixed
income securities are recorded at amortized cost, providing for the amortization of premiums and
discounts in the consolidated statements of income on an effective yield basis. Shares and trust units
are rec{orded at cost. Loans are presented net of an allowance for loan losses.

The book value of an investment is written down and the write down is reflected in the consolidated
statements of income when there is evidence of an “other-than-temporary” decline in the value of
an investment. '
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Interest income is recognized as earned and dividends are recognized on the ex-dividend date. Gains and .

losses on disposition are recorded in the consolidated statements of income when investments are sold

and are calculated based on average cost.

{e) Fon;eign currency translation _

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses arising from a foreign currency transaction are translated into
Canadian dollars using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency are adjusted to reflect the exchange rate at December 31 and the
foreign currency adjustments are reflected in the consolidated statements of income. Realized gains and
losses on foreign currency transactions are recognized in the consolidated statements of income at the
transaction date.

(ﬁ Financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments solely for risk management purposes. Derivatives
used are forward contracts and swap agreements. All derivative financial instruments are recognized in
the consolidated balance sheets and are measured at fair value, with changes in the fair value reflected in
the consolidated statements of income,

Preferred shares which were fully redeemed in 2004 (note 1) were classified .as debt outstanding due
to a contractual obligation of the issuer either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder
or to exchange another financial instrument with the holder under conditions that were potentially.
unfavourable to the issuer. Any dividends paid on these shares would have been charged to the
consolidated statements of income.

{g) Revenue recognition

Premiums written or assumed are deferred as unearned premiums and recognized as revenue on a pro
rata basis over the terms of the underlying policies, usually twelve months and no longer than twenty-
four months, Commission income and advisory fees are recorded on an accrued basis.

(h) Policy liabilities .

Policy liabilities consist of unearned premiums and unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses.
Uneamed premiums are calculated as the unexpired portion of the premiums written on a pro rata basis.
Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses are first determined on a case-by-case basis as claims are
reported and then reassessed as additional information becomes known. Included in unpaid claims and
loss adjustment expenses is a provision to account for the future development of these claims, including
claims incurred but not reported, as well as a provision for adverse deviations, as required by accepted
actuarial practice in Canada. Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses are discounted to take into
account the time value of money.

The Actuary, using appropriate actuarial techniques, evaluates the adequacy of policy liabilities.

(i) Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs comprise commissions, premium taxes and exﬁenses directly related to the
acquisition of premiums. They are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable from uneamed
premiums, after considering the related anticipated claims, expenses and investment income in respect
of these premiums. They are amortized on the same basis as the premiums are recognized in the
consolidated statements of income,
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(j) Reinsitrance

The Cnm]iany presents third party reinsurance balances in the consolidated balance sheets on a
gross basis to indicate the extent of credit risk related to third parfy reinsurance and its obligations
to poliéyholders and on a net basis in the consolidated statements of income. The estimates for the
rcinsurlers’ share of unpaid claims and loss adjustment expénses are presented as an asset and are
determinéd on a basis consistent with the related unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses.

k) Property and equipment

‘ Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amomzatlon rates are

cstabilshed to depreciate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Amortization mcthods
and rates are shown below.

i,
1
{ l Method Rate or term -
Buildilll1gs : : Declining balance 3% -8% -
Computet equipment  Staightline .. 30-36months
Fumiture and equipment Declining balance 20%
Leasch_ol{i improvements Straight-line Terms of related leases

(] Emplnyee future benefits

For defined benefit pension and other retirement plans, the accrued benefit obligations, net of the falr
value of plan assets and unamortized items, are accrued. The unamortized items are the past service cost,
the t'rarllsitional asset/obligation, the transitional valuation allowance and the net aétuarial gains or losses.
To match costs and services, these items are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average
remammg service lifetime (“EARSL") of active members expected to recewe benefits under the plans.
Changes in the valuation allowance are not deferred.

For each plan, the Company has adopted the following polici&slz

0 The actuarial determination of the accrued obligations for pensions and other retirement benefits uses
the pro;ected benefit method based on services prowded by employees and management’s best
estlmate assumptions.

) For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets plan assets are valued at fair value. '

- G Onlly gains or losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued beneﬂt obhganons or the fair

value of plan assets are amortized over the EARSL.

W) Past service costs arising from plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
EARSL

™ The Company amortizes the transitional asset/obligation arising from the adoption on January 1, 2000
of the CICA Handbook Section 3461 using the prospective application method on a straight-line basis
ovcr the EARSL as of January 1, 2000,

tvi) Whlel:l the restructuring of a benefit plan gives rise to both a curtailment and a settlement of
obligations, the curtailment is ‘accounted for prior to the settlement.




{m) Income taxes .

The Company provides for income taxes using the liability method of tax allocation. Under this method,
the income tax expense is calculated based on income tax laws and rates substantively enacted as at the
consolidated balance sheet dates. The income tax expense is comprised of two components: current
income taxes and future income taxes. Current income taxes are amounts expected to be payable or
recoverable as a result of operations in the current year. Future income taxes-arise from changes during
the year in cumulative temporary differences between the accounting book values of assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases, A future income tax asset is recogmzed to the extent that future realization
of the tax benefit is more likely than not.

(n) Goodwill and intangible assets

. For acquisitions completed subsequent to July 1, 2001, the excess of the purchase price over the fair

value of the underlying net tangible assets is initially allocated to intangible assets, as appropriate, and
the residual to goodwill. An intangible asset is recognized apart from goodwill when it results from
contractual or other legal rights or when it is capable of being separated or divided from the acquired
enterprise and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. Finite life intangible assets are amortized
to the consolidated statements of income over their useful lives whereas infinite life intangible assets
and gobdwill are not subject fo amortization. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment of value on

a reporting unit basis. Judgment is required to identify reporting units with similar economic
characteristics and to select a valuation model. Accordingly, the Company assesses the book value of

its net assets on this basis. Impairment, if any, identified through this assessment is charged to the
consolidated statements of income as a result of a reduction in the book value of the goodwill.

(0) Earnlngs per share
Earnings per share are computed by dmdmg net income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share

_reflect the potential dilution that could occur if the holders of securities or contracts entitling them

to obtain common shares in exchange for their securities or contracts exercised their right to obtain
common shares.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 2005, the Company had $492,207 in cash equivalents (2004 - $162,291). Cash
equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value. They are presented net of bank overdrafts in the consolidated balance sheets.

N
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4. Investm_ents ’
J

Table 4;1
o Gross Gross
P ‘Book Fair unrealized unrealized
| - _ value value gains losses
Short-term notes® $ 440435 'S 440,435 S - s -
Fixed inc:ome securitles® ) k
i Inve'stnﬁent grade
'J: Government and ‘ E = - .
go;vci'nmem.-guarqntpcd 2,043,548 e 2,091,519 52,545 4,514
Corporate 1,147,059 - 1,173,535 29,565 3,089
' Asseit-biacked 326,174 : © 327,780 2,91_0’ 1,304
’ Below investment grade® 3,983 2,950 - 1,033
| Not rated® = - - -
H Total fixed income securities 3,520,764 3,595,784 85,020 10,000
h Mortgage loans ' 70347 . 73,108 - 2,761 -
Preferred shares'® - RIN S e
Investment grade 1,245,117 7 1,304,977 65,306 5,446
Below investment grade 12,149 14,905 2,796 40
Total preferred shares 1,257,266 - 1,319,882 68,102 5,486
Cnmmfon shares‘d =40 1,266,550 - 1,430,440 183,641 19,751
Other investments‘® 165,603 165,603 o - ' -
$ 6,720,965 ::-$.7,025252 ~ $°- 339524 - § 35237
Table 4.2 :
e ! - Gross " Gross
1 Book Fair unrealized unrealized
| value value gains losses
Short-:term notes® - $ 274740 S 274740 $ - s -
Fixed income securities ®
Investment-grade
Government and .
government-guaranteed 1,805,736 1,854,940 49,348 144
Corp!z::rate 1,330,893 1,365,032 34,924 785
Asset-backed 523,381 531,900 8,550 3
Below investment grade© 8771 7,666 2 1,127
Not rlated(d) 16,318 17,009 691 -
. Total fixed income securities 3,685,099 3,776,547 03,535 2,087
Mortgage loans 78,699 83,287 4,588 -
Prefen:'ed shares©
Investment grade 1,051,792 1,115,442 66,566 2,916
Below investment grade 17,837 20,895 3,174, 116
Total preferred shares 1,069,629 1,136,337 69,740l 3,032
Common shares® 4 (" 997,707 1,077,195 90,622 11,134
Other investments® 179,271 179,271 - -
: $ 6,285,145 $ 6,527,377 5 258485 $ 16,253

|
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® Short-term notes have a maturity date of more than three months from the date of acquisitioﬁ.

'@ Fixed income securities include private placements. The book value of the private placements was $31,618 at

_ December 31, 2005 (2004 - $38,764) and their fair value was $30,081 at December 31, 2005 (2004 — $38,366).

©) The 'Company uses Dominion Bond Rating Service (“DBRS") and Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) to rate fixed income
securities. Under the Company’s updated practice, as of January 1, 2005, fixed income securities with a rating equal to
or above BBB- (previously A-) are classified as investment grade and other rated fixed income securities are classified

as below investment grade. Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in 2005.

@ Subsequent to the sale of mutual funds described in note 19, the Company no longer had any investments in funds
under the ING brand name. At December 31, 2004, the book value of the ING fixed income fund units was $16,318
and their fair value was $17,009. At that date, the book value of the ING equity fund units was $138,730 and their
fair valuc was $150,980. :

© The Company uses DBRS and S&P to rate preferred shares. Under the Company's updated practice, as of January 1,
2005, preferred shares with a rating equal to or above P3 low (previously P2 low) are classified as investment grade
" and other rated preferred shares are classified as below investment grade. Comparative figures have been reclassified
"to conform to the presentation adopted in 2005. :

® The common share category includes common shares as well as mutual ‘fund and income trust units.

(8) Other investments include loans and strategic investments (note 8),

The Company has an investment policy and applies the prudent person approach to investment:

management. Management monitors compliance with that policy. The majority of the investment

portfolio is invested in well-established, active and liquid markets. For most investments fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices. In cases where an active market does not exist, fair
value is estimated by reference to recent transactions or current market prices for similar investments.

To assess impairments, management reviews available current information for investments with fair
values below their book values to ascertain whether the book values are expected to be recovered. For
investments in equity and fixed income securities, management evaluates whether their expectations
have not changed such that the fair value of these securities is not adversely affected other than on a
temporary basis. For mortgage loans and other loans, management assesses expected future cash flows
and, where necessary, the net realizable amounts of assets provided as collateral, As a result of the
foregoing assessments, the impairment loss recorded for the year was $10,470 (2004 — $6,950).

The Company has investments in certain comnon shares and income trust units pursuant to a market
neutral strategy. The objective of this strategy, which consists of having both long and short equity
positions, is to maximize the value added from active portfolio management. Long and short positions
are accounted for at cost. Long positions are included in investments. Short positions are presented as
other liabilities. ‘
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Table 4}.3 summarizes the Company’s long and short positions pursuant to the market neutral strategy.

Table 4.3 . . . 2005 . . © 2004

Book ‘ Fair ’ Book ~ Fair
- value value value value

34,1801 S 41266 5 42,082

Long .
34,220 38,035 41,587

Short | '

The C?miaany provides collateral for securities borrowed and delivered pursuant to the sale of short
securities. At December 31, 2005, the book value of the collateral was $32,041 (2004 - $.39,641).

- (a) Credit risk .

Credit {15}( is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause tllze*Company to incur a financial loss. Credit risk mostly arises from investments in fixed income
securities and preferred shares. : o

' The Company’s investment policy requires that, at the time of the investment, fixed income securities

have a minimum credit rating of BBB and preferred shares have a minimum credit rating of P3.
anagemem monitors subsequent credit rating changes on a regular basw lnvestments in any entity or
group of related entities are limited to 5% of the Company’s assets.

Tables 4.1 and 4.2 reflect the Company s fixed income securities and preferred shares classified by type

of issuer and investment grade.
- l
(1)) quuidity risk
quuldlty risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet cash flow
comm:tments associated with financial instruments. To manage its cash flow requ;rements the Company

maintains a portion of its invested assets in liquid securities.

Tables 4.4 and 4.5 have been prepared on the basis of the scheduled maturities of the underlying
instruments. l

lnvestTnent maturities

Table 4/4 ' ' _ 2005

| One year  One year Over No specific
] : or less to five years  five years maturity Total
Short-tlcnn notes with a maturity date b
of more than three months from - Lo ‘ S : )
the date of acquisition '$7440435 5§ © - 8 -5 - $ 440,435
Fixed ilncome securities : 164,476 1,161,040 2,195,248 - 3,520,764
: Mortgzilge loans E S 2,673 63,465 4,209 _ 70,347
Preferred shares ) T 11,672 136,032 265,068 844,494 1,257,266
Conimfon shares . R . ‘ - - 1,266,550 1,266,550 )
Other investments - 17,147 76,508 49,343 22,605 165,603

. §.636,403 $1,437,045 $2,513,868 $2,133,649 56,720,965
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Table 4.5 . 2004
. Oncyear  One year Over No specific _
orless tofiveyears fiveyears  maturity Total

Short-term notes with -a maturity date
of more than three months from the )
date of acquisition +$ 2747408 - % -3

- § 274,740
Fixed income securities ' .- 116,376 1,419,879 - 2,132,526 16,318 3,685,099
Mortgage loans - 73,738 491 = . - 78,699
Preferred shares ' - 1,165 128928 320,604 - 618,932 1,069,629
Common shares - - - ~ 997,707 997,707
Other investments ) 16,576 92223 53,171 17,301 179,271

$ 408,857 51,714,768 $2,511,262 $1,650,258 $6,285,145

(9] interest rate risk .
Interest rate risk is the risk that a movement in interest rates will have an adverse effect on the financial

condition of the Company.

The weighted average i interest rate based on book values as at December 31, 2005 was 4.87% (2004 -
5.22%) for fixed income securities, 7.28% (2004 - 7.05%) for mortgage loans and 5.08% (2004 -
5. 17%) for preferred shares with a maturity date. n

(d) Securities ]ending
The Company participates in a secuntles lending program managed by the Company s custodian, a
major Canadian financial institution, whereby the Company lends securities it owns to other financial

institutions to allow them to meet delivery commitments. Government securities with an estimated fair -

value of 105% of the fair value of the securities loaned are received as collateral from the Canadian
financial institution. ’ ‘

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage financial risks arising from fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and cash flows. The Company’s policy is to not utilize derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

(a) Foreign exchange rate risk )

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk that the value of a foreign-deneminated financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company mitigates forelgn exchange rate
risk by buying or selling successive monthly foreign exchange forward contracts, Foreign exchange
forward contracts are commitments to buy or sell foreign currencies for delivery at a specified date in
the future at a fixed rate. Forwards are transacted in over-the-counter markets. The notional amount of
these forwards approximates the fair value of the foreign-denominated investments covered by these
forwards.

(b) Cash ﬂow risk
Cash flow risk is the risk that future cash flows assocmted w1th a monetary financial instrament will
fluctuate in amount. The Company mitigates cash flow risk by entering into foreign exchange swaps,
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whereby foreign—denomiriatgd principal and fixed interest receipts are sold in exchange for Canadian
dollars.i These swaps are transacted in over-the-counter markets. The notional amount of these swaps
approximates the nominal value of the foreign-denomi_nated investments covered by these swaps.

The Company had also entered into an interest rate swap with a financial institution, whcreby in
exchange of fixed interest cash outflows, it received-variable interest cash inflows. The variable interest
cash inflows received were subsequently paid as interest on the Company’s loan payable to an affiliate,
which carried a variable interest rate. During 2004, the variable interest loan to the affiliate was repaid

t, . oy
- and the m:terest rate swap with the financial institution cancelled.

(c) Falr value

The falr value of exchange-uaded derivative ﬁnam:lal instruments is based on quoted market rates.

The fair value of over-the-counter derivative financial instruments is an estimate and is determined using .

I
valuation models that incorporate prevallmg foreign exchange rates, interest rates, market rates and
prices of underlymg instruments with similar maturities and characteristics.

The fair value reflects the estimated amount that the Company would receive or might have to pay to.
terminate the contracts as at December 31.

(d) Credit risk \

The credit risk for derivative financial instruments is limited to their positive fair value, which is |
substarlltiélly lower than their notional amount. The Company mitigates credit risk by diversifying
exposure to 'any.single counterparty. The counterparties are federally regulated financial institutions.

Table 5'.1 summarizes the derivatives-used by the Company, their notional amount and their fair value.
Positivle fair values are recorded as other assets (note 11) and negative fair values as other liabilities.

Table 1 2005 _ 2004

Notional- Positive 'Negnt‘ive Notional Positive Negative
amount fairvalue fairvalue . “amount fairvelue  fair value

Foreign exchange risk :
$ 396808 = -8 39

Forwatds sold
Fl

Forwafds bought - 540 - -
Cash flow risk a
Foreign currency swaps 14,972 2,406 -

l 2406 § 39

ol
Table l5.2 summarizes the remaining terms to maturity of the derivatives.
Table52 = L2005 ' 2004
Term to matu rity (notional amount) Term to maturity (notional amount)
One year Oneyearto Overfive " One Srear One ycar to _Ovcr five

| ' orless five years years orless  five years years
Forwa::ds $ 345278 -8 -|$ 402208 -5 -
Foreign currency swaps 4,320 1,718 - 8,504 - 6,468 8,504

| 's 38847 S 1,718 S 8504{S 40220 5 6468 $ 8,504

" .
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6. Policy Liahilities

Policy liabilities are established to reflect the estimate of the full amount of all liabilities associated with

the insurance policies at the consolidated balance sheet dates, including claims incurred but not reported.

The ultimate cost of these liabilities will vary from the best estimate made for a variety of reasons,
including additional information with respect to the facts and circumstances of the claims incurred.

Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses

'.

Table 6.1 2005 ’ 2004
Direct ® Assumed ™  Ceded™  Direct™ Assumed®  Ceded®™
Auto: liability 51,754,126 =~ $ 4240151850330 § ~$ 77,039
Auto: personal accident 717,743 = 29557 770,297 - 32,153
Auto: other 86,504 -~ - =. 1,124] 101,582 - 161
" Property 504,521 = 136948 610,309 1,827 314,450
Liability 754257 . - 119,636] 818,824 763 199,007
Other I 4368 . - — 8530 58,692 10337 64,391

'$3,821,609 § $ 330,519154,210,034 § 12,927 $ 687,201

® The aggregate of dircct and assumed unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses of $3,821,609 (2004 - $4,222,961)
is shown as unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses in the consolidated balance sheets.

®) Ceded unpaid claims are referred to as reinsurers’ share of unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses are first determined on a case-by-case basis as claims are
reported and then reassessed as additional information becomes known. Included in unpaid claims and
loss adjustment expenses is a provision to account for the future development of these claims, including
claims incurred but not reported, as well as a provision for adverse deviations, as required by accepted
actuarial practice in Canada. Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses are discounted to take into
account the time value of money.

In estimating unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses, standard actuarial techniques are used. These
techniques are based on historical loss development factors and payment patterns. They require the use
of assumptions such as loss and payment development factors, future rates of claims frequency and
severity, inflation, reinsurance recoveries, expenses, changes in the legal environment, changes in the
regulatory environment and other matters, taking into consideration the circumstances of the Company
and the nature of the insurance policies.-

Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses were feduced, on a net basis, by $336,760 at
December 31, 2005 (2004 - $359,948) to take into account the time value of money using a rate
of 4.63% (2004 — 4.80%) on underlying claim settlement patterns. The provision for adverse

_ deviations increased unpaid claims and loss adjustiment expenses, on a net basis, by $407,933 at

December 31, 2005 (2004 - $410,634).
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Un.enr[ne'd premiums .

Table 6,2 ‘ . 2008 - : 2004
; Direct© Assumed® Ceded®  Direct© Assumed®  Ceded @

Auto: liability 718 620,367 $ 508 3,108
Auito: personal accident 198,619 - 665
Auto: inhfer 547,998 . - 908
Property 764,420 3,259 40,099
Liability 381 167,253 2,394 14,838
Other| ] 36386 251 18,581
| 52,194,837 7279152,335043 § 5954 § 78,199

© The'aglgregate of direct and assumed unearned premiums of $2,194,837 (2004 — 52,340,997) is shown as unearned
premiu'ms in the consolidated balance sheets.

@) Ceded uncamed premiums are referred to as reinsurers’ share 6{' unearned premiums in the consolidated balance sheets.

Uncamec;l prérniurlns are calculated on a pro rata basis from the unexpired pbrtion of the premiums
written. The unearned premiums estimate is validated through standard actuarial techniques to ensure
that thlese premiums are sufficient to cover the estimated future costs of servicing these policies and
related claims. In estimating these costs, the Company uses discounting.technigues to take into account
the tm';e value of money and a provision for adverse deviations is added to the discounted amount.
There ‘was no premium deficiency at the consolidated balance sheet dates.

The Com'paliy estimates that the fair value of unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses, as well as
the fair value of unearned premiums, approximate their book values.

lntereist rate sensitivity )

Since the time value of money is considered when detemumng the unpaid claims and loss adjustment
expenses estimate, an increase or decrease in the discount rate would result in a decrease or increase in
unpald claims and loss adjustment expenses, respectively. Consequently, a 1% change in the discount
rate wou[d have an impact of $67,535 on the fair value of unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses
at Declember 31, 2005 (2004 — $70,506).

Pursuant to the acquisition of Aliianz {notes 1 and 19), a series of restructuring tmnsa:cti_oné requiring
Allianz to transfer a portion of its business (the “AGR Business”) to the Canadian branch of

: Alhan'z Global Risks US Insurance Company was completed as of September 1, 2005. Prior to that

date, the AGR Business was subject to a 100% quota share agreement with Allianz Global Risks

" Riickversicherungs AG and therefore had no impact on the Company’s net income.

" Table !6.3 shows the impact of the AGR Business on the consolidated balance sheets.

* Table 6.3 2005 : 2004

} : - Assumed Ceded Assumed ; Ceded
Unpai& claims and loss ] . .
$ 12,927 § 447,102

5,954 61,523

adjustment expenses

Unearned premiums
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o

Structured settlements ‘ .
The Company enters into annuity agreements with various Canadian life insurance companies to
provide for fixed and recurring payments to claimants. Under such arrangements, the Company’s
liability to its claimants is substantially transferred, although the Company remains exposed to credit
risk to the extent to which the life insurers fail to fulfil their obligations. This risk is managed by
acquiring annuities from highly rated Canadian life insurance companies. At December 31, 2005,
none of the life insurers from which the Company had purchased annuities was in default and no
provision for credit risk was required. A measure of the credit risk exposure is the original purchase

* price of $290,966 (2004 - $248,206) for the annuities.

7. Reinsurance

in the ordinary course of business, the Company reinsures certain risks with other reinsurers to limit its
maximum loss in the event of catastrophes or other major losses. Net retention on a single risk property

'or‘liabiiity in 2005 was generally $2,500 (2004 - $2,500) and $2,500 (2004 — 52,500}, respectively;

in a number of cases, like special classes of business or types of risks, the retention would be lower
through épeciﬁ_c treaties or the use of facultative reinsurance. For multi-risk events or catastrophes,
retention was $17,500 in 2005 (2004 — $5,000) with a limit of $1,200,000 (2004 — $1,200,000).

In 2005, the Company retained 10% of the exposure from $25,000 to $600,000 (2004 — 10% of the

exposure from $12,500 to $600,000). '

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations towards policyholders. Failure
of reinsurers to honour their obligations could result in losses to the Company. Thus, the Company
evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk to minimize
its exposure to significant losses from reinsurers’ insolvencies. Substantially, all reinsurers are required
to have a minimum credit rating of “A-" at inception of the treaty. Rating agencies used are A.M: Best ‘
and S&P. The Company also requires that most of its treaties have a security review clause allowing
the Company to replace a reinsurer during the treaty period should the reinsurer’s credit rating fall
below the level acceptable to the Company. Management concluded that the Company was not exposed
to significant loss from reinsurers for potentially uncollectible reinsurance as at the consolidated
balance sheet dates. '

Furthermore, the Company is the assigned beneficiary of trust accounts holding cash deposits, bonds
and letters of credit totalling $98,376 at December 31, 2005 (2004 — $458,700) as guarantee from
unlicensed reinsurers. These amounts include $74,252 (2004 — $56,214) from an affiliated reinsurer.
Trust accounts are held in support of policy liabilities of $83,289 at December 31, 2005 (2004 —
$349,513) and could be used should these reinsurers be unable to meet their obligationé.

Table 7.1 presents the impact of reinsurance on the consolidated statements of income.

Table 7.1 ' . . 2005 . © 2004
Ceded Ceded
To affiliates Total To affiliates ~ Total
Premiums eamned $ 48707 S 210962| $ 56038 § 155013
Claims and loss adjustment expenses 80,641 ° 264,926 " 31,655 97,285
Commissions ! - 24,169 - 13,839

(Income) loss before income taxes IS (3:{,.934) s -(78,133)5 b 24,383 $ 43889
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8. Related Party Transactlons

The Company enters into transactlons with the controlling shareholder, ING Groep, and with entities which
are subject to common control or managément. These transactions consist of reinsurance, management
and adrvisnry expenses, financing charges, as well as advisory fee income. These transactions are carried
out in ?he normal course of operations. Accordingly, they are measured at the amount of consideration
paid 01; received, established and agreed by the related parties and are settled on a regular basis.

The irr;lpact of reinsurance ceded to entities that are subject to common control or management on the

~ consolidated statements of income is shown in Table 7.1 above.

Eﬂ'ecti‘ve January 1, 2004, the Company commuted a quota-share agreement with an affiliated company.
Consequently, the Company assumed $665,000 in previously ceded policy liabilities and received an
equwalent amount of investment assets.

Table !}.l summarizes the other types of transactions with entities that are subject to common control or
management for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. -
| . - '

Table 8.1 - . 2008 2004
Advis&i)ry' fee income S 5,992 $ 8347
Management and advnsory expenses 17,885 17,853
lnterest cxpense 7,963 |. 9,509

Table §.2' summarizes the Company’s balances with entities that are subject to common
control} or management. ' o

Table 8,2 : _ 2005 . 2004
Reinsuirancc (receivable) payable ‘ I s . (230)I 3 65
Interest and other payables 2,968 2,960

! ' s 2m8| s 302

The ﬁl}ancml statements of the investees presented as long-term investments included the following
balances with the Company.

Table 813 ‘ ' - 2005 2004
Loans payable® : ' S 63386] $ 66,586
Premilims and other receivables 5,900 |- 7,100
Payables and other liabilities 2,800 | 4,700

@ These loans bear interest at rates ranging from 5.4% to 7.25%.
Commission revenue recognized by investees accounted for as long-term investments totalled $28,200
in 2005 (2004 — $29,800).

A i : . , .
In 2000, a subsidiary of the Company launched a series of mutual funds under the ING brand name for

distribution in Canada and acted as the funds’ manager and advisor. Other subsidiaries of the Company
had in\:'estments in the units of these funds (note 4). As described in note 19, the Company has exited its
fund management activities and, as a result, held no such fund units at December 31, 2005. The fair
value (?)f the units held by the Company in these funds represented 45.9% of the funds’ total fair value at
Decem;ber 31, 2004,

|



9. Income Taxes

Table 9.1 explains the difference, expressed in percentage terms, between the income tax expense and
the amount that would have been computed if the federal and provincial statutory tax rates had been

applied to income before income taxes.

1

Table 9.1 ° 2005 2004
Income tax expense calculated at statutory tax rates 34.3%
Increase (decrease) in income tax rates resulting from:
Non-taxable dividends (3.8)%
Non-deductible expenses 0.7%
Non-taxable portion of capital gains (1.1)%
Impact of tax rate changes -
Other (net) 3.0)%
Effective income tax rate®® 27.1%

®) The consolidated statements of income contain items that are non-taxable or non-deductible for income tax purposes,
which cause the income tax expense to differ from what it would have been if based on statutory tax rates.

The most significant components of the future income tax balances are the following:

Table 9.2 2005 . 2004
Future income tax assets

Difference between accounting loss reserves and tax loss reserves $ 61,532
Difference b'etwecn the market value and l_aook. value of investments 44,834
Losses available for carryforward 24,465
Property and equipment 13,449
Deferred expenses for tax purposes 63 ,609
Total future income tax assets - £ 207889
Future income tax liabilities '
Deferred gains and losses on specified debt obligations $ 45753
Pension and other retirement benefits 9,740
Other .(net) 3,908
Total future income tax liabilities $ 59,401
Net future income tax assets $ 148488

In 2005, the Company fully recognized a tax recovcfy on losses realized from the sale of investments in
ING mutual fund units. In 2004, a future tax asset of $4,443 was not recognized for the cumulative
impairment charges recorded on those investments.

The Company recognized a future tax asset for all of its unused non-capital losses as at December 31, 2005.

In 2004, $29,796 in unused non-capital losses had not been recognized when cmﬁputing the future tax asset.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had allowable capital losses of $33,510 (2004 — $27,943) which
had not been recognized when computing the future tax asset. These losses can be used to reduce future
taxable capital gains.
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10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Table }0.'1 shows the change in goodwill during the year.

Table 10.1

Good\\lflll arising from former long-term investments now consolidated (note 14)
Goodw1ll purchased (note 19)
Goodwlll disposed

: _ ‘
Table }0.2 shows the components of intangible'aséets.

Table 10.2 2004
Cost i ‘ S 37,249
Accumulated amortization (305)
Book \Z'alﬁe

$ 36944

The Company performs an annual impairment testing of goodwnll No lmpalrment was identified in
either 2005 or 2004, lmpalrmenls are non-cash in nature and they do not affect the Company’s liquidity
or ablhty to discharge its liabilities. .

The intangible assets represent customer lists and the rights to offer renewals. They are amortized on a

straight-line basis over.ten years.

1. _Otlher Assets

Table ljl.l summarizes the major components of other assets.

. 2004

Table t1.1

Propelty and equipment, net (notc 12) $ 52,297
Prepald pension asset (note 13) 69,316
Prepalds 1,779
Other 4,151 .

18219 ] s 127,543

12. Pr_Lperty and Equipment !

Table 1|2.1 shows the major categories of the Company’s property and equipment. -

Table 12.1 : " 2008 : . 2004
‘ ’ - Accumulated Book " Accumulated Book
: Cost amortization  value Cost ~ amortization  value
Land | - 'S 404 5,113 § ~ $ 5113

Buildings 37,183 3, 23,979  (13,038) 10,941
Computer equipment 86417 (51493)7°34924| 58417 (45166) 13,251
Fumiture and equipment 43,_380 (24,647) . 18,733 43,849 (28,236) 15,613 .
Leasehold improvements | 18228 ' (7.804)— 10,424 15,541 (8,162) 7,379

'92,847| $ 146,899 $ (94,602) § 52,297

g | $190,148 §(97,301):
i ,
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13. Employee Future Benefits
The Company has several defined benefit pension plans, as well as a number of defined contribution

pension plans resulting from the acquisition of Allianz. For the defined béngﬁt plans, the measurement
date is December 31 and the latest actuarial valuations were performed as of December 31, 2002. The
next actuarial valuations will be performed as of December 31, 2005.

The Company has several other retirement plans offering life insurance and health benefits to retirees,
which are closed to active employees.

Table 13.1 presents the changes in the benefit obligation and the fair values of plan assets and reconciles
the plans’ funded status w1th the net prepaid asset (accrued liability).

" Table 13.1 . ' 2005 2004 2004
Pension plans Other plans
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning )
of year $ (316,104) $  (10,069)
Current service cost _ (15,373) -
Interest cost on benefit 'obligation (19,777) (587)
Past service cost - -
Employee contributions (3,831) -
Actuarial losses (30) -
Benefits paid 13,576 675
Acquisition of Allianz (10,984) (12,427)
Transfer i - -
Benefit obligation at end of year [ $ (435 674) $ (352,523) $ (22,408)
Change in fair value :
of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets -
at beginning of year -$ 391,132 $ -
Actual retum on plan assets " 43,266 - -
Employer contributions 4,859 675
Employee contributions 3,831 -
Benefits paid (13,576) (675)
Acquisition of Allianz 10,984 -
Fair value of plan assets
at end of year $ 440,496 5 -
Funded status
Excess (deficit) of fair value
of plan assets over benefit 8 _
obligation at end of year 60,384 1 5 87973 3 (22,408)
Unrecognized transitional (asset) |~ | L
obligation (63,157) . (73,682) 8 1 009 ' 1,117
Unrecognized past servicecost  {°-= = 476. 454 | (s, 945) -
Unrecognized net actuarial losses (. 65314 40,234 4,303 2,666
Valuation allowance & (1,879) (1,958) &~ = -
Net prepaid asset (accrued i : { ' :
- liability) at end of year $ 61,138] $ 53021 S (166000 $  (18,625)
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Table 13.1 (continued) " 2005 : 2004 2005 2004
! ' Pension plans ‘ Other plans
Presented as ' :
Other zins'séts (note 11) $ 69316 5 -
Other liabilities (16,295) (18,625)
Net pr:epiiid asset (Qccrued ' ’. R l
liabi!ity) at end of year $ 53,021 |§ (16600)] . $ (18,625)

lncluded in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are the following amounts in respect
of plans that are not fully funded.

5 (22,408)

$ (112,842) i
90,048 |

;(ls,éé'i)f_i |
S (21894) |'s. (15967 $ (22,408

Fair value of plan assets

Deﬁcit

T

At Decembcr 31, 2005, 53% (2004 — 52%) of the defined benefit pension plans’ assets were held in equity
securmes 45% (2004 — 45%) in fixed income securities and 2% (2004 - 3%) in other investments.

Table 13.2 provides details of the components of the accrued benefit expense (income} before
adjustments to recognize the long-term nature of employee future benefit costs as well as reconciliation
with the accrued benefit expense (income).

Table 13.2 2005 2004 2005 2004
| ) Pension plans * Other plans

Accrufed"beneﬁt (income) expense |- '
Current service cost " 115,373 $ -
Interest cost on benefit obligation’ 19,777 ST b - 587 .
Past service cost N =1 -
Actual return on plan assets (43,266) .. -
Net actuarial losses 30 b -
Accrued'benefit (income) expense |

befnrre adjustments to recognize | o

the long-term nature of :

employee future benefit costs (8,086) $ 587
Excess of actual return over :

expetcted return on plan assets

for tThe year 15,072 -
Amortlization of past service cost 56 -
Amortization of transitional

(asset) obligation " (10,525) 108

- Amortization of net actuarial losses 2,169 176

Past sérvice cost arising L

during the year - | 6,370 -
Net actuarial losses arising o : :

durifng‘the year (Table 13.3) U (54,750) ] (30) (1 798) -
Amortization of valuation allowance:: %"t~ (279): 279) EE = -
ChangFe in valuation allowance ST 200 - L= -
Accrufed‘ benefit (income) expense ; 3 234); (1,623 é $ . 658 % $ - 811




The cost recognized for the defined contribution plans, as well as the employer cdn&ibutions, were 0
$2,202 in 2005 (2004 — $278)

Table 13.3 lists the components of the net actuarial losses arising ‘during 2005.

Table 13.3 . -

Actuarial gains (losses) arising from the: . ’ . Pension plans Other plans

Decrease in the discount rate used to measure
the benefit obligation
Decrease in the rate of compensation increase

used to measure the benefit obligation

Increase in the health care cost trend rate

used to measure the benefit obligation

Table 13.4 summarizes the key weightéd average assumptions used for the measurement of the benefit
obligations and benefit expense (income). ' '

Table 13.4 ) ' 2008 - 2004 - 2005 2004
Defined benefit plans Other plans
To determine benefit obligations : ’ '
- at end of year

Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%
Rate of increase in future

compensation 4.0% 4.0%.
To determine benefit expense

(income) for the year
Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%
Rate of increase in future

compensation ) 4.0% n/a
Expected long-term rate of return

on plan assets 7.25% n/a

The weighted average of the assumed health care cost trend rate for 2006 used to measure the expected
cost of benefits covered by the plans is 9%, declining by 1% per year for each of the next four years.

Table 13.5 shows the impajct of a 1% increase and decrease in the health care cost trend rate on the other
plans’ benefit obligation and on the service and interest cost.

Table 13.5 ' 2005 2004

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Increase (decrease) in benefit

obligation - $ 1,501 S (1,426)

130 - (131) .

Increase (decrease) in the service

and interest cost
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14. Long-term Investments

The Cogmpany has investments in companies in which it has significant influence. These investments are
referred to as leng-term investments and are recorded using the equity method. Under this method the
Company records its share in the net income of long-term investments, computed by the consolidation

methodl ?:Iet income from long-term investments is incleded in investment income.

Table 14.1¢ o S 2008
. Opening  Increase AR Closing
; balance - (decrease)® Income Dividends balance
P&C inisurance brokerages $: 48,108 (8239)S - 84285 (6710)S 41,_5;7'
Other | | e gt o w0
| 'S 48108 S (8239)S 8428 § (6,710)S 41,587|
E . .
Table 14.2 : , 2004
’ Opening Increase - Income . * Closing
. balance  (decrease) (loss) Dividends balance
P&Ci msurance brokerages . $-41431 8 6374 3 8098 § (7,795) % 48,108
Other | . - 7,086 (7,086) - - . -

| $. 48517 $  (712)S 8098 § (7,795 $ 48,108

@ Durinlg the year, the Company acquired a controlling interest in'several P&C insurance brokerages in whicil it
' previ(lms]y had significant influence. As a result of these acquisitions, the investments in P&C insurance brokerages,
which were previously classified as Iong-l.erm investments, are now consolidated.

In May 2004, the Company disposed of its mvestment in IPC Financial Network Inc. for proceeds

of approxnmately $26,700, realizing an after-tax gain of $19,900.

15. De.]bt Outstanding -

Table 1{5.1 summarizes the Company’s loans and line of credit. -

Table 15.1
Issuer | - Maturity Rate 2005 2004
"ING Vclrzeken'ngen N.V. August 27, 2006 . 6.27% § 127,000 $ 127,000
ING [nlsurance International; B.V.®®  ° . ' : B 129,230
" Royal I Bank of Canada® : ' - - -

$ 127,000 | $ 256,230

(@) Non-lintercsl bearing promissory note, representing the outstanding balance arising from the redemption of preferred
shares in 2004 (note 1). The note was fully repaid in January 2003, following the exercise of the over-aliotment option
f . S
granted to the underwriters as a result of thc initial public offering (note 16).

® Uncommitted revolving cr:dlt facility in the amount of $50,000, which may be drnwn as primary Ioans at the prime mate
of as bankers' acceptanccs at the bankers’ acccpmnce rate.
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16. Share Capital

Prior to the hmalgamation in 2004 (note 1), the Company reduced the capital on its existing 141,569
common shares by an amount of $428,684. K

As a result of the amalgamatiori, the Company’s share capital consisted of the following:

(i) an unlimited amount of shares of one class designated as common shares of which 93,620,000 were
issued as a result of the conversion of the 141,569 cornmon shqes;

(ii) an unlimited number of a second class designated as Class A shares; and

(iii) one share of a third class designated as the Special Share.

. Upon the closing_ of thg: inirtial public offering (“IPO”) on December 15, 2004_4, 34,880,000 common

shares were issued at a price of $26.00 per share, generating proceeds of $858,536, net of underwriters’
fees and other expenses, and increasing share capital by $875,069 after tax. In January 2005; the
underwriters also exercised the over-allotment option granted to them pursuant to the underwriters’
agreement for the prospectus. The option called for the purchase of up to 5,232,000 additional common
shares at the offering price within thirty days from the date of the IPO and was exercised in full in
January 2005, generating net 'proccedé of $129,230 and increasing share capital by $131,556 after tax.

Table 16,1 summarizes the Company’s share capital.

Table 16.1 : 2005 ' 2004
Issuedend ‘ Issued and .
Authorized outstanding Authorized  ocutstanding

, .
Classes of shares (shares) (shares) Amount

(shares) _ (shares) Amount

Common 1 Unlimited 128,500,000 $1,052,290
Class A® Unlimited - -
Special® One 1 -

$1,052,290

{8} 1s5ued and outstanding Class A shares would rank both with .rcgards to dividends and return on capital in

priarity to the common shares.

" ® The Special Share is convertible into one common share. The beneficial owner of the Special Share is entitled

to nominate and elect a certain number of directors to the Board and request the Board to appoint the Chief Executive
Officer, as determined by the number of common shares that the holder of the Special Share beneficially owns, .

17. Stock-based Compensation

On February 16, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Long-Term Incentive Plan fqr'
certain employees. Under that plan, these employees are awarded performance units (one performance
unit equals one common share of the Company) as a portion of their compensation. Each award vests

- and pays out at the end of a three-year performance cycle. The paiyout varies based on a pei'fonnance

target driven by the Company’s three-year average return on equity relative to that of the Canadian
property and casualty insurance industry. The payout may only be in common shares. Accordingly, this
type of compensation is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus.
The Company re-estimates the number of performance units that are expected to vest at each reporting
period. The estimate was 363,700 units at December 31, 2005.
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. : . h
Members of the Company’s Board of Directors who are not officers or employees of the Company o its

affiliates receive compensation in the form of Defened'Share Units (“DSU™).and may elect to receive

' . other compensation in the form of DSU or cash. A DSU represents an amount owed bjy the Company to
the directors and has the same value as one share of the Company at the date of the grant. These DSU
may not t‘se paid out until such time that the director leaves the Board. Payment may be in cash or
commcim !sharcs of the Company, at the option of the directors. Accordingly, director compcnsatlon is
recogmzed both as an expense and a liability. ’

At the tlIl'Ile of the payout, the Company intends to purchase shares in the market in an amount equal to
the number of vested shares. .

. The aggregate amountlcharged to compensation expense for these plans was $6,447 for the year ended
] . .
Decemll_)elr 31, 2005. The expense is based on the fair value of the awards at the dates of the grants and

represents management’s estimate of the payout by reference to the achievement of an expected

performaglce target.

18. Ealrn:ings per Share, . . . hy

Table 11?3.1, ' 2004@

Basic tlear"nings per share ) o -

Net income available to common shareholders : § 624,152

Averagle number of comm’ml shares {in thousands) ’ ~ 953818
- Basie t':armngs per share | $ 6.51

Dituted earnmgs per share

Net income available to common shareholders $ 624152

Net interest income on proceeds of over-allotment option 114

Adjusted net income available to common shareholders $ 624,266

Averaée number of common shares (in thousands) ‘ : 95,818
. Comm?on,shares granted in over-allotment® (in thousands) 330 -
‘ Averagle number of diluted common shares, o 96,148

Dilnté(li earnings per share - ' b 6.49

® For t!:ompamuve purposes, thé number of common shares reﬂects the reorgamzatlon of capltal as |f it had occurred on
Ja.nuary 1, 2004 (note 16).

® potel16
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19. Acqulsmons and Dwestntures

During the year, subsidiaries of the Company increased their ownership in certain brokcrages to 100%.
Table 19.1 presents aggregate information on these acquisitions. '

Table 19.1 : ' o 2005
Purchase price of participation in brokerages during the year ] 5 17,509
Less: cash consideration acquired . : o (2,645)
Plus: transaction costs - 0 e 30
" Cash consideration for shares i U 14,894
Plus: fair value of net liabilities acquired : . 987
Excess ) . . s 1'5,88'1'
Allocated as o _ ‘ '
Intangible assets | s 3,858
Goodwill (note 10) . 12,023
5 15,881

Allianz

The Company entered into a share and loan purchase agreement dated October 7, 2004 with Allianz AG
and Allianz of America, Inc. to acquire most of Allianz’s operations in Canada as described below. The
transaction was effective November 30, 2004 and was completed December 8, 2004. Consequently, the
Company's consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes the rcsults
of Allianz only for the month of Decembcr 2004. Pursuant to the purchase agrccment

(i) The Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Allianz.

(ii) The Company purchased a certain debt of Allianz of $91,000.

(iii)The Company con-tp]eted the transaction for cash consideration of $279,000 for the shares of
Allianz. The purchase price was funded by existing investments and a bridge loan from a Canadian
chartered bank The bridge loan was repaid in full followmg the lrutlal public offenng

(iv) A series of restructuring transactions requiring Allianz to transfer the AGR Busmess to the Canadian
branch of Allianz Global Risks US Insurance Cumpany was completed as of September 1, 2005,

after regulatory approval was obtained.
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’ . ‘ . Table l19.;2 presents the allocation of the puﬁ:hase price.

. |
| 3. -~ Table19.2
; Purch'asé equation :
) Purcha?sel price ) $ 370,000
Less: Cash consideration for loan purchased - ’ - (91,062)
Cash %on'siderapion for shares , 278,938
; Add: Transaction costs , o '4,500
, ‘ Net ba:]aritce sheet assets acquired .‘ L . 283,438
3 _ Less: Fair value of net tangible assets acquired : . (199,435)
' CExces$ © . .. . $ 84,003
o Fair v:nl{le of the net tangible assets ' o
Book value of Allianz $ 328,226
. [ [} .
: Less: ll’air value adjustments : . (127,013)
: Less: {ntégration costs® ' ' § (34,518)
Add: Fufme income taxes on the foregoing : 32,740
Fair vélu:e of net tangible assets acquired ' $ 199,435
. . Allocz{ti('m of excess .
. - i .
; . Intangible assets ~ customer lists and rights to offer renewal .8 37,249
. Goodwill , _ . . 46,754
. : Net iniar;gible assets and goodwill _ : , $ 84,003

® 1 cl.mneclion with the acquisition of Allianz, the Company recorded planned integration costs as part of the purchase,
! . . : pric::. The outstanding balance of these costs of $20,556 at December 31, 2005, represents the Company’s estimate
in relation to the remaining integration of the operations of Allianz, These costs consist of provisions for involuntary
cmplloyee terminations, redundant lease space, discontinuance of information systems and regulatory policyholder
_ notification requircments. . ' '

Py
[t

, : Table 419.;3 presents selected items of Allianz’s balance sheet at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Table 19.3 ,
Cash and cash equivalents . ' ’ 5 15,188
Investments 1,061,513
Reiﬁsﬁre'rs’ share of unpaid claims and loss adjustment éxpenses v 505,188
v Reinmgrers’ share of unearned premiums L 58,476
Deferr}ed acquisition costs ' ' ) - 47,606 -
' Goodwill and intangible assets o o 84,003
. Unpaid claims and loss adjustment expenses . (1,221,556)
' ' _ Unear}lled premiums B : : - (369,159) '
; : Total allss‘ets ' ' . ‘ 2,115,432
' Total liabilities . . (1,831,994)

? Sharel{olfder’s equity _ : (283,438) -
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Under the terms of an agreement with a major Canadian property and casualty insurance company,
certain guarantees were previded with respect to policy liabilities acquired by the Company as of .
December 31, 2001. The amount recoverable pursuant to this agreement was due in 2004 and 2005
with 2 final settlement on April 30, 2007. Management's best estimate was that the amount recoverable
was in the magnitude of $100 000. This amount was received in 2005,

On July 8, 2005, the Company tenmnated five ING funds. Investments remaining in these funds, at that
date, were switched into the ING Canadian Money Market Fund, which, along with twelve other ING

funds, were merged into AGF funds on August 5, 2005, pursuant to the agreement with AGF Funds Inc.,

which also acquired the ING Canadian Dividend Income Fund. The Corﬁpany did not incur significant
incremental expenses or asset impairment charges as a result of these transactions. Furthermore, the -
exiting of fund management activities had no impact on the Company’s results and will have no material
impact on its future results. ' :

Effective September 1, 2005, the Company sold the renewal rights of $13,000 of commercial marine
insurance business.

20. Disclosures on Rate Regulation

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are licensed under insurance legislation in each of the provinces
and territories in which they conduct business. Automobile insurance is a compulsory product and is
subject to different regulatiens across the provinces and territories in Canada, including those with
respect to rate setting. Rate setting mechanisms vary across the provinces and territories in Canada,

but they generally fall under three categories: “use and file”, “file and use” and “file and approve”.
Under “use and file”, rates are filed following use. Under “file and use”, insurers file their rates with the
relevant authorities and wait for a prescribed period of time and then implemerit the proposed rates.
Under “file and approve”, insurers must wait for specific approval of filed rates before they may be used.

Table 20.1 lists the provincial authorities which regulate automobile insurance rates. Automobile direct

_ written premiums in these provinces totalled $2,166,541 (2004 — $1,974,964) and represented

approximately 98.2% (2004 - 98.0%) of direct automobile premiums written.

Table 20.1
Province Rate filing Regulatory authority -
Alberta * File and approve _ . _

' or file and use @ Alberta Automobile Insurance Rate Board
Ontario ' File and approve Financial Services Commission of Ontario -
Quebec Use and file L’ Autorité des marchés financiers
Nova Scotia - ) . File and approve Nova Scotia Insurance Review Board
New Brunswick File and approve New Brunswick Insurance Board
Prince Edward Istand File and approve Island Regulatory Appeals Commission
Newfoundland - File and approve Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities

® For mandatory coverage, the rate regulation mechanisms are “file and approve™ or “file and use”, dependingAcm the
filing; for optional coverage, the rate regulation mechanism is “file and use”. ' :




ING Canada inc. 75

Releval.nt regulatory authorities may, in some circumstances, require retroactive rate adjustments, which
could result in a regulatory asset or liability. At December 31, 2005, the Company had no regulatory
asset or hablhty

21, Céntingencies

In the normal course of operations, various claims and legal proceedings are instituted against the
Compémy. Legal proceedings are often subj'ect to numerous uncertainties and it is not possible to predict
the ou{_co'me of individual cases. In management’s opinion, the Company has made adequate provision
for, or;ha's adequate insurance to cover, all claims and legal proceedings. Consequently, any settlements
reache:d should not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated future operating
results anid financial position.

I

22. Commitments and Guarantees

|
Table 22.1 presents future minimum payments under long-term leases for property and equipment.

Table 22.1
Year | : _ . Amount’
2006 ' - ) TS 49,153
2007 __ _ 49,202
2008 | | e o - 41,482
2009 | ' 35,546
2010 | _ 35,500
Thereel . . . 88,725
- ' $ 299,608

In the ?ormal course of operations, the Company provides indemnification agreements to directors and
officers, to the extent permitted by law, against certain claims made against them as a result of their
services to the Company. The Company has insurance coverage for these agreements.

23. Segmented information

The Cc])mpany’s core business activity is P&C insurance. P&C operations include two manufacturing
segments and the investment scgment. The manufacturing segments are personal lines and commercial
lines. ¢lasses in the personal lines segment include automobile and property. Classes in the commercial
lines ségment encompass commercial property and liability, automobile, surety, marine (note 19), as
well as niche products that are targeted towards limited markets requiring specialized underwriting and
claim settlement. The effect of reinsurance is reflected in the revenue and results of the manufacturing
segments. The investment activities consist of managing the investment portfolio for the Company's
P&C ililsuram_:e subsidiaries. Investment income is shown net of investment expenses. Non P&C
segments include corporate and other activities, as well as realized investment and other gains. -
Corporate and other activities include the results of the Company’s broker operations, long-term
inifestt}rlents and investment management company, intercompany eliminations consisting primarily of
commissions and general expenses, as well as non-recurring items, such as acquisitions, whose effects

I
are not| allocated to any other segment.
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Table 23.1 2005 2004
Revenue

Net premiums earned . s

Personal insurance $ 2,680,698 | § 2,343,448
Commercial insurance 1,159,478 1,021,115
Investments 323,258 256,692
Total P&C insurance 4',163;4_31 3,621,255
Corporate and other - 27,213 .
Realized investment and other gains T ,. 132,418
Total revenue $ 4,446,068 | - $ 3,780,886

" Income before income taxes
Underwriting income
Personal insurance 382,120" 339,228
Commercial insurance _1:75_5,592:. 130,802
Investments 300,732 246,964
Total P&C insurénce . 44 716,994
Corporate and other 29,038 6,360
Realized investment and other gains 1223471 132,418
Total income before income taxes ] ' 1','0§0,953 855,772
As at December 31 - .

" Assets 2005 2004
P&C insurance ® 9,066,267 9,230,609
Corporate and other® -860,268 |- 432,515
Total assets $ 9,926,535 | $ 9,663,124
Increase in goodwill
P&C insurance $ 32,525
Corporate and other 14,229
Total increase in goodwill $ 46,754

@) Included goodwill of $74,411 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
®) Included goodwill of $33,951 at December 31, 2005 (2004 - $16,705).
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24. Fair Value Disclosure

The failr value of financial assets and liabilities, other than investments and short securities (note 4),

‘derivat%ve financial instruments (note 5), poiicy liabilities (note 6) and debt outstanding (note 15)

approximates their book value due to their short-term nature.

25. Subsequent Event

The Company entered into an agreement dated December 15, 2005 to sell certain ofﬁéc buildings,
subject to due diligence, to Whiterock Real Estate Investment Trust for approximately $29,700 and to
lease back these buildings for a term of 20 years with four five-year extensions. Due diligence by the
purchaser was completed in February 2006. The transaction will generate a gain of approximately :

' $3,000,which will be deferred and amortized over the lease term in accordance with the provisions of

the CI('i,‘A Handbook Section 3065. The lease agreement qualifies as an operating lease requiring annual
minimum lease payments of $2,200.

26. Comparative Figures’
| : , .
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in

the current year.

|
i
l
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ING Canada Ine,
A holding company

ING Insurance Company of Canada
Provides personal and commercial insurance
products across Canada

Allianz Insurance Company of Canada

Provides personal automobile and property insurance
across Canada (We expect to amalgamate Allianz
and Nordic under the name of The Nordic Insurance
Company of Canada prior to December 31, 2006.)

Trafalgar Insurance Company of Canada ~
Specializes in serving the personal insurance
needs of those aged 50 plus in Alberta, Ontario
and the Atlantic provinces :

Eqnléure Financial Network Inc.
A holding company having an interest’
in a network of independent brokers

ING Novex'Insurance Company of Canada
Provides personal auto and property protection
to employee groups, associations and affinity groups

The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada -
Provides personal auto and home insurance

in Ontario and services clients of the Albe!'ta
and Ontario Facility Associations

Wellington Warranty Company Inc.
Provides warranty products across Canada

181 University Avenue, 74 Floor
Toronto, Ontario MSH 3M7
Tel: 416-941-5151

ING Investment Management, Inc. .

An investment counse! and portfolio
management company

181 University Avenue, 6t floor
Toronto, Ontario M5H 3M7
Tel: 416-941-5343

Belair Insurance Company Inc.
A direct distributor of personal auto
and home insurance

300-7101 Jean Talon Street East
Anjou, Quebec HIM 3Té6
Tel: 514-270-1700

ING Wealth Management Inc.
A mutual fund dealer

75 Eglixilon Avenue East, 39 Floor
Toronto, Ontario M4P 3A4
Tel: 416-217-7217

Canada Brokerlink Inc. -
A wholly-owned tnsurance broker
serving Ontario and Alberta

1300-321 6% Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P 4W7
Tel: 403-269-7961

belairdirect.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial Strength Rating
(lnsurance subsidiaries)
AM. Best A+

Standartd & Poor’s A+

Long-pfrm Senior Debt
(ING Cianada Inc.}
" Dominion Bond Rating Service A (low)

Toront? Stock Exchange Listing
Ticker ?ymbol: nc.Lv

(Eﬂéct!;ve June 12, 2006 our
symboliwill be “IIC")

: _20&)'5 Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting will be held on:
Date: . May 1, 2006
Time: 10 00 a.m. EST
Place: De51gn Exchange
234 Bay Street
Toronto, Ontarip M5K lBZ

]nstitutitonal investors, security analysts and others
who mdy want additional financial information

can v:s:t the Investor Relations section of the

WWH. mgcanada com web site, call ]-866-778-0774

or cont?ct

Brian Lynch )

Director, Investor Relations .
416-941-5181
brian.lynch@ingcanada.com

For media inquiries, please contact:
Shawn. Murray’

Manag?r, External Communications _
416-941-5151 ext. 2930

i shawt_:.lmurray@ingcanada.com

|

Version francaise )
Il existe une version frangaise du présent rapport annuel

_ & la section Relations investisseurs de notre site Web -

ingcanada.com. Les parties intéressées peuvent obtenir
une version imprimée en appelant au 1 866 778-0774
ou €n envoyant un courriel ir@ingcanada.com.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Investor Services Inc. .
100 University Avenue, 9% Floor
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1
1-800-564-6253 |

Earnings Release Dates '
February 16, 2006

May 11, 2006

August 10, 2006

. November9 2006 ‘ ' "

Divndend Payment.Dates

(Subject to a.pproval by the Board of Dlrectors)
March 31, 2006

June 30, 2006

September 29, 2006

December 29, 2006

Dividend Record Dates ,

(Subject to approval by the Board of Directors)
March 15, 2006

Tune 15, 2006

September 15, 2006

DeFember 15, 2006

Dividend Reinvestment )

Shareholders can reinvest their cash dividends in
common shares of ING Canada Inc, on a commission-
free basis either through their broker, subject to
eligibility as determined by the broker, or through

* Canadian ShareQwner Investments Inc. Full details

can be obtained by contacting Investor Relations
or at www. investor.ingcanada.com undcr
“Share Information™.

Auditors ’

Emst & Young LLP

Design: Haughton Brazeau Design Associates Photography: Paul Orenstein Photography Printing: grafikom.




The ING Ottawa Marathbn

The Nationat Capital Race Weekend featuring the 2005 ING Ottawa
Marathon took place May 28 - 29 and attracted over 26,000 runners,
walker, inline skaters and thelr families who ran, walked and skated
through distances ranging from 2 km to 42.2 km,

For 2006 event details, go to www.ingottawamarathon.ca. 4

www.ingcanada.com

ING Canada Inc.

181 University Avenue, 7th Floor
Toronto, Ontario M5H 3M7
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. CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certam statements contained herein about our current and futire plans expectations and
mtentlons, results levels of activity, performance, goals or achievements or any other future
events or developments are forward-looking statements. The words "may,” "will," "would,"
"should," "could,” "expects,” "plans,” "intends," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts,"
"likely" or potentlal" or the negative or other variations of these words or other similar words or
phrases identify such forward-looking statements. |

Forward-lookmg statements are based on éstimates and assumptions made by us based on our
experience and v1ew of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developmcnts as
well as other factors that we believe are appropriate in the circumstances. Many factors could
cause our actual results performance or achievements or future events or developments to differ
materially from the forward-looking statements. These factors include, without limitation, the
following: our abnhty 10 implement our strategy or operate our business as we expect; our ability
to accurately assess the risks associated with the insurance policies that we write; unfavourable
capital market developments or other factors which could affect our investments; the cyclical
nature of the P&C insurance industry; our ability to accurately predict future claims frequency;
govermment regulanons litigation and regulatory actions; periodic negative publicity regarding
the insurance indhstry, intense competition; our reliance on brokers and third parties to sell our
products; our ablllty to successfully pursue our acquisition strategy; our ability to integrate the
business of Alhanz Canada; our ability to achieve the cost savings anticipated from' the
acquisition of Alllanz Canada; uncertainties related to our acquisition of Allianz Canada; the
significant mﬂuence of ING Groep; our participation in the Facility Association (a mandatory
pooling arrangement among all industry participants); terrorist attacks and ensuing events; the
occurrence of eatz'rstrophrc events; our ability to maintain our financial strength ratings; our ability
to alleviate risk through reinsurance; our ability to successfully manage credit risk; our reliance

" on information technology and telecommunications systems; our dependence on key employees;

general economic, financial and political conditions; our dependence on the results of operations.
of our subsu‘lmnes the limited trading history of our common shares; the volatility of the stock .-

' market and other factors affecting our share price; and future sales of a substantial number of our

common shares. These factors should be considered carefully, and readers should not ptace undue
rehance on our forward looking statements. We have no intention and accept no responsibility to
update Or Tevise any forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future ¢vents or
otherwise, except as required by law.
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, Urllless otherwise specified, this Annual Information Form presents
A 'inforlmatiou as at December 31, 2005. All amounts in Canadian dollars. !

CORPORATE SITRUCTURE '

Name, Address almd Incorporation

ING Canada Inc. (“ING Canada”, “we” or the “Company“) is a corporatlon mcorporatcd
pursuant to the Canada Business Corporations Act and serves as a holding company for our
operating subsndlanes which operate pnnmpally in the Canadian property and casualty insurance
market. We conduct business in all provinces and territories of Canada through the following
subsidiaries: ING Insurance Company of Canada, ING Novex Insurance Company of Canada,
The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada, Belair Insurance Company Inc., Allianz Insurance
Company of Canada Trafalgar Insurance Company of Canada, Equisure Financial Network Inc.,
Canada Brokerlmk Inc., Wellington Warranty Company Inc., ING Investment Management Inc.
and ING Wealth ‘Management Inc. Our registered and principal business office is located at 181
University Avenue Suite 700, Toronto, Ontario M5H 3M7.

Intercorporate, lllelatlonshlps '

The following chart illustrates the corporate structure of ING Canada as at December 31,
2005, together w1th the jurisdiction of incorporation of each of our material operating compamcs
Unless otherwise noted all of our submdnanes are wholly-owned




ING CANADA INC. |

; ING Canada Inc.
{Canada}
1

I— A

Belair Insurance Company Ine.

! - (Quebec)

. ;

! ING Insurance Company of | ING Investment

[ Canada (Canada) Management, Inc.

: (Canada)
J ING Novex Insurance

&Company of Canada (Canada)

ING Wealth
‘ The Nordic Insurance Management Inc.
Company of Canada (Canada)' ; (Canada)
Wellington Warranty Equisure Financial Network Inc
Company Inc. (Canada) 1 (Canada)'

/Allianz Insurance Comipany of

] Canada (Canada)™ -

Canada Brokerlink Inc.

. (Alberta)*”’

Trafalgar Insurance Compnny
J of Canada (Canada)’

(1) We own 49% of the common shares of Equisure Financial Network Inc. (“Equisure™} and 100% of its preferred shares. The

remalmng 51% of its common shares are held by a broker. A shareholder agreement provides us with the right in certain

circumstances to acqum: the common shares of Equisure not owned by us, Equisure generally owns a direct 50% interest in its
property and casualty insurance brokerages; in Québec, Equisure indirectly owns up to 20% of property and casualty insurance

brokerages.

(2) We own or have the nght to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of Canada Brokerlink Inc.

(3) Held directly or mdn'eclly through 1016304 Ontario Inc. (formerly Allianz of Canada, Inc.) (incorporated in Ontario).

(4) On February 20, 2006 Allianz Insurance Company of Canada and The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada announced their

intention to ama]gamate under the name of The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada. As of the date of this Annual Information

Form, such amalgamamm had not yet been complctcd and remained subject to regulatory approval.




GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

. Our busmess was founded in 1809 with the mcorporatlon of our first predecessor company,
The Halifax lnsurance Company. Our business has been operated as an indirect wholly-owned

.. subsidiary of ING Groep N.V. (“ING Groep”) or its predecessors since 1959. Between 1988 and

2001, we successfully acquired and integrated ten property and casualty (“P&C”) insurance
busmesses Asa result of both our acquisitions and orgamc growth we have grown in terms of

: dlrect premrums written from the eighteenth largest P&C insurer in Canada in 1988 to the largest

P&C insurer in Canada with an estimated market share in excess of 12%, based on 2005 direct

: prermums written.

© Qur busmess is organized into two lines: personal and commercial insurance. Qur principal
insurance- products are automobile, property and liability insurance, which we prowde to
individuals and $mall to medium-sized businesses across Canada. Based on direct premiums
written in 2005, lwe are the largest provider of P&C insurance in Québec, Alberta, Atlantic

"Canada and Bnush Columbia and the second largest in’ Ontario. We distribute our products

through two - cha:mels brokers and direct distribution. Our personal insurance -business,
representing 68. 0% of our direct premiums written over the last twelve months ended December

31, 2005, consrsts of automobile and property insurance sold to individuals. Our commercial

insurance busmess consists of automobile, property, liability, surety and specialty coverage sold

. to-small and medlum sized commercial clients. In addition to our P&C insurance operatlons we

have an mvestment management operation which provides investment management services with
respect to approxrmately $8.2 billion of assets under management (“AUM") as at December 31,
2005, which includes invested assets of our P&C insurance subsidiaries of $7.3 billion,

Three Year Hlstlory

- 2003 was marked by a number of provmcral regulatory reform initiatives in the personal
automobile seetor .The Company adapted and dealt with the. impact of these reforms.
Underwriting results in 2003 improved as the reforms began to impact results, however a more
significant trend could be attributed to lower claims frequency, which resulted in reduced claim
costs. The Faclhty Association (see below under the heading “Description of the Business -

Facility Assocratlon ") incurred a large loss in 2003 and, through our mandatory participation, the

Company absorbed its proportionate share of the loss, which was in excess of $65 mllhon

-+ In 2004, consrstent with our growth strategy, the Company entered into a share and loan
purchase agreement dated October 7, 2004 with Allianz AG and Allianz of America Inc.
(“Allianz Agreement”) to acquire most of Allianz’ operations in Canada for a purchase pnce of

. $370 0 million (the “Acquisition”). Included in the Acquisition were two insurance companies,

Allianz Insurance Company of Canada (“AICC”) and Trafalgar Insurance Company of Canada’
(“TICC”). Also p'art of the acquisition was a network of insurance brokerages, Canada Brokerlink-
Inc. (“Canada Brokerlink™), which sells the products of P&C insurance companies to individuals
and small to medlum-srzed businesses. The transaction was recorded with an effective date of
November 30, 2004 and was completed on December 8, 2004.

The Company completed an initial public offering on December 15, 2004 {(the “Offering”),

* pursuant to the filing of 4 supplemented prospectus dated December 9, 2004. As a result of the

offering, . 34,880, 000 common shares ‘were issued at $26.00 per share for proceeds of $858.5
million net of undcrwnters fees and other expenses. Pursuant to the underwriter’s agreement for
the prospectus, an over-allotment option was granted and then exercised on January 13, 2005, for

‘which 5,232,000 'additional common shares were issued and net proceeds were received of $129.2

million. :
' R
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Throughout 2005, the Company focused on integration of the acquired busmess asa result
of the Acqmsmou In March 2005, an agreement was reached between the Company’s mutual
fund subsidiary and AGF Funds Inc. to merge the Company’s mutual fund business into AGF
Funds; the transactlon closed in August 2005. As well, an agreement was reached to sell the
renewal rights to the commercial marine insurance portfolio of one of the Company’s subsidiaries
to Royal & SunAlhance in July 2005. In September 2005, the Company filed a short form base
shelf prospectus with Canadian securities regulators, giving it the ability to issue up to $1 billion
in debt securities, IClass A shares or common shares over a 25- month period.

We behcvé that several key factors will affect the P&C insurance industry in the next 12
months. Given the large contribution of automobile insurance to premium volume of the P&C
insurance mdustry, regulatory changes to automobile insurance are expected to continue to
impact the pcrformance of the P&C insurance industry. Automobile insurance reforms adopted
by various provmces over the last two years continued to be effective at containing and
stabilizing clalms costs in 2005. Product availability and affordability have accordingly been:
restored. Sustamablhty of these cost containment measures as well as potential rate reductions
will continue to be the key performance drivers in 2006.

Automobile claims frequency remains low and we believe frequency will either increase or
continued low frequency will lead to premium reductions in 2006. Nevertheless, barring

B unexpected developments, industry returns in automobile insurance in 2006 are likely to exceed

historical levels. }Ne expect the industry’s top-line growth rate for the next 12 months to be below
historical levels and for the industry, underwriting results to fall short of the favourable level
expencnced in 2005 That said, underwriting results in 2006 should exceed historical returns..

DESCRIPT]ON OF THE BUSINESS

The P&C|insurance mdustry provides insurance to both lndmduals and businesses
covering automoblle personal and commercial property, general liability and other business lines

- of P&C i msurancc In 2005, the P&C insurance industry recorded approxlmately $36.0 billion of

direct premmms written and made total claims payments and provisions for claims of

approx:mately $200 billion. Automobile insurance is the largest business line of the P&C-’
insurance mdustry while property insurance represents the second largest business line of the

P&C insurance industry. .

The three primary distribution channels for the P&C insurance industry are brokers, direct
distribution and captlve agents. Brokers act as intermediaries with a number of P&C insurance
companics on behalf of customers who. wish to purchase P&C insurance and represent a
31gmﬁcant majonty of the P&C insurance industry’s personal and commercial insurance
pretmums The dlrect distribution channel is a method by -which P&C insurance companies sell

- their insurance pollc1es directly to customers without the use of an intermediary, primarily
- through the Internet and call centres. P&C insurers that use a captive agent distribution strategy

employ a proprietary sales force that markets P&C insurance products exclusively for that

_insurer.

The ﬁnanc1a1 perfonnancc of the P&C insurance 1ndustry is determined by two principal
factors: (i) the levcl of premiums collected in relation to claims and operating costs paid; and {ii)
the returns gener?ted by investment portfolios held by insurers.

The P&C insurance industry is a mature market. From 1993 to 2000, the compound annual
growth rate (“CAGR”) of the P&C insurance industry’s direct premmms written was 4.4%. In
2001, 2002 and 2003 the P&C insurance industry’s direct premiums written grew by 12.7%,
17.6% and 16.0%, respectively, resulting in a CAGR of 7.6% for the period from 1993-to 2003.

. The industry exp'cncnced lower growth in 2004, with an increase in direct premiums written of
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4.4%, while reC(lrdmg virtually no growth in 2005 as the mdustry 5 dlrect premiums written

grew at a rate of([) 1%.

A key performance measure of the P&C insurance industry is the combined ratlo The
combined ratio is 'the sum of the claims ratio and the expense ratio. The claims ratio is the sum of
clalms and clalmls adjustment expenses incurred, net of reinsurance, expressed as a percentage of
net premiums eamed The expense ratio is the sum of expenses including commissions, premium

- taxes and general and administrative’ expenses incurred, expressed-as a percentage ‘of net

premiums earned,

In the eleven years preceding 2003, the P&C insurance mdusuy s combined ratios
refained above (100%. From 1997 through 2001, increases in the P&C insurance mdusuy ]
combined ratios were primarily caused by rising losses which were not offset by price increases
in the same period.-Recently, the P&C insurance industry’s combined ratios have improved
significantly, reflecting regulatory changes and a shift toward increased prices, improved
underwriting dlsc1plme claims frequency, claims management and a focus on expense
management. As a result, the P&C insurance industry’s 2002 combined ratio improved to 105.8%
from 111.0% in 2001 and further improved to 98.7% in 2003. The P&C insurance industry saw
further merovement in 2004 with a combined ratio of 90.7%, while in 2005 the industry recorded
a combined ratio of 92.7%.

The P&C i insurance industry’s returns on investment portfolios were severely impacted as

interest rates fell II‘.O historic lows in recent years and equity markets declined from 2000 to 2002..
i .However, as a rcsult of a better combined ratio in 2005, the P&C insurance industry has improved -

its perfonnancc postmg a retum on equity (“ROE™) of 17.0% for the year ended December 31,
2005 ' :

Lmes of Business

Pe'rsonal I nsurance

We are thc largest personal insurance prowder in Canada with $2.7 billion of direct

premjums wntten in 2005. Over the last twelve months ended December 31, 2005; our personal

insurance busmess accounted for 68.0% of our direct premiums written. Our primary coverages

b m personal i insurance are personal automobile and property insurance.

* Personal Automobile and Lmbrhty Insurance. Qur personal automoblle insurance business,
with.$1.9 bllhon! of direct premiums written over the last twelve months ended December 31,
2005 and appro;l&imately 1.5 million insurance policics in force, provides coverage to our
customers for lia}bility, personal injury (or accident benefits) and damage to their vehicles.

Liabihty insurance covers the payment of damages by insured persons who have caused bodily
injury or property darnage to third parties as a result of an accident. Personal i 1n_|ury insurance -

covers impaired ¢amings; medical, rehabilitation and attendant care resulting from injury, illness
or death sustamed by an insured person as a result of an automobile accident. Property (collision
and comprehenswe) insurance covers losses suffered by insured persons because of damage to, or
loss of, their automoblles Our coverage is also available for motor homes recreational vehicles,
snowmobiles and: antique and classic cars. ’ oo

Claims costs in automobile insurance are primarily a function of the frequency of
acc1dents the cost of medical care, the cost of automobile repair and replacement, and any cost of

_lmgatmn associated with clalms

Personal Property and Lrabthty Insurance. Our personal property insurance business, with -

$779.9 million of direct premiums written over the last twelve months ended December 31, 2005
and apprommatcly 1.4 million insurance policies in force, covers individuals for fire, theft,




vandalism and other damages to both residences and their contents as well as personal l1ab1hty
coverage. Most home policies in force in Canada are on a guaranteed replacemcnt cost basis.
Coverages are adjusted to specific segments of the market. The home market is segmented into
standard homes, high-value homes and non-standard homes. The home market also includes
coverage for ter'lants condominium owners, non-owner occupied rcmdcnces and seasonal
resxdcnces

" Claims costs in property insurance are primarily-a function of the frequency and severity of
claims. The scvcnty itself is highly influenced by inflation in building supphes, labour costs and -
household possessnons Most homeowners’ policies offer, but do not require, automatic increases
in coverage to ref|1ect growth in replacement costs and property values. I

" The profitability and pricing of homeowners’ insurance is also affected by the incidence of
natural disasters, !particularly severe winter storms, wind, ice, hail and rain storms, earthquakes
and hurricanes. We use reinsurance to reduce our exposure to natural disasters.

Camm'ercial Insurance

We are one of the largest commercial insurance providers in Canada with $1.2 billion of
direct premlums lWt‘lttcu in 2005. Over the last twelve months ended December 31, 2005, our
commercial msurance business accounted for 32.0% of our direct premiums written. Our
commcrc:al insurance products are marketed to small to medium-sized businesses and farms. ’

Commercial Automobile Insurance. Our commercial automobile insurance business, with
$330.4 million of direct premiums written over the last twelve months ended December 31, 2005
and approxlmate}y 77,000 insurance policies in force, provides the same coverage as personal
automobile i 1nsurance but for different types of risks. Commercial automobile insurance covers
commercial vehlcles public vehicles, garage risks, fleets of private passenger vehicles and light
trucks. Most of the vehicles insured by us are cars and light trucks,

Commercra! Other Insurance. Our commercial insurance business also provides coveragc

" to businesses for ﬁre and related lines, commercial liability, surety, multiple peril risks, premises.

liability and llablhty for products and operations as well as niche products (jewellers’ block,
furriers’ block, hospltalny risks and warranty coverages) and had $917.6 million of direct
premmms wntten over the last twelve months ended December 31, 2005 with approximately
228,000 i 1nsurance policies in force. We have traditionally offered commercial property, liability
and other i msurance to a diversified group of small and medium-sized commercial clients. These

- clients are typncally small businesses, commercial landlords, manufacturcrs and contractors

Distribution and Marketing

We distribute our products through two channels: brokers and direct distribution. Brokers
are our primary distribution channel, which accounted for 91% of our direct premiums written in
2005. '

e Brokers. [We conduct business with approximately 2,800 brokers across Canada. We
believe that for these brokers, who act on behalf of the customer, the priorities are
competltwe pricing and responsive customer service for their clients. Our business
success |s predicated on continuing to provide competitive rates and products that are
best su1ted for our target customers and to deliver consistently high levels of service to
brokers. For certain brokers, we provide a technology platform that allows them to
transact busmess with us, educate them on our products and engage in co-operative
marketmg We may also assist brokers in providing a broader range of wealth
management products. In 2000, ING acquired a network of P&C brokerages called
Equisure! We subsequently sold approximately half of our equity interest in each of these
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brokerages in order to ensure that locally-based customer-focused entrepreneurs direct -

these brokerages activities. As part of the Acquisition, we also acquired Canada
Brokerlink Inc., a network of brokers with operations primarily in Alberta and Ontario.

We believe that our commission structure for brokers has been consistent with standard

practices ['m the P&C insurance industry. In-2005, we incurred total commissions of
$646.3 mlillion of which $524.7 million (approximately 13.7% of net premiums earned)
represented basic commissions and $121.6 million represented contingent commissions
(approxnmately 3.2% of net premiums earned). In addition, we have provided loans to

~ certain brokers, including Equlsure brokerages, to support the growth strategy of these

|
brokerages or their succession planning requirements.

In 0ctober 2004, the Canadian Council of Insurance Regulators, an inter-jurisdictional
association of regulators of insurance, and the Canadian Insurance Services Regulatory
Orgamzauons, an inter-jurisdictional association of regulators of insurance intermediaries
across Canada, announced that they have established a committee to ensure a co-
ordinated! national approach to regulators’ review of insurance practices regarding the
relationship between insurance companies, brokers and other intermediaries. In addition,

~ the Ontano government announced that it had reached an agreement in principle with the

P&C msurance industry, whereby P&C insurers and brokers in Ontario will voluntarily
improve ¢ disclosure of both basic and contingent commission payments. In Québec, the
Autorité des marchés financiers announced in late 2005 that it would put in place rules
and gmdelmes providing for the disclosure of the relationship between P&C insurers and

brokers to consumers.. On November 12, 2004, the IBC revealed details of a plan to

provide enhanced clarity and access to information regardmg P&C insurance sales and
services m Ontario. We continue to review our commission structure, financing
arrangements with brokers and related matters, including disclosure, and intend to work
with msurance regulators in Canada and industry participants with respect to. these
: developments

- Direct Dzsrrrbunon Our direct distribution channel caters to customers who prefer to deal
directly w:th us, without an intermediary. Belair Insurance Company Inc. (“BELAIR”) is

known for its state-of-the-art call centre technology and has been conductmg business

directly through the Internet with consumers in Québec and Ontario since 1995, offering
free quotes and online purchasing for automobile and home insurance. We market
msurance directly to customers through BELAIR by contacting customers through mass
media, telemarketmg and direct mail campaigns. Products are marketed and sold mainly
through the Internet and by phone through our call centres in Québec and Ontario.

Affinity groups, such as employers and assocnatlons are also a part of our customer base.

We handle sales and services for these programs either through a sponsoring broker or through
our call centre operatlons A number of corporations market our product offerings’to their
employees In addmon we have relationships with automobile associations and other affinity
groups including 'alumni and professmnal associations across Canada that market our products to
their members.

Reinsurance

. We purchase reinsurance in order to control our exposure to losses and llabrllty arising

_from the i 1nsurance risks that we write and to protect our capltal resources. We cede a portion of
our gross prermums to reinsurers in exchange for the reinsurer’s agreement to share a portion of
the covered losses The purpose of reinsurance is to improve risk diversification and to allow us
to write more business.
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All of our non-affiliate reinsurers are required to have a minimum credit rating of “A-" or
higher as rated by A.M. Best at the time of entering into the reinsurance arrangements.
Reinsurance recoverables related to our non-rated reinsurers, including our affiliate reinsurers, are
substantially secured in the form of cash, letters of credit and/or assets held in trust accounts.

Pricing and Underwntmg

Personal Insurance We believe that pricing and underwriting are inextricably linked. The
sophistication of pnemg segmentation has a direct influence on the quality of risks that we will
assume. Similarly, the sophistication of the risk selection process has a direct impact on the
experience that is reflected in our pricing database and hence on our ability to segment and be
competitive. |

We enhan(]:e our compennve pricing pOSlthIl through dlsc1plmed claims and expense
management. Over the last ten years, we have maintained a detailed proprietary database of our
personal i msurance business that is consistent across the provmces and territories. As a result of.
our size, this database allows us to have greater insight in the forecasting of expected claims
severity and frequency Our pricing is derived from- frequency of claims, severity of claims,
expenses assoc1ated with writing business, claims administration and settlement costs and costs of
distribution channels through which the business is written.

The selectnon or underwriting process attempts to quantify the potential risks associated
with a customer to determine the eligibility of that customer and the appropriate price that should
be charged. This process is highly automated in order that brokers and underwriters can apply our
underwriting guidelines as consistently as possible. We have devechped sophisticated models to
identify the relatxve profitability at the risk or policy level in order to provide brokers wnth
additional guxdelmes to encourage business with the highest expected profitability.

Commercial Insurance As in personal insurance, product pricing in commercial insurance
is generally developed to provide for expected claims frequency and severity in the period when

. the rates will be i m effect. Product pricing takes into account the expenses associated with writing

business as well|as claims administration and settlement expenses. Our pricing strategy also
incorporates the cost of capital required to support the business being written. :

We have a disciplined approach to underwriting and risk management in commercial
insurance with an: emphasis on profitability. Our focus on small and medium-sized businesses has
allowed us to stan;dardize our underwriting criteria and pricing based on industry classifications.

Claims Managedlent

Our claims management objective is to provide efficient, high quality claims service to our
customers while controllmg claims administration costs and reducing the incidence of fraud. We
believe that this can best be achieved by our internal claims staff who are trained to apply our
claims management practices.

In 2005, 97% of our claims were handled to completion by our internal claims personnel,
without the mvolvement of an external claims adjuster. We believe this results in the desired
effect of consnstent application of our claims policies and procedures, as well as lower aggregate
clanns costs and related claims administration costs. . :

In order to benchmark and evaluate our performance we seek feedback from claimants

“annually with respect to satisfaction of our claims handling procedures. Based on this feedback

for 2005, over 94% of claimants responding to the survey were satisfied with the claims process
and the payments that they received. We believe that the results of this survey are rcpresentatwc
of the sausfactlon of our claimants. Our staff recognizes that timely resolution of claims is a
service valued by our clients and contributes to our success and reputation. In 2003, to
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demonstrate our comrmtment to efficiency, we launched a clalm service guarantee mrtlatlve
whereby we prormse a response within 30 minutes after a claim is reported. If we fail to’ respond
¢ within 30 minutes, we pay the annual premium pa1d by the customer, an amount not to exceed
S TR 000 :

o + General clalms handhng is administered by our approxnnately 1 ,500 claims professmnals
located across Canada The claims handling process includes receipt of notice of loss, coverage
. -,venﬁcatron reserivmg for the ultimate potential loss, investigation of circumstances surrounding
the claim, assessment of damages, settlement or refusal of settlement as appropriate, payment,
completing salvage operations and recuperating under subrogation or reinsurance where
applicable. The key elements of our management process arc our comprehensrve claims
handbooks, our numerous technical training programs and our quality review processes. We have
designed systemsEand processes that ensure on-going momtonng, measurement and control of all
aspects of the claims resolution process from the time we receive the notice of loss to the final
claim settlement. -

We.also have a national claims operation which:

. e " establishes our strategic direction with respect to claims and’ pOllClCS on issues that are
common to all regions and distribution channels; and

o further develops our core competenc1es and best practices in claims,

~ : The national claims operauon negotiates suppliers’ agreements, establishes training
courses, updatesjclaims manuals, establishes and monitors a consistent reserving approach,
conducts operational audits, champions system development and enhancements and establishes
stratégies to control loss costs, including internal and external adjustment expenses.

.~ Most of our claims professionals are regionally based. Their role is to manage the day-to-
day operations relating to claims. We believe that this allows us to respond to the customer in a
timely ‘manner when a claim situation arises. All of our ‘adjusters have authority limits—
magnitudes of clalms ‘that they are qualified to process — commensurate with the adjusters’
respective level of experience. These authority levels are reviewed on a regular basis and’ adjusted
if warranted : :

<, We manage a large number of claims in the normal course of business. A number of
outstandlng clalms present common issues faced by the P&C insurance industry as a whole, such
as total loss dedictible, aftermarket parts, ice storm and environmental contamination claims.
These _insurance clalms are managed by the claims department on a day-to-day basis. Reserves
are established and adjusted by the claims department and reviewed by our internal and extemnal
auditors and our actuarial, legal and finance departments If these claims are derived from’
insurance poltcxes that are covered by reinsurance treaties, the risk to us is limited to the net
retention of the isurance risks and the credit ratmg of the reinsurer.

‘Fa_clllty Association

t

Asa condltron of providing automobile insurance in Canada our insurance subsidiaries are
requlred to partlclpate in the Facility Association in all provinces and territories except British
Columbia, Saskatchewan Manitoba and Québec. The Facility Association consists of mandatory
pooling arrangements with all industry participants and provides automobile insurance coverage
to individuals or businesses that are otherwise unable to purchase coverage from private insurers.
‘The policies wntten in the F ac111ty Association are processed and managed by a small number of
1nsurance carriers which receive expense reimbursement for admmlstenng the policies. We are -
one of several carriers that manage the Facility Association’s policies. All underwntmg results
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and investment income resulting from the business processed by these carriers are then poolcd
and assumed by all industry participants accordmg to their automoblle insurance market share.

The size of the Fac1l1ty Association across jurisdictions varies over time in relation to the
profitability of automoblle insurance markets as well as the capital available to pnvate insurers.
The Facility Assoc:atlon s prcmlums exceeded $1 billion in direct premiums written in 2003, but
decreased to $850 million in 2004. In 2005, the Facnllty Association recorded $650 million in

direct written prem:ums '

As the Facility Association was unable to increase price levels as fast as claims costs
increased, it suﬁ'ered losses exceeding $500 million in 2603, largely as a result of claims in
Ontario. However due to regulatory reforms and significant rate increases in 2003 and 2004 that
helped reduce the number of risks placed into the Facility Association, it produced a profit of
approximately $530 million in 2004, In 2005, net results were a loss of approximately $22
million. . S

Compétitive Conditioas

The P&C i insurance industry is highly competltwe In each business line, the market is
highly fragmented and there are typically numerous industry participants competing. Cur
competitors mclude both foreign and domestic msurers as well as large national insurers,
government automoblle insurers, smaller local insurers and mutual and co-operatwc insurers. In
2005, the top ﬁve insurers accounted for only about 35% of the direct premiums written for the
private P&C i msurance industry. We believe that the P&C insurance industry will remain highly
compctltwe in the foreseeable future. We believe that competition in our business lines is based
on price, service, dlstnbutmn channels, commission structure, product features, financial strength
and scale, ability to pay claims, ratings, reputation and name or brand recognition. The regional
competitive landscape'varies slightly from the national picture,

In this competitive environment, ING Canada is the largest provider of P&C insurance in

. Canada based onI 2005 direct premiums written. We have developed underwriting and pricing

policies that have been demonstrated to be effective over time. As well, we are a financially’
sound company w1th an efficient capital structure that has delivered consistent returns. Since -
1988, we have successfully acquired and integrated eleven businesses, including Allianz Canada,
realized synergles and enhanced our operational efficiency and underwriting expertise. We
conduct our busmess in all provinces and territories of Canada and distribute our products and
services through P&C insurance brokers and direct distribution. Our senior management team has
an average of over 15 years in the P&C i insurance industry and has been with us for an average of
ten years. :

Intangible Properties |

The mtematlonal reputation of ING Grocp for financial services expertise is well
recognized in Canada and has a positive effect on our ability to attract a significant percentage of
personal and commerc1al lines business handled by established brokerages. Through the
Trademark Llcense Agreement between ING Groep and ING Canada, we are able to use ING
Groep's mtematlonaily recognized trademarks in furtherance of our business. In addition, in the
direct personal lmes distribution channel, BELAIR has developed a strong reputation among
consumers in Québec and Ontano

Economic Dependence
Trade-Mark Licence Agreement

Under the Trade-Mark Licence Agreement dated as of December 15, 2004 between ING
Groep and ING Canada ING Groep granted to the Company a non-exclusive licence to use the
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ING brand whwh includes the ING trade-marks, trade names, graplncs logos and domain names
of ING Groep in con51deratlon for a one-time non-refundable licence fee of one hundred dollars

(8100.00). The Company is also entitled to sub-licence the use of such marks to the members of

our distribution channel on such terms and conditions as ING Groep may determine from time to °

*" time. The licence ]w1ll terminate, subject to a 12 month transition period (or such longer period as

may be agreed to between us and ING Groep), upon the earlier of the date that (i) we notify ING

. Groep that we and all sublicensees intend to cease using the ING brand with no intention of

resuming use, (ii)] ING Groep notifies us to cease using the ING brand, or (iii) ING Groep ceases
to beneficially own at least one-half of the outstanding Common Shares of the Company. In

. addition to the foregomg, either party may terminate the Trade-Mark Licence Agreement at any

time on written notlce to the other party in the event of a material breach of the licence provisions
by-the other party which has not been cured to the reasonable satisfaction of the non-breaching
party, within 120 days of the written notice. The Trade-Mark Licence Agreement will also

+ terminate in the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy.

Changes to Contracts

The Company is eonsohdatmg its employees in the Greater Toronto Area at its downtown

‘office and is completmg a similar consolidation at its Québec regional office in Saint-Hyacinthe.

As a result, eertam leases linked to previously used spaces will expire and the Company expects
that these changes will result in greater overall efficiencies.

Employees ' .

As at December 31, 2005, ING Canada, including its operational units, had
approximately 6, 500 full-time equwalent employees.
Investment Management

Substannally all of our investment portfoho is managed by ING Investment Management
Ine (“IM™). IIM° halso provides investment management services to our employee pension plans.

As at December 31, 2005, IIM had aggregate AUM of approximately $8.2 billion of which
$7.3 billion was managed on behalf of our P&C insurance subsidiaries. Of the aggregate AUM,
IIM managed $4 8 billion, $1.7 billion and $1.3 billion in fixed income, common equity and.

. -preferred equity, respectwely

Investment Phdo!sophy and Strategws A

Our overall investment philosophy stresses preservation of capital, management of market
liquidity, dwemﬁcatlon of investment strategy and market risks, capital optimization and
taxation effects i m order to provide long-term value. Absolute and relative value of investments is’
taken into account in the formation of our investment strategies and portfolios. All public:
securities portfohos are managed against total retum benchmarks. We seek to leverage our core
investment capab111t1es in the management of a range of asset portfolios. In addition, we seck to
leverage strong local knowledge of capital markets opportunities and enhance these skills with
global resources and perspective provided by ING Groep.

Investment: strategies are evaluated based on the relative attractiveness of a given asset
category after taklng into account tax, regulatory capital, risk expectations, and other material
influences. The etrateglc asset allocation targets are established based on the availability of

certain asset types, portfolio management expertise available to manage these assets, the long- -

term: risk and retum characteristics of sectors and the interaction of the overall investment
ponfoho with the, hablhty characteristics. -
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Our mvestment objectives remain consistent with those in 2004. Beginning in 2006 we are
expanding the investment options to include investment grade international bonds and the use of
derivatives to support the management of the duration of our fixed income portfolio.

IIM has twlo primary investment teams, which focus on fixed income securities and equity
securities (mcludmg preferred shares), respectively. Within the equity team, smaller groups focus
on different investment strategies. Although the fixed income and equity teams are focused on the
two primary markets, our investment process encourages sharing of insights on issuers,
communication about market trends and building investment-outlooks founded on a common -
cconomic outlook In all cases, our investment process is oriented towards providing incremental
returns through actwc portfolio management. The performance of our investment teams is
measured agamst total retarn benchmarks. - | .

Fixed Income Securities: It is our objective to maintain a well diversified fixed income
portfolio. Qur mtemal guidelines govern the amount, of credit risk we accept in the portfolio.
With mvcstments in government bonds, provincial securities, corporate bonds, asset-backed
securities, mcludmg mortgage securities, and selected private placements and secured commercial
mortgages, credlt risk is spread across a broad range of issuers, structures and industries. Fixed
income securities are selected based on fundamental value in the context of the general economic
outlook, new lss{lance expectations, and overall market supply and demand forces for specific
securities. Rclatlve value betwcen yield curve. exposure, credit ratings diversification and
aggregate rating composmon along with sector allocation are factors we take into account in thc
managernent of the portfolios. : :

Equity Securmes Within the broad cqulty category, we¢ pursuc a range of d1fferent
strategies. We use the “Growth at a Reasonable Price” methodology as the base philosophy
underlying our equxty investment processes. This strategy seeks to balance growth opportunities
and fundamental value oriented focus. We believe in a fundamental-driven investment strategy
where macroeco'normc events and developments prov1dc the framework for security-specific

- implementation. |Wc focus on equity characteristics, variables and ratios we believe will identify

stocks positioned to outperform in the near and medium-term. We then focus our analysis and
research on specific equities that meet our prcferred profile. -

For the assets supporting the P&C insurance business, the major stlategles include, as’at
December 31, 2005, a preferred share portfolio of $1.3 billion, a dividend rollover portfollo
(“DROP™) of $]l314 9 million and a market neutral program of $34.2 million—long exposure.
The preferred sharcs portfolio seeks to provide an attractive after-tax return on a capital and risk
adjusted basis. We consider our exposure to preferrcd shares to be a mix of both fixed income and
equity market exposure We seck to diversify our exposure across industries and companies. -
Investments are made in retractable (callable), fixed/reset, floating and perpetual securities. We
seek to employ |r1gorous bottom-up fundamental analysis in constructing our preferred share
portfollo as we do in our other equity portfolios. We also strive to optimize the tax unphcatlons of
owning these mvestments The DROP focuses on high-dividend and special dividend paying

“stocks and seeks to capture favourable after-tax income from these shares. The market neutral

program is a long/short equity strategy. The expectation is to provide an attractive absolute level
of total return lirrespective of market conditions. Daily monitoring of all constraints and
predetermined stress tests oceurs in this portfolio. | i

Benchmarks and Performance ' : 7 '

Our mvestment benchmarks are representatlve of . thc risk/return profile conmdcred
appropriate to support our liability profile. Although we emphasnze the total return of the
investment poﬂfollo a variety of business variables affect the ongoing management of the asscts.

The overall benchmark for the P&C insurance subsidiaries ponfoho is a blend of the underlymg
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) benchmarks for each asset sector. The benchmarks for the preferred shares and DROP portfohos ’
. are constructed to meet the quality, diversity and liquidity needs of the business. Performance

s ﬁgures for our P&C insurance subsidiaries’ portfohos are measured on an after-tax total return .

basis. For the P&C insurance subsidiaries and pensron portfohos the investment perfonnance is

" as follows

L . . : ) 1, " Annual Returns
o : i . 2005 Last Three Years
Our P&C Insurance Subsidiaries | ' B
Total........ b e Vo 6.79% 7.33%
"FixedIncome . . ................ ST . 432% -+ 443%
. Canadian Preferred Equity. . . . .. PR ! 4.55% 7.07%
 Canadian Common Equity. . ............... T 18.91% 18.17%
. _ \

E Our Employee Pension Plans , :
Total.......L......0... e L 15.16% ' 16.41%
leedlncome.L..............., ............. 6.90% 7.19%
Canadian Common Equity. ..........coivunin . 29.48% 30.20%
US. Common Equlty ..... e | 532% - . 16.09%

' Holdings™), whlch in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ING Insurance International B.V. -

International Common Equ:ty. e e 14.07% 12.22%

(1) Excludes eommeri:ial mortgages and privately placed securities. Returns are aﬁer-tax.
i s |

Ay

Reorgamzatmn

. ING’ Canada Holdings Inc. and ING Canada Inc. Prior to the Offering on December 15,
2004 ING Canada was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ING Canada Holdings Inc. (“ING

UING Internatlonal”) Prior to the closing of the Offering, the outstandmg share capltal of ING

l Holdmgs was redrgamzed and a portion of capital stock redeemed in exchange for promissory

notes payable to ING International and all of the issued and outstanding preferred shares of ING
Holdings that were held by ING International were redeemed in exchange for promissory notes in
theé aggregate pnnmpal amount of $687.8 million. Following the ‘redemption of the preferred
shares and prior o the closing of the Offering, ING Holdings and ING Canada amalgamated
.under the Canada Business Corporations Act with-the amalgamated corporatlon named “ING
Canada Inc.” The authorized share capital of the amalgamated corporation is as described under
the section entitled “Description of Capital Structure” below..

Allianz Insurance Company of Canada and The Nordic Insurance Company af Canada As
prev:ously noted, on February 20, 2006, two subsidiaries of the Company, Allianz Insurance
Company of Canada and The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada announced their intention to
amalgamate under the name of The Nordic Insurance Company of Canada. The proposed
amalgamation is :part of the Company’s mtegratlon of Allianz Canada. As of the date of this
Annual Informatlon Form, such amalgamatron had not yet been completed and remamed subject
to regulatory approval : _ '
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RISK FACTORS = | o

If we are unable to implement our strategy or operate our busmess as we currently expect,
our results may be adversely affected.

[
1 .
'
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" In order to seek profitable growth and maximize sharcholder returns, we intend to invest
significant resources in expanding our core businesses and implementing our strategies which we
descnbe in the Supplemental PREP Prospectus of December 9, 2004 of ING Canada (“our
Prospectus™), p. 6-7: “Our Business— Our Strategy”. We cannot assure you that we will continue
to succeed in implementing our strategies. We may experience difficulty in executing our
strategies becaus:e' of, among other things, increased competition, difficulty in developing and
introducing new products adverse economic conditions and changes in regulatory requuements
Any of the above could have a material adverse effect on the success of our strateg:es

If actual claims payments exceed our reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, we
may be requlred to establish additional reserves which may adversely affect our financial

eondmon and results of operations. )

Our success depends upon our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the
insurance p011c1es that we write. We establish reserves to cover. our estimated liability for the
payment of all losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred with respect to premiums earned on
the insurance pohc1es that we write. Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability.
Rather, reserves are our estimates of what we expect to be the ultimate cost of resolution and
administration of claims. These estimates are based upon various factors, including:

!

actuarial pro;ecuons of the cost of settlement and admlmstratlon of clalms reﬂectmg facts
and circumstances then known; : :
estlmatesI of future trends in claims seventy and frequency, :

Judicial theones of liability; : i
vanables} in claims handling procedures; . S ' r
econom1c factors (such as inflation); ! _
Judicial and legislative trends, and actions such as class action lawsmts and Jud1c1al_ ,
interpretation of coverages or policy exclusmns, and -

the level of i insurance fraud.

* Most or all of these factors are not d1rectly quantlﬁable pameularly ona prospectwe basis,
and the effects of these and unforeseen factors could negatively impact our ability to accurately
assess the risks of the policies that we write. In addition, there may be significant reporting lags
between the occu'rrence of the insured event and the time it is actually reported to the i insurer and

additional lags between the time of reporting and final settlement of claims. '

We continually refine our reserve estimates in an ongomg process as claims are reported
and settled. Estabhshmg an appropriate level of reserves is an inherently uncertain process. The
followmg factors may have a substantial impact on our future actual losses and loss adjustment

_expenses experlence _ ‘ v

the amounts of claims payments; Lo ' :
“the expenses that we incur in resolving claims; '

leglslatlv'e and judicial developments; and® , ‘
changes in economic conditions, including mﬂatlon ' oo

* Actual losses and loss adjustment expenses we incur under insurance pollc1es that we write
may:. be different from the amount of reserves we establish. To the extent that actual losses and
loss adjustment expenses exceed our expectations and the reserves reflected on our financial
statements, we will be required to reflect those changes by increasing our reserves. In addition,

. . .
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govemment regulators could require that we increase our reserves lf they determine that our
reserves were understated in the past. When we increase reserves, our pre-tax income for the
penod in which we do so will decrease by a corresponding amount. In addition, increasing or
“strengthening” reserves causes a reduction in our insurance subsidiaries’ surplus and could cause

a downgradmg of the ratings of our insurance subsidiaries. Any such downgrade could in turn,

advemcly affect our ability to sell insurance pOllClCS

- Our mvestment performance may suffer as a result of adverse capital market developments

or other factors, which could in turn adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We depend on income from our investment portfolio for a substantial portion of our
earnings. In 2005l and 2004, net investment income and net realized investment and other gains
accounted for approx1mately 12.6% and 10. 5%, respectively, of our consolidated revenue. A
significant decline in yields in our investment portfolio or a significant reduction in the value of
the securities thét we own could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operauons and ﬁnam:lal condition. In addltlﬂl'l due to fluctuations in the yields on fixed income
securities, we face reinvestment risk as these secuntles mature because the funds may be
remvested at rates lower than the maturmg securitiés.

: Our ability'to achieve our lnvestment objectives is affected by general economic conditions
that are beyond our control. General cconomic conditions can adversely affect the markets for,
interest-rate- sensmve securities, including the extent and timing of investor participation in such
markets, the level and volatility of interest rates and, consequently, the value of fixed income
secunues In addmon changing economic conditions can result in increased defaults by the
issuers of securmes that we own. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including
monetary pohcles domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors
beyond our control In addition, the equity pomon of our invested assets is subject to the risk,
among others, that the financial condition of issuers in which we invest may become impaired or
that the general condition of the stock market deteriorates. N

General economic conditions, stock market conditions and many other factors can also
adversely affect the securities markets and, consequently, the value of the securities we own. We
may not be able to realize our investment. objectives, which could reduce our net income
significantly. We!may alter our investment policy at an inopportune time which could result in a
material underperformance of the investment portfolio as compared to historic results.

The P&C msurance industry is cyclical, and we expect to experience periods with excess
underwntmg capaclty and unfavourable pncmg :

HlStOI'lcall;F, the results of companies m the, P&C insurance industry have been subject to
significant ﬂuctuatlons and uncertainties. The mdustry s profitability can be affected significantly
by:

competmon
avallablllty of capital to support the assumption of new business;
rising levels of actual costs that are not foreseen by companies at the time they price their
products;
e volatile and unpredlctable developments mcludmg unnatural, weather-related and other

natural catastrophes or terrorist attacks .

* changes in loss reserves resultmg from the general claims and legal cnvironments as
different types of claims arise and judicial mterpretatlons relating to the scope of insurers’
Hability develop,

e  changes i in insurance and tax laws and regulatlon as well as new legislative lmtlatlves
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general economic conditions, such as ﬂuctuatrons in interest rates, inflation and other
_changes i in the investment environmerit, which affect returns on invested capital and may
impact the ultimate payout of loss amounts; and

general industry practices. . . . ‘ |
‘ .

Y In addition, the profitability of automoblle insurers can be affected significantly by many
factors including: . | .

regulatoré' regrmes which limit their ablhty to detect and defend against fraudulent claims
“and fraud rings; :

developmg trends in tort and class actron lmgatlon

changes m laws which could limit the use of used or like kind and quality after-market
parts or compel compcnsatlon for alleged diminution in value notwrthstandmg repair of
the vehicle;

changes in other laws or regulations, including the adoption of consumer initiatives
regardmg1 rates charged for automobile or other insurance coverage or claims handling
procedures and :

privacy and consumer protection laws that prevent insurers from assessmg risks or factors
that have|a high correlation with risks considered, such as credit scoring.

The ﬁnanc1al performance of the P&C insurance mdustry has historically tended to

fluctuate in cychcal patterns of “soft” markets characterized generally by increased competition
resulting in lower premium rates and underwriting standards followed by “hard” markets
characterized generally by lessening competition, stricter underwriting standards and increasing
premiums rates. Qur profitability tends to follow this cyclical market pattern with profitability
generally i mcreasmg in hard markets and decreasing in soﬁ markets. These fluctuations in demand
and competition lcould produce underwriting results that would have a negative impact on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Lot

" Our business is heavily regulated and changes in regulatlon may reduce our profitability
and limit our growth '

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulatlon and supervision' by insurance

regulatory authorities of the _]UI']SdlCthﬂS in which they are incorporated and licensed to conduct
business. That re1gulatlou and supervision is designed to protect polrcyholders and creditors rather
than investors. We believe that our insurance subsidiaries are in material compliance with all
applicable regula‘tory requirements. It is not possible to predict the future impact of changing
federal, provincial and territorial regulations on our operations, and we cannot assure you that
laws and regulatlons enacted in the future will not be more restrictive than existing laws. As
already noted, we are subject to numerous laws and regulatlons in various jurisdictions. These
+ laws and regulatlous delegatc regulatory, supervnsory and administrative powers to federal,
provincial and tcrntonal insurance commissioners and agencies. Such regulation generally is
designed to protcct policyholders rather than sharcholdcrs and is related to matters including:

rate settmg,
. risk-based capital and solvency standards;
restnctlorlls on types of investments;
the maintenance of adequate reserves for uncarned premiums and unpaid claims;
the examination of insurance companies’ by regulatory authorities, including periodic
financial Izmd market conduct examinations; |
the hcensmg of insurers, agents and brokers;
limitations on dividends and transactions with affiliates; and




¢ regulatory actions. '

In addmonI these laws and regulations typically require us to penodlcally file financial
statements and annual reports, prepared on a statutory accounting basis, and other information
with insurance regulatory authorities, including information concerning our capital structure,
ownershlp, ﬁnanmal condition including, on an annual basis, the aggregate amount of contingent
commissions pa1d and general business operations. We could be subject to regulatory actions,
sanctions and fines if a regulatory authonty believed we had failed to comply with any applicable
law or rt:gulatlon| .

Any such failure to comply with applicable laws could result in the imposition of
significant rcstnctlons on our ability to do business or significant penalties, which could
adversely affect our results of operations and ﬁnanc1al condition. In addition, any changes in laws
and regulatlons mcludmg the adoption of consumer or other initiatives regarding contingent and
other com:mssmns, rates charged for automobile or claims handling procedures, could matcrlal]y
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. -

Our business is subject to risks related to litigation and regulatory actions.

In addition to the occasional employment-related litigation to which all businesses are
subject, we are ?. defendant in a number of claims relating to our insurance and other related
business opcratlons We may from time to time be subject to a variety of legal and regulatory
actions relating t0 our current and past business operations, including, but not limited to:

e disputes over coverage or claims adjudication;

e disputes {regarding sales practices, disclosures, premium refunds, llcensmg, rcgulatory
compliance and compensation arrangements;

e disputes l with our agents, producers or network providers over compensation and
termination of contracts and related claims;

. regulatory actions relating to consumer pressure in relation to benefits realized by
insurers;

» disputes with taxing authorities regarding our tax liabilities; and
disputes relating to certain businesses acquired or disposed of by us.

In add:tlon plaintiffs continue to bring new types of legal claims against insurance and

- related compames Current and future court decisions and legislative activity may increase our

exposure to these types of claims. Multlparty or class action claims may present additional
exposure to substantlal economic, non-economic or punitive damage awards. The loss of even
one: of these clalms if it resulted in a significant damage award or a judicial ruling that was
otherwise detnmental could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condltmn This risk of potential liability may make reasonable settlements of claims
more difficult to obtain. We cannot determine with any certainty what new theories of recovery
may evolve or what their impact may be on our businesses.

We may be subject to govcmmontal or administrative investigations and proceedings in the

“context of our hlghly regulated sectors of activity. We cannot predict the outcome of these

investigations, proceedmgs and reviews, and cannot assure you that such investigations,
proceedings or reviews or related litigation or changes i in operating policies and practices would
not materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, if we
were to expenencc difficulties with our relationship with a regulatory body in a given
jurisdiction, it could have a material adverse effect on our ability to do business in that
jurisdiction and the price of the Common Shares.
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The jinsurance and related businesses in whlch we operate may be subject to periodic -

negatwe pubhclty, which may negatively impact 0ur financial results. b

|
! Our products and services are ultlmately distributed to individual consumers. From time to

. time, consumer advocacy groups or the media may focus attention on our products and services,
,therch subjectmg our ‘industries to periodic negative pubhcny We also may be uegatwely

impacted if another one of our industries engages in_practices resulting in increased public

. attention to our businesses. Negative publicity may also result in increased regulation and

leglslatlve scrutu:{y of practices in the P&C insurance industry-as well as increased litigation,
which may further increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our profitability by
1mpedmg our ablhty to market our products and services, requiring us to change our products or

: serv1ces or mcreasmg the regulatory burdens under which we operate.

Intense competltmn for our products could harm our ability to maintain or increase our
proﬁtabrhty aud%premlum volume. S . R

.+ The P&C msurance industry ‘is highly competttwe and we beheve that it will remain
hlghly competltlvle in the foreseeable future. We believe that competition in our business lines is
based on price, service, commission structure, product features, financial strength and scale,
ablhty to pay clmms ratings, reputatlon and name or brand recognition. We compete with a large
number of domestlc and foreign insurers. These companies sell through various distribution
channels mcludmg brokers and agents who sell products exclusively for one insurer and directly
to the consumer. \ We compete not only for business and individual customers, employers and
other group customers but also for brokers, other dlstnbutors of investment and insurance -
products '

i In addmon we may not be aware of other, companies that may be planning to enter the
insurance marketEor existing insurers that may be planning to raise additional capital. Any new,
proposed or potential legislative or industry developments could further increase competition in
our markets. We canuot assure you that we will be able to achieve or mamtam any particular level
of direct premlums written in this competitive env:ronment

Brokers that sell our products sell insurance products of our competitors. Such ‘brokers
may choose not to sell our products. :

. We distribute our products primarily through a uetwork of brokers. These brokers sell our
competltors products and may stop selling our products altogether. Strong competition exists
among insurers for brokers with demonstrated ability to sell insurance products. Premium volume
and profitability 'could be materially adversely affected if there is a material decrease in the

“number of brokers that choose to sell our products. In addition, our strategy of distributing

through the direct channel may adversely impact our relatloushlp with brokers who distribute our
products

'We may be unable to successfully pursue our acqulsmon strategy '

' In executing our growth strategy, we intend to continue to expand our operatlons and
business in part b‘y acquiring additional P&C insurance businesses. We cannot assure you that we
will ‘be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional businesses or successfully
integrate any acquired businesses into our operations. Furthermore, acquisitions may involve a
number of special risks, including diversion of management’s attention, failure to retain key
personnel unant1c1pated events or circumstances and legal liabilities, some or all of which could

'have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condttlon We

t
cannot assure you that acquired businesses will achieve the antlclpatcd revenues, income and
synergles Acqulsltlons could also result in potentlally dilutive issuances of equity secuntles

}
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Failure on our part to manage our acquisition strategy successfully couid have a matenal adverse
effect on our busmess results of operations and financial condition.

b

ING Groep wxllrsubstantlally influence our direction and operatlons and may have interests

that differ from'those of our other shareholders.

Subsequent to the exercise in full of the Over-Allotment Option on January 13, 2005, ING
Groep directly or indirectly owns approximately 70% of the outstanding Common Shares.
Consequently, ING Groep is in a position to determine the outcome of corporate actions requiring
shareholder approval, including: electing certain members of our board of directors; adopting
amendments to our constating documents; and approving a merger or consolidation, liquidation |
or sale of all or substantlally all of our assets. ING Groep is also in a position to prohibit us from .
carrying on business in jurisdictions outside- of Canada. On December 15, 2004, ING Canada
entered into a Co-operation Agreement with ING Groep which provides, among other things, that
for so long as ING Groep holds not less than one-third of our outstanding Common Shares, we
may not carry out certain corporate acts, including entering into business combinations with

- unaffiliated third parties or making acquisitions or dispositions above certain monetary

thresholds, without the prior written approval of ING Groep. In addition, ING Groep holds a
Special Share, which entitles ING Groep to elect a specified number of directors to our board,
which initially will comprise 5 of our 12 directors, one of whom must be appointed our Chief
Executive Officer. Accordingly, ING Groep has significant influence over our ongoing business
and operations, both as a shareholder and as a party to the Co-operation Agreement, even after it
ceases to own or, control a majority of our Common Shares. For further details, please refer to the
section entitled “Relat:onshnp with ING Groep” below.

In addition, ING Groep has provided us, and will continue to provide us, with certain
services. The terms of these arrangements have been negotiated between us and ING Groep and
may not necessarily reflect terms that we or ING.Groep would agree to with an independent third

party. Certain of these arrangements may be disadvantageous to us. For further details, please

- refer to the section entitled “Relationship with ING Groep™ below. Certain of our directors are

also directors or officers of ING Groep or certain of its subsidiaries. Conflicts of interest could
arise between us and ING Groep or one of its subsidiaries, and any such conflict may not be -
resolved in a manner that favours us.

ING Grocp has advised us that it intends to retain control of us and does not currently
intend to pursue any action that would cause its holding of Common Shares to be reduced such
that it would not retain such control. In order to retain control, ING Groep may decide not to enter
into a transaction in which our shareholders would receive consideration for their Common
Shares that is much higher than the cost of their investment in Common Shares or the then market
price of the Common Shares. We do not have any control over any decision that ING Groep may -
make in the future regarding its continued ownership of Common Shares.

Our proﬂtability and ability to grow may be adversely affected by our mandatory
participation in the Facility Assoclatlon in Canada’s automoblle insurance markets.

As a condition to the ability to conduct business in Canada’s automoblle insurance
markets, our insurance subsidiaries are required to participate in the Facility Association that
covers most of the provinces and territories. For further details, please refer to the section entitled
“Description of the Business — Facility Association” above. Facility Association losses, an
increase in the number of policyholders captured in the Facility Association, or changes in the
pooling arrangement could reduce the profitability of our insurance subsidiaries in any given
period or limit the ability of our insurance subsidiaries to profitably grow the business.
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Terrornst attacks and ensuing events could have an adverse effect on our financial results
and financial condltlon.

We may have exposure to losses resultmg from acts of terrorism and political instability.
These risks are mherently unpredictable, although recent events may lead to increased frequency
and severity, It i rs difficult to predict the occurrence of such events with statistical certainty or to
estimate the amount of loss per occurrence they will generate.

- In addmon any future acts .of terrorism would 31gn1ﬁcantly adversely affect general
economic, market and political conditions, potentlally mcreasmg some of the other risks to our
business discussed in this section.

The ‘occurrence  of severe catastrophic events may have a material adverse effect on our
financial results and ﬁnanclal condltlon.

Our insurdnce operatlons expose us to clalms arising out of catastrophes We have
experienced, and expect in the future to experience, catastrophic losses that may materially
reduce.our proﬁtablhty or harm our financial condition.

* Catastrophes can be caused by various natural and unnatural events. Natural catastrophic
events include hurricanes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, rainstorms, ice storms,
explosions, severe winter weather and fires. Unnatural catastrophic events include hostilities,
terrorist acts, nots crashes and derailments. The incidence and severity of catastrophes are
mherently unpredlctable The extent of losses from a catastrophe is a function-of both the total
amount of insured exposure in the arca-affected by the event and the severity of the event. Most
catastrophes are !restricted to small geographic areas, however, hurricanes, windstorms and
earthquakes may produce significant damage in large, heavily populated areas. Catastrophes can
cause losses in a variety of P&C insurance lines. For example, the ice storm in Eastern Canada in
1998 caused P&C insurance losses in several lines of business, including business interruption,
personal property, automobile and commercial property

Claims resultmg from natural or unnatural catastrophlc events could cause substanttal,
volatility in our ﬁnanmal results for any fiscal quarter or year and could matenally reduce our |
profitability or harm our financial condition. Our ablhty to write new business also could be
affected. |

We may e'xpen'ence an abrupt interruption of activities caused by unforesceable and/or
catastrophic events Our operations may be subject to losses resulting from such disruptions.
Losses can relate to property, financial assets, trading positions and also to key personnel. If our
business contmulty plans cannot be put into action or do not take such events into account losses
may further increase.

-If we are unable to mamtam our current financial strength ratings, our ability to write

insurance and compete with other insurance companies may be adversely impacted.

Independent third party rating agencies assess and rate the financial strength of insurers

" based upon cntena established by the rating agencies. Periodically the rating agencies evaluate us

to confirm that we continue to meet the criteria of the ratmgs previously assigned to us. The
ratings assigned by rating agencies to insurance companies represent independent opinions of
financial strength and ability to meet policyholder obligations, and are not directed toward the
protection of itwestors Ratings by rating agencies are not ratings of securities or
recommendations to buy, hold or sell any security. Financial strength ratings are used by insurers
and insurance brokers as an important means of assessing the financial strength and quality of
insurers. We may not maintain our financial strength ratings from the rating agencies. Please refer
to the section at p. 33 in our Prospectus entitled “Our Business — Ratings” for further details.

!
I
|
| 23.
|
|
|
[



'
|
I
1
i
i
i

: ! : :
Any rating downgrade could result in a reduction in the number of insurance contracts we write
and in a significant loss of business, as such business could move to other competitors with

highcr ratings, thus causing premiums and earnings to decrease.

We may not be able to successfully alleviate risk through reinsurance arrangements, which
could cause us to reduce our premiums written in certain lines or could result in losses.

We use reinsurance to help manage our exposure to insurance risks. The availability and
cost of reinsurance are subject to prevailing market conditions, both in terms of price and
available capacity, which can affect our premium volume and profitability. Many reinsurance
companies exclude certain coverages from, or alter terms in, the policies that we purchase from
them. For example, foliowing the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, certain reinsurers
excluded coverag'e for terrorist acts or priced such coverage at prohibitively high rates. These
gaps in reinsurance protection exposé us to greater risk and greater potential losses and could
adversely affect our ability to write futurc business.

We bear credit risk with respect to our reinsurers and we purchase a significant portion of
our reinsurance I'rom an unrated and unlicensed reinsurer.

Qur remsurance arrangements are with a limited number of reinsurers and, as of December
31, 2005, approxnmatcly 17.7% of our ceded policy liabilities were to ING Re, one of our
affiliates, which is rated “AA” by S&P and is not licensed in Canada. This increases a potential
adverse effect onI our results of operations if one or more of our reinsurers is unable to meet its .
financial obhganons Although all of our non-affiliate reinsurers were rated “A-" or higher by
A.M! Best at the time of entering into the reinsurance arrangements, these ratings are subject to
change and may l?e lowered. :

Although remsurance makes the assuming reinsurer liable to us to the extent of the risk
ceded, we are not relieved of our primary liability to our insureds as the direct insurer. As a result,
we bear credit nsk with respect to our reinsurers. We cannot ensure that our reinsurers w1ll pay all
reinsurance clalms on a timely basis or at all. We evaluate each reinsurance claim based on the-
facts' of the case, 'histoncal experience with the reinsurer on similar claims and existing law and
include in our rcserve for uncollectible reinsurance any amounts decmcd uncollectible.

The mablhty to collect amounts due to us under reinsurance arrangements would reduce A
our net income and cash flow, and the ability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends or
make other distributions to us.

t - .
Because we are, dependent on key employees, the loss of any of these employees or our
inability to retain other key personnel could adversely affect our business.

We are substantially dependent on a number of key employees. Our success has been, and
will continue to be, dependent on our ability to retain the services of our existing key employees
and to attract and retain additional qualified personnel in the future. The loss of the services of
any of our key employees, or the inability to identify, hire and retain other highly qualified
personnel in the' future, could adversely affect the quality and profitability of our business
operations. :

General economic, financial market and political conditions may adversely affect our
business and proﬁtablhty

Our busmesses and profitability may be matenaily adversely affected from time to time by

general economic, financial market and political conditions such as those occumng after the

September 11, 2001 ‘terrorist attacks as discussed above. In periods of economic downturn
characterized by higher unemployment, lower family income, lower corporate cammings, lower
busmess mvestmcnt and lower consumer spending, individuals and businesses may choose not to
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purchase msurance products, may permit existing policies to lapse, or may choose to reduce the
amount of coverago purchased. In addition to the demand for our insurance products bemg
adversely aﬁ‘ected our reserves and provisions would likely increase resulting in lower eammgs
General mﬂat:onary pressures may affect the costs of medical care, automobile parts and repair,

construction and other items, increasing the costs of paying claims.

As a holding company, we are dependent on the results of operations of our subsidiaries to
meet our obhgatmns and pay future dividends.

Wearea holdmg company and a legal entity separate and distinct from our subsidiaries. As
a holdmg company without significant operations or assets of our own, our principal sources of
funds are dividends and other distributions as well as loans from our subsidiaries. Canadian
insurance laws llrmt the ability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends and require our
insurance sub31d1_ar1es to maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus. In addition, for
competitive reasons, our insurance subsidiaries need to maintain financial strength ratings which
requires us to sustam capital levels in our insurance subsidiarics. These restrictions affect the
ability of our msurance subsidiaries to pay dividends and use their capital in other ways. The
inability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us could have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial condition.

Risk Management

We have estabhshed comprehenswe risk management and mtemal control procedures
designed to manage and monitor various risks in order to protect our business, clients and

- shareholders. Our risk management efforts aim to avoid risks that could materially impair our

ﬁnancnal posmon accept risks that contribute to sustainable earnings and growth and disclose
these risks in a full and complete manner. OQur board of directors is responsnble for overseeing our
risk-taking acnvmes and risk management programs.

Our board of directors has established the followmg comrmttees to ensure that nsks are
being properly measured, monitored and reported:

o Audit and Risk Review Committee: This committee is composed exclusively of .
mdependent members of our board of directors and chaired by an mdependent director. In
addition|to its audit committee functions, which include the review of the financial
mformatlon and the monitoring of the internal controls, this committee reviews trends
and key nsk positions and exposures, risk management programs, practices and internal
controls and compliance with key operational risk pohcles and limits.

. Conduct; Review and Corporate Governance Committee: This committee is composed of

' a majority of independent members of our board of directors and chaired by an

independent director. This committee reviews, approves or makes recommendations to .

+ . our board of directors with respect to related party transactions, compliance and market

conduct!programs and policies, including the resolution of conflicts of interests, and
restnctnons on use of confidential nnformatlon

s Risk Management Committee: This comtmttee is composed of six of our senior officers
and is chalred by a senior officer designated by our board of directors. It meets monthly
and oversees and endorses our global risk management priorities, assesses the
effectiveness of risk management programs, policies and actions of each key critical
function'of our business and reports on an ongoing basis to the Chief Executive Officer,
quarterly to the audit committee, and at a minimum annually to our board of directors.
The committee evaluates our overall risk profile, almmg for a balance between rnisk,
‘return, and capital, and determines policies concerning security and information
technology risk, ¢ompliance, regulatory, legal and litigation issues, crisis and business
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continuity risks and reputational risk as well as management information systems. The

_committee is mandated to: (i) identify risks that could matenially affect our business; (ii)

measure risks and their financial and other impact, such as reputational; (iii) monitor
risks; and (iv) avoid risks if they are not in line with the risk tolerance level determined
by our board of directors. This committee uses a number of tools and processes to
identify and assess the risks that could affect us. The main tools are the R&CSR (Risks
and Control Self-Assessment Report), through which the risk profile of a specific

business unit is established and then measured, and the key risk indicators which are a

strategic tool for proactive and continuous monitoring of identified risks.

In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is directly accountable to our board of directors for

all of our risk-taking activities and risk management programs.and is supported by the Chief
Financial Officer and-the Senior Vice-President, Corporate and Legal Services, who act as Co-
Chief Risk Officers, as well as the senior management committee which reviews findings of the
risk management committee and takes action accordingly.

”i'he following sets out the principal risks we have identified and the strategies adopted to

manage them:

Strategic. Risks: We face many strategic challenges, including ongoing management and
development of our products, services and relationships with our distribution networks
and insureds. We manage these risks through formal processcs and approval.s which
include:

o obtaining our board of directors’ final approval of the medium term plan, which
provides for strategic planning and capital allocation, and includes risk
managemcnt analysis;

o revxewmg of the financial and operational reports by the audit and risk review
committee and our board of directors on a quarterly basis;

o having each of our business units develop detailed business plans, which are then
executed by local management; :

o havmg each significant acquisition reviewed by our board of directors and the

majonty sharcholder; and

o developmg and maintaining high standards of conduct through distribution of our
Code of Conduct to all new employees and periodical reminders of same to all
employees together with training sessions.

Operational Risks: Operational risks are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internai processes, systems failures or human- performance failures. The main
operational risks relate to our inability to design and price our products properly, retain
our distribution networks, manage our information properly and recuperate amounts due
by our reinsurers.

Investment Risks: Our investment risks are .derived from three main sources: (i)
investment risks that result from price volatility, interest rate changes, default,
deterioration of credit rating or creditworthiness, adverse movements in foreign currency
rates and from not having access to sufficient funds to meet both expected liabilities and
unexpected cash demands; (ii) we bear the credit risk of our reinsurers in case they
become unable to meet their financial obligations; and (iii) the risk of loss due to inability
or unwillingness of our brokers to whom we lend money to repay amounts due.
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To alleviate such nsks we have adopted an investment phllosophy aimed at preservmg '
« 1 capital and investment policies that set investment limits in each category of acceptable
mvestments and that fix minimum ratings for each type of investment. These investment

. policies and guidelines are applied by IIM and are closely monitored by an investment
ot comrmttee that reports to our board of directors at each of its regular meetmgs Please
- refer to the section entitled “Description of the Busmess — Investment Management —
. Investment Philosophy and Strategies” above.

Remsuret!s are selected based on their financial strength ratings, business praettces and
the pnee[ of their product offerings. All non-related reinsurers must be rated “A-" or
higher by A.M. Best at the time of entering into reinsurance agreements with us, in
addition fo providing collateral under reinsurance agreements if they are not licensed in
Canada. Relnsurance agreements and reinsurers are closely monitored on a continuing
basis. Please refer to the section entitled “Description of the business ~ Reinsurance”
above. :

. Broker loans are managed by officers in ¢ach of the three main regions and averseen by
b management at a national level: they negotiate the loans and equity participation with
- selected brokerages to which we lend money or in which we take a co-ownership
posrtlon Standard agreements are used for this purpose and contain general security and
supervrsron clauses. These officers monitor the financial situation of these brokerages.

The Company s Board reviews the loan arrangements as a whole on an annual basis.

"« Market Conduct Risks: We are subject to numerous laws and regulations in all the .

_]unsdlctrons in which we operate. Failure to respect all laws and regulations, or failure to

identify such laws and regulations and their impact on our relationship with customers

could negatwely affect our financial results and reputation. In this regard, we are

' supported by a tecam of lawyers and staff, and by outside counsel when deemed
necessary, in addition to being an active member of the major industry associations. Also,
we recently created a government relations function to ensure contact with the

! govemments of the various provinces in which we operate, and to be proactwe in
srtuatrons that could affect our busrness

" o External |R:sks' Our operations are exposed to a large number of diversified external
' factors over which we have no or limited control. These include natural events, general
economic and geo-political conditions, and adverse legislative and _|ud1c1al developments.
Identlﬁcatlon monitoring and mitigating or avoidance of such risks is supported by the
risk management effort at all levels of our organization, which includes prudent actuarial
reserves, controlled risk appetite and limited risk tolerance and control of the brndmg
.+ authorization limits in operations, credit, acquisitions or disposals.
§
t 1
' DIVIDENDS |
i ' ING Canada did not declare or pay any dividends in 2004 following the Offering. On
February 17 2005 ING Canada announced the declaration of a quarterly dividend of $0.1625
per share on its o!utstandmg common shares and paid out such dividend amount on each of March
31 June 30, September 30 and December 30, 2005. On February 16th 2006, the Board of
" Directors of ING Canada declared a quarterly dividend of $0.25 per share on its outstanding
common shares, to be paid on March 31, 2006 to shareholders of record on March 15, 2006. The
payment of d1v1dends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and depends on, among
. other things, our financial condition, general business conditions, restrictions regarding the -
payment of dmdends to us by our P&C insurance subsidiaries and other factors that our board
may in the future consider to be relevant. In addition, pursuant to a co-operation agreement

;o
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entered into bctwlrccn ING Canada and ]NG Groep, ING Groep must approve any change in our
policy with respect to the declaration and payment of dividends. For furthcr details, please refer
to section “Relationship with ING Groep” below. -

"Asa holdmg company with no direct operations, we rely on cash dividends and other
permitted payments from our insurance subsidiariés and our own cash balances to pay dividends
to our shareholders. The amount of dividends payable by our ‘subsidiaries without the prior . -
approval of the apphcable insurance regulatory authorities is limited by applicable insurance law

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE

- Our autho'nzed share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares .
(“Common Shares”), an unlimited number of class A shares, issuable in series, the rights and
preferences of wh:ch may be established from time to time by our board of directors, and one
special share (the “Special Share™). As of December 31, 2005, 133,732,000 Common Sharcs ‘no
class A shares and one Special Share were issued and outstanding. '

‘Common Shareq

' Holders of' Common Shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by our-
board of dlrcctors and, unless otherwise provided by legislation, are entitled to one vote per

* Common Share on all matters to be voted on at all meetings of shareholders. Upon our voluntary

or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the holders of Common Shares are entitled
to share rateably in the remaining assets available for distribution, after payment of liabilities.-

Class A Shares

The class A shares wnll be issuable from time to t1mc in one or more series. Our board of
directors will be authorized to fix before issue the number of, the consideration per share of, the
designation of, and the provisions attaching to, the class A shares of each series, which may
include voting nghts The class A shares of each series will rank on par with the class A shares of

. every other series and will be entitled to preference over the Common Shares and any assets in

the event of l1qu1dat10n dissolution or our winding up. If any cumulative dividends or amounts
payable ona return of capital are'not paid in full, the class A shares of all series will participate
rateably in accordance with the amounts that would be payable on such shares if all such
dividends were dcclared and paid in full or the sums that would be payable on such shares on the
return of capital lf all amounts so payable were paid in full, as the case may be.

Specml Share i

The authonzcd number of Special Shares wnll be limited to one. Thc holder of the Special
Share will be cntltled te receive notice of, to attend and speak at any meeting of our sharcholders;
however, the holdcr of the Special Share will not be entitled either to vote at any sharcholder
meeting or to sngn a resolution in writing, other than (i) in respect of the nominee rights described
below under the|head1ng “Relationship with ING Groep — Co-operation Agreement — ING

| Groep CorporateGovernance Rights — Special Share Rights— ING Groep Nominees”, and (ii)
. |

as.a separate class (A) pursuant to applicable law and (B) upon any proposed change to the
maximum or minimum number of directors. The Special Share will also provide for certain rights
with respect to the appointment of our Chief Executive Officer. The rights attaching to the
Special Share will not apply for so long as ING Groep, or any of its affiliates, or any combination
thereof, competes with us.

. The Special Share will be automatically convertcd into one Common Share in the
circumstances described below under the heading “Relationship with ING Groep— Co-operation

t
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Agreement--— ING Groep Corporate Govemance R1ghts— Spee1a1 Share nghts— Automatlc '

Conversion of Specnal Share”. 1

"No dmdends will be declared or paid by ING Cénada on the Special Share. In the event of

" our liquidation, dlSSOlutIOD or wmdmg-up, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holder of the

Spemal Share w11[ be entitled to receive $1.00 for the Special Share before any distribution of any
part of our assets among the holders of our Common Shares, but after any such distribution

: among the holders of any series of class A shares.

Ratmgs

‘On January 20, 2006, the Dominion Bond Rating Service (DBRS) assigned an “A” (low)
rating to the long-term Senior Unsecured Debt of the Company, which is the third-highest of the
ten rating categories for long-term debt. According to DBRS, debt securities rated “A” are of
satisfactory credit quality and protection of interest and principal is considered substantial. A
reference to “high” or “low” reflects the relative strength within the rating category. The ratmg
trend has been establlshed as stable.

Such a security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may.be

-subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating organization.

MARKET FOR SECURI'I'[ES

The common shares of ING Canada are llsted and trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol\“IIC Lv”.

Trading Price and Volume

The followmg table represents the price ranges ancl volume traded on the Toronto Stock
Exchange of common shares of ING Canada from January 1, 2005 until the Company s financial
year-end on December 31, 2005.

Period Low (8) High($) .. ~ Volume.
2005 K IR '
JANUALY .ooereer e becrrvc s 2897 3255 8,109,955
February.............bumereesessesserneer reeerereessin 31.80 . 3480 7,086,680
MATCH...evvevvvvreseesbovenerssensssnssnessenseseensenssncsnnns 32.00 C 3540 4,052,272
N 11 TR USSR 32.39 ©35.09 4,951,786
May.......ooovveeeeeee L eereeeesseseeseesessessensessessesnes 32.40 . 35.00 4,269,310
JUNE..cerrerrere. e rersessvesmsessessesssaseniens . 3326 .. 34.45 4,721,853
July s | v eeveeesssmessmsrmeesssesssessessesnes 33.55 3639 2,118,921
August ............ eeeevsessiamsmsiessemesassassresane 35.31 4300 5,109,670
L RO O 41.87 45.89 4,419,071
October.............. et estenee et be e re e nranes .43.50 46.13 2,355,900
November .......... S SR 43.60 46.00 2,574,535

December........... SR, e 45.76 5335 2,958,569
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The followmg table sets out, for each of our directors and executive officers, their name,
municipality of re51dence position with the Company, principal occupation and, if a director, the
date on which the person became a director. Unless otherwise noted, each of the directors of the
Company will serve until the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which is scheduled to be held on

. May 1, 2006. Each director and executive officer listed has held the principal occupation
indicated for the past five years except if otherwise indicated hereunder. -

Marietta, Georgia, USA

] | Director of ING -
: Lo ! Position with ) , Canada or
Name and Residence-| ING Canada Principal Occupation Predecessors Since
Claude Dussault®) l Director, President and President and Chief March 28, 2000
'Toronto Ontario, Canada ‘Chief Executive Officer Executive Officer, ING
o i Canada s
Yves Brouillette®#® ! Chairman Corporate Director October 10, 1989

Michaél W. Cunningham

Senior Vice-President and

Senior Vice-President and

Toronto, Ontario, Canada Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer,
B . I - : ) ING Canada
Claude Désilets : Senior Vice-President and | Senior Vice-President and -
Sainte-Julie, Québec, Canada | Chief Actuary Chief Actuary, ING Canada
Frang:mse Guénette | Senior Vice-President, Senior Vice-President, -
Toronto, Ontario, Canada Corporate and Legal Corporate and Legal '

; Services, and Secretary Services, and Secretary, -

' i ING Canada

. Charle;s ﬁrindamour

Toronto, Ontario, Canada

Executive Vice-President

Executive Vice-President,
ING Canada

Derek Iles !
Toronto, Ontario, Canada

Executive Vice-President

Executive Vice-President,
ING Canada -

Donald K. Lough ,
Unionville, Ontario, Canada

Executive Vice-President

.| Executive Vice-President,

ING Canada

Jacques Valotaire I
Longueull Québec, Canada

Executive Vice-President

Executive Vice-President,
ING Canada

Marcel Cot™ !
Montréal, Québec, Canada

Independent Director

President, Secor Consulting
Inc.

December 14, 2004

Robert W. Crispin®” Director Chairman and Chief October 26, 2004
Scarborough Maine, USA Executive Officer, ING
] Investment Management
! LLC
Ivan E.H. Duvar"4 Independent Director President and CEO, MIJAC

Ambherst, Nova Scotia,’
Canada

Inc.

April 19, 2005

Michael A. Mackenzw"””
C°b°“l'8, Ontario, Canada

Independent Director

Executive in residence,
Schulich School of
Business, York University

December 14, 2004

Eileen Mercier! i Independent Director Corporate Director December 14, 2004
Toronto, Ontario, Canada . .

Robert Normand"'® Independent Director Corporate Director December 14, 2004
Rosemére, Québec, Canada )

Louise Roy® Associate Fellow, Center for | December 14, 2004

Montréal, Québec, Caflada

Independent Director

Interuniversity Research and
Analysis on Organizations
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Director of ING

N |
E ! . . : .
I S S
| |
|
]

! ! ) Position with - : Canada or
Name and Residence ING Canada - Principal Occupation Predecessors Since
Carol Stephenson™ Independent Director Dean, Richard Ivey School | December 14, 2004
Manotlck, Ontario, Canada | of Business, University of

| , Western Ontario ' ‘
Mark A. Tulhs(z’ l Director "| President, Institutional August 15, 2000
Atlanta Georgia, USA | ‘ ‘| Businesses, ING U.S.
Financial Services S
David A. Wheat¥ Director Executive Vice-President August 19, 2004
Duluth Georgia, USA | and Chief Financial Officer,
I : - " | ING Insurance Americas -

; Noltes |

i (1) ' Denotes melmber of the Audit and Risk Review Committee

) Denotes member of the Conduct Review and Corporate Governance Commnt‘tcc

; 3), Denotes mttlirnber of the Human Resources Committee

t(4) Denotes member of the Investment Committee

: Claude Dussault. ‘Mr. Dussault is a member of ING Grocp s Leadership Council and has
. been' ING Canada’s President and Chief Executive Officer since 2001. Prior to that time, he was
i - President and Chref Executive Officer of ING Canada’s Brokerage Network. Over the last 20
3 " years, Mr. Dussault has occuplcd several executive positions within the ING group of companies .
* in Canada; Mr. Dussau]t is a Fellow of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries and the Casualty
- Actuarial Somety, he graduated from I’Université Laval (Québec) with a Bachelor of Actuarial
. 4! ! Science degree and has completed the Advanced Executive Education Program at the Wharton
b ; School of Busmcss Mr. Dussault has also been a director of ING Canada’s P&C insurance
‘ . subsidiaries smce May I, 2000 and is responsible for the strategic development of the Company
! , g ! and'its subs1d1arles Mr. Dussault is also a director of ING Bank of Canada that reports to the-
i ‘ baukmg arm of IITIG Groep. '

Yves Brouillette. Mr. Brouillette is currently a Corporate Director and a member of the
, Board of Dlrectors of ING Comercial America. He was, from April 2002 to September 2005, the
' . Chief Executive Ofﬂcer of ING Latin America. Prior to that time, Mr. Brouillette was General
' o : Manager of ING Mexico and Chairman of the Exécutive Committee of ING Comercial America
since 2001. Over the last 30 years, Mr. Brouillette has occupied several senior and executive
positions within the ING group of companies and is currcntly a member of the board of a number
: . of ING compamcs operating in Canada. Mr. Brouillette is an Actuarial Science graduate of.
N * I’Université Laval (Québec), a graduate of the Advanced Management Program of Harvard
. Business Schoolland is a Fellow of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries and of the Casualty
" Actuarial Society. Mr Brouillette has also been a dlrector of our P&C insurance companies since
1989

. Michael W ,Cunningham. Prior to h1s current appointment in January 2002 Mr.
Cunmngham was the Chief Financial Officer of ING U.S. Worksite Financial Services serving

: ‘the defined contrlbutnon qualified retirement market where he was responsible for all finance
ﬁmctlons Over. the last 14 years, Mr. Cunningham has occupied several executive positions
w1thm the ING group of companies in North America. Mr. Cunningham received his Bachelor of
Science degree m 1970 and his Masters of Business Administration degree in 1973. He has
completcd the Ac}vanced Executive Education Program from the Wharton School of Busmess

" Claude Désilets. Mr. Désilets Jolned the ING group of companies in November 1989 and
has occupred hlS! current position at ING Canada since January 1993. Before joining ING, he
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occupled various actuarial functlons for two Canadian Property and Casualty Insurance
companies. From -1992 to 1997, Mr. Désilets also taught actuarial science at 1'Université de
Montréal. Mr. Désilets graduated from 1’Université Laval (Québec) in 1982 with a Bachelor of
Actuarial Sciences degree and is a Fellow of both the Casualty Actuarial Society and Canadian
Institute of Actuaries.

Francoise Guénerte Ms. Guénette has held heér current posmons with us since joining in
1997. Her current functions also include compliance and she is chair of our risk management
committee. Prior' to joining us, Ms. Guénette was the Chief General Counsel and Head of
Corporatc Servwcs for a number of different corporations, including a large bank and a financial
group in Canada) She also taught Insurance at ’Université de Montréal. She was Governor of
I’Université du Québec from 1988 to 1992 and held various positions at the Conservation and
Environmental Board of the Province of Québec between 1988 and 1993, including being
Chairman from 1992 to 1993. Ms. Guénette has a law degree from McGill University, and is a
member of the Quebec Bar and the Law Society of Upper Canada.

Charles Brindamour. Mr. Brindamour has been in charge of our pcrsonal lmes,
commercial lines and claims divisions in addition to planning and corporate development since
May 2004. Prior to that time, he held the positions of Senior Vice-President, Personal Lines from
October 2001 to May 2004 and Vice President, Finance for ING Canada from Scptcmber 1999 to

* October 2001. Over the last 14 years, Mr. Brindamour has occupied several senior and executive

posmons within the ING group of companies. Mr. Brindamour received his Bachelor of Actuarial
Science in 1992 from 1'Université Laval (Quebéc) and is an Associate of the Casualty Actuarial
Society since 1995.

Derek A. Hes. Mr. lles has been in charge of our operations in Ontario and in the Western
provinces since May 2004. Prior to his current position, Mr. Iles was President, Central/Atlantic
Region from 2001, and previously was President and Chief Operating Officer of ING Western
Union Insurance Company located in Calgary, Alberta. He has over 25 years of experience in the

- P&C insurance industry, including branch management. Mr. Iles earned his FCII through the
Chartered Insurance Institute in Great Britain and completed the University of Calgary Executive’

Program in 1987. He has completed the. Advanced Executive Education Program from the
Wharton School of Business. -

Donald K. Lough. Mr. Lough is Executive Vice-President in charge of information
technology, human resources, wealth management, marketing, communications and government
relations. Prior to his current position, Mr. Lough was President and Chief Executive Officer of
ING Halifax Insurance Company from 1990 to 2001. Mr. Lough has over 30 years of experience
in the insurance industry including experience in underwriting, marketing and branch
management. Mr. Lough has a Bachelor of Commerce degree from Concordia University and has
completed the Advanced Executive Education Program from the Wharton School of Business.

Jacques Valotaire. Mr. Valotaire has been our Executive Vice-President in charge of
Québec, the Atlantic provinces and BELAIR since May 2004. Over the last 15 years, Mr.
Valotaire has held several executive positions within the ING Canada group of companies. Mr
Valotaire has been in charge of our operations in Québec since 2001. From 1999 to 2001, Mr.
Valotaire was President and Chief Executive Officer of ING Commerce Group and from 1992
until 1999, he was President and General Manager of BELAIR. Mr. Valotaire is a Fellow of the
Order of Chartered Accountants and is a graduate of 1’Université Laval (Québec). He has also
completed the Advanced Executive Education Program from the Wharton School of Business.

Marcel Coté. Mr. Coté is President of Secor Consulting Inc., a Montréal-based consulting
firm specializing in business strategy which he founded in 1975. In 1989 and 1990, he was
Director of Strategic Planning and Communication for the Office of the Prime Minister of
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Canada. From 1986 to 1988, he worked as an economic advisor to the Premier of Québec. Mr.
Coté holds an M.Sc. in Economics from the Graduate School of Industrial Administration of
Carnegie Mellon 'University in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. He is also a Fellow of the Center for
International Affalrs of Harvard University. Mr. C6té has also taught at I’Université de

* Sherbrooke and 1’ Unwersnte du Quebec a Montréal. Mr. Cété was appointed as a member of ING

Canada’s former! Advnsory board in 1999, and was prcvxously a member of our Board of

Directors from 1997 to 1999.

Robert W.. Crispin. Mr. Crispin is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ING
Investment Management LLC and a member of the ING Insurance Americas Committee, which
is responsible for all of ING’s insurance and investment management activities in the Americas.
He has held these positions since 2001. Over the past 33 years, Mr. Crispin has held senior
positions with a number of major insurance and financial service companies. He has led a variety
of units mcludmg investments, finance, distribution, reinsurance, international operations and
technology Mr. CnSpm has a Masters of Business Adrmmsu'atlon degree and is a Chartered
Financial Analyst

Ivan E.H. Duvar Mr. Duvar is President & CEQ of MIJAC Inc. which is a pnvately held
investment company. He also currently holds several Directorships in a variety of sectors
including financial services, communications, and manufacturing. He held several positions with
Maritime Tel & Tel Limited, including Chairman of the Board (1990 - 2000), and President &
CEO (1985 - 1995). Mr. Duvar is a member of the Association of Professional Engineers of
Nova Scotia and' a Fellow of the Canadian Academy of Engineering; he obtained a Senior
Matriculation from the Prince of Wales College in Prince Edward Island, an Engineering
Certificate from Mount Allison University in New Brunswick, a Bachelor of Engineering (Elect.)
at the Technical Unlvcrsny of Nova Scotia, and a Certificate of Industrial Management at the
Canadian Instltute of Management, St. Mary’s University, Nova Scotia. Mr. Duvar has been a
director of ING Canada’s federal P&C insurance subsidiaries since 1983. He was also a member
of the Board of ING Canada from 1993 to 1996, and was re-elected to ING Canada’s board on
April 19, 2005.

Michael A. Mackenzie. Mr. Mackenzie was an Executive-in-Residence at the Schulich
School of Business, York University, Toronto from 1994 to 2004. From 1987 to 1994, Mr. -
Mackenzie was the Supenntendent of Financial Institutions, Canada where he was responsible for
the regulation and supervision of banks, trust companies and insurance companies. During this
period, he was also a director of the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation. From 1957 to
1987, Mr. Mackenzie was a partner at Clarkson Gordon (now Emst & Young LLP) in Toronto
and Montreal, practicing in the arcas of auditing and advisory services. Mr. Mackenzie has a
Bachelor of Artsi from the University of Toronto (Honours History), an MBA from Harvard’
University (Bakcr Scholar) and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Ontario.
Mr. Mackenzie was appointed a member of ING Canada’s former Advisory Board in 1999, and
was previously a member of the board of directors from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Mackenzie has been a
director of our federal P&C insurance subsidiaries since 2002 and of ING Investment
Management Inc., the investment management subsidiary of ING Canada, since 2001.

Eileen Mercier. Ms. Mercier’s career encompasses 35 years of general management
experience in the forest products, financial services, integrated oil and communication industries.
From 1995 to 2003, Ms. Mercier headed her own management consulting firm, Finvoy

_Managemeut Inc specializing in financial strategy, restructuring and corporate govemance -

issues. Prior to that time, she was Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer of Abitibi-
Price Inc. Ms. Mercier is a member of the board of directors of Hydro One, as well as several
business and charitable -associations and holds an MBA from York University and a Masters
Degree from the University of Alberta. Ms. Mercier is also a member of the Board of Directors of
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ING Bank of Canada that reports to the banking arm of ING Groep. Ms. Mercrer was appomted a

- member of ING Canada’s former Advisory board in 1999.

- Robert Normand. Mr. Normand is currently a director of a number of publicly traded and

" private companies in various sectors including financial services and investment funds. In

performing his Directors’ duties, he has served on various. audit, investment, pensmn fund,
corporate governance, human resources and environmental committees and has also served as
chairman. From 1972 to 1997, he held several positions at Gaz Métropolitain Inc., a natural gas
distributor, retlnng as Chief Financial Officer in 1997. Mr. Normand is a member of the Canadian -
Institute of Chartered Accountants, the Corporate Directors’ Institute and the Financial Executive
lnstltute Mr. Normand graduated in 1966 from the Université de Montréal (Ecole des Hautes
Etudes Commercrales) He has been a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since 1966. Mr. Nonnand has been a director of ING Canada’s P&C insurance
subsidiaries smce '2002. ‘ '

Louise Roy Since 2003, Ms. Roy has been an Associate Fellow of the Center for
Interuniversity Research and Analysis on Organizations, chairing the Forum on Leadership for
Tomorrow, bringing together businesses and universities on management and leadership topics.
She is also an international consultant and a corporate director on several boards of directors.
Between 2000 and 2003, Ms. Roy was Senior Vice-President, Marketing and Commercial

" Services of the lnternatronal Air Transport Association (IATA). Ms. Roy graduated from the

Université de Montreal in 1971 with a Bachelor of Science in sociology. She obtained a Masters
of Science in 1972 from the University -of Wisconsin and completed her Ph.D. studies in
sociology in 1974 Ms. Roy was appointed a member of ING Canada’s former Advisory board in
2001.

Carol Steﬁhenson. Ms. Stephenson has been the Dean of the Riehard Ivey School of
Business at the Umversny of Western Ontario since July 1, 2003. Prior to this appointment, she
worked for more than 30 years in the telecommunications and technology industries, most

. recently as President and Chief Executive Officer of Lucent Technologies Canada. Ms.

Stephenson serves on a number of other boards of directors, government committees and task
forces. Ms. Stephenson is a graduate of the University of Toronto. She has also completed the
Executive Program at the Graduate School of Business Administration, University of California
at Berkeley, and the Advanced Management Program at Harvard University. In 2000, she was

* awarded an honorary doctorate in engineering from Ryerson Polytechnic University Ms.

Stephenson was appomtcd a member of ING Canada’s former Advisory board in 1999 and was
previously a member of our Board of Directors in 1999. She has also been a director of ING
Canada’s federal P&C insurance subsidiaries since 2002. )

. Mark A. Tlullis. Prior to joining ING Canada in January 2006 to facilitate the transition to
his appointment effective April 1, 2006 as Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer, Mr.
Tullis was Presic!ent of Institutional Businesses of ING Americas, and has held several other
senior executive positions since joining ING Americas in September 1999. Prior to joining the
ING group of companies, Mr. Tullis was Executive Vice-President and Chief Actuary with
Primerica, a subsidiary of Citigroup, from 1994 to 1999, where he was responsible for financial
reporting, actuarial functions and reinsurance functions in connection with various Primerica
companies. Mr. Tullis has more than 29 years experience in senior positions within the insurance
industry. Mr. Tulhs holds a Bachelor of Mathematical Sciences degree. Mr. Tullis has been a
director of ING Canada’s federal P&C insurance subsidiaries since 2000.

David A. Wheat. Mr. Wheat has been the Executive Vice-President ‘and Chief Financial
Officer of ING Insurance Americas since August 2004. From April 2003 to August 2004, he was
Chief Financial Officer of ING U.S. Financial Services. Prior to that time, he served as Controller
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of ING Amencas from 2001 to 2003, Mr. Wheat was previously a partner for elght years with -
Ernst & Young LLP where he held several senior and executive positions, including that of

Managmg Partner for the practice in Fort Wayne, Indiana.- Mr. Wheat has a Bachelor of Science
in Business Admmlstratlon, an Accounting degrec and is a Certified Public Accountant. Mr. -

' Wheat has been al | director of ING Canada’s P&C insurance subsidiaries since August 2004

ii Mark Tulhs and Michael Mackenzie will not be standing for re-election to the Board of

;. Dlrectors Management intends to present a motion at the Annual Meeting to recogmze their past

contnbutlons to the development of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Mark Tullis succeeds Mike Cunningham as Senior Vice-President and Chief F1nanc1al
Officer of ING Canacla on April 1, 2006. The Company offers its thanks to Mike Cunningham
for his dedlcatlon and service to the Company and thanks Mr. Tullis for his contributions to the
Board. As part of his appointment to the senior management team, Mr. Tullis took up residence
in Toronto, Ontario in January 2006, where he began workmg to ensure a smooth transition in
ant1c1patlon of Mr. Cunningham’s retirement.

The - Company offers its sincere thanks to Mlchael Mackenzie for his 1mportant
contribution to the development and progress of the Company, particularly in the compliance
sector, including|his membership on the Audit and Risk Review Committee, leadership on the
Conduct Review and Corporate Governance Committee, and his acting as liaison director
betwcen the Board and its Committees, with management and the ma_]onty shareholder.

Commlttees of the Board of Directors

. Our board |of directors has established three committees which are described below. Our
board of dlrectors and the boards of directors of our P&C i insurance subsidiaries ensure that the
composmon of the1r committees meets applicable statutory mdependence reqmrements as well as
any other apphca})le legal and regulatory requ1rements

'Aud:t and Risk Revtew Committee

The Audlti and Risk Review Committee is composed of Ivan EH Duvar, Mlchael A,
Mackenzie, Elleen Mercier and Robert Normand, each of whom is independent and financially -
literate. The Mandate of the Audit and Risk Review Committee is attached as Appendix A to this - -
Annual Information Form. :

External Auditor Service Fees

(in thousands of dollars) | :
P | C - : 2005 2004
© Audit Feesm.l .......................... e U 792 920
Audlt-RelatedFees PP e 483 S 123
' Tax Fees . .|.............. P s 55 100
All Other Fees™ . ..............oooiiiat. D S 260 . 318
 Total. . ....] S S 1,500 1,461

(i) Audlt Fees mclude fees for professional services for the audit of the Company’s ﬁnanclal statements
and those of its SlleldlanCS or other services that are normally prowded by external auditors in connection
with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, including review of the Company’s 1nterpretat10n of .
‘accounting and ﬁnancml reporting standards. In addition to including fees for services necessary to
perform an audit or review, these fees also include amounts for comfort letters, attest services, consents and
a551stance with and review of documents filed with regulators in connection with our initial publnc of’fermg
and other statutory'audlt requirements in 2004..
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(2) Audit-Related Fees are for assurance and related services performed by the Company 8 extemal auditor.
These services mclude pension _fund audits, accounting consultations in connection with acquisitions and
divestitures and mterpretat:on of financial accounting and reporting standards, internal control reviews, and
other attest services not required by statute or regulatlon

(3) Tax Fees are for assistance w1th tax comphance, tax planning, and tax advice related to restmctunngs '
and tax audits.

t

(4) All other fees include fees for other services not included in the preceding categories, primarily audit .
services for the ING Funds and the translation of financial reports.
! .

Conduct Review icma' Corporate Gavernance Committee

Our conduct review and corporatc governance committee ensures that management has.
established proccdurcs to ensure that permitted transactions with “related persons™ are on terms

-and conditions at least as favourable as market. The committee’s responsibilities include

reviewing apphcable procedures and their effectiveness as well as our practices to ensure that
related party transactlons that may have a material effect on our stablhty or solvency are
idéntified. The conduct review and corporate governance committee also reviews our compliance
programs that cover market conduct, ombudsman office, privacy office, conflict of interest,
relationships with clients and brokerages and relationships with regulatory authorities. This
committee reports to our board of directors on related party transactions and other matters. The
committee momtors ongoing developments regarding corporate governance and may seek
mdepcndent cxpert advice when appropriate.

Human Resources Committee
r :

Our human resources committee reviews and makes recommendations to the directors
regarding nominations of our directors and the appointment of our chief executive officer,
employee compensatlon matters including in respect of pension funds, any equity or other,
compensation plan for our officers and succession planning. This committee is also responsible
for reviewing annually the performance of our chief executive officer and evaluating his total
compensation in relation to his performance against established goals and strategies. The
committee also ‘periodically assesses the performance of our board of directors and its
committees.

Other Committeés

Our board ‘of directors has also established three other committees composed of members .
of senior management (and, in the case of the investment committee, of directors) that report to
our board of directors or one of its committees. These management committees are the risk
management committee, the investment committee, and the pension funds committee which
makes recommendations to the human resources committee in respect of pension funds benefits
and also monitors the investments of the pension funds.

Shareholdings of Directors and Executive Officers

To the knowledgc of ING Canada, as at December 31, 2005, the directors and executive

. officers of ING Ca.nada as a group, beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or exercised control

or direction over 70,257 of the outstanding common shares of ING Canada, rcprcscnttng 0.52%

of the total number of common shares of the Company issued and outstandmg
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Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Company, no director or executive officer of the Company is, or
has been in the last ten years, a director or executive officer of an issuer that, while that person

. was acting in that capacity (a) was the subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an order

that denied the i issuer access to any exemptions under Canadian securities legislation, for a period
of more than 30 consecutive days, (b) was subject to an event that resulted, after that person

- ceased to be a director or executive officer, in the issuer being the subject of a cease trade or

similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any éxemption under Canadian securities
legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or (c) or within a year of that person
ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its
assets except for the following: Robert Normand, a director of the Company, served as director
of Concert Industries Ltd. when it and its Canadian operating subsidiaries announced on August
5, 2003 that it had filed for protection under the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act (CCAA).
Concert Industries Ltd. was restructured and a plan of compromise and arrangement for its

‘operatmg subsidiaries was approved in December 2004 allowing them to emerge from the CCAA

proceedings. Mr. Nonngnd noc longer serves as director of Concert Industries Ltd.
Conflicts of Interest .

To the knowledge of ING Canada, no director or executive officer of ING Canada has an _
existing or potential material conflict of interest with ING Canada or any of its subsidiaries.
t

INTEREST OF I:VIANACEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACT_IONS

ING Groep and some of its affiliates have engaged in certain transactions, and are partics
to certain arrange'ments, with us. Some of these transactions and arrangements are material. Prior
to the Offering, all of our Common Shares were owned, directly or indirectly, by ING Groep. We
and our operating subsidiaries have numerous reinsurance agreements in effect, some of which
include ING Re as a party. These agreements provide us with reinsurance coverage in the normal
course of business and on normal market terms. See Note 8 to our audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2005. Please also refer below to the headmg
“Relatlonshlp wnth ING Groep”. :

|
INTERESTS 011 EXPERTS

"Emnst & Young LLP (“E&Y LLP"} is the Auditor of the Company. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005 were filed
under National Instrument 51-102 in reliance on the report from E&Y LLP, independent

- 'chartered account:ants, given on their authority as experts in auditing and accounting.

E&Y LLP lS independent in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct established
by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

RELATIONSHIP WITH ING GROEP
Co-operation Agreement _

 The Co-operatlon Agreemcnt dated as of December 15, 2004 between ING Groep and

'ING Canada and concluded for good and valuable consideration, governs the prmcnpal terms of

our ongomg relauonshlp with ING Groep following the Offering.
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ING Gamr)epl Corporate Governance Rights
o Specml Approvai Rrghts of ING Groep

" For 50 long as ING Groep beneficially owns not less than one-third of the outstanding
Common Shares; we will be requited to seek the prior written consent of ING Groep (the
“Approval Rjght”) to take any of the followmg actions, whethcr dlrectly or indirectly through a

_ subsidiary:

(a) consohdate or merge into or with another entity or enter into any other similar business
combination, other than a consolidation, merger, or other similar business combination of
any of our wholly-owned subsidiaries into or with us or into or with another one of our
wholly—owned subsxdlancs

(b) hqu1datc,1dlssolve or wind up the Company or any of our operatmg subsidiaries;

{c) acquire apy assets, business or operations {in a single transaction or a series of related

: transactions) in the aggregate with a value of more than the greater of (i) $100 million

and (ii) the dollar amount, as determined by ING Groep from time to time in accordance

with its administrative policies and procedures, at which ING Groep’s other subsidiaries

are required to obtain the approval of ING Groep for such transactions, provided that the

Approval Right will not apply to any acquisition made by us or one of our subsidiaries on

the exerc1se of our right of first refusal provided in the Non-Competition Agreement (see
section below entitled “Relationship with ING Groep — Non-Competition Agreement”);

(d) sell, transfer lease, pledge or otherwise dispose of any of our assets, business-or °
operatlons or any of our subsidiaries’ assets, business or operations (in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions) in the aggregate with a value of more than
the greater of (i) $100 million and (ii) the dollar amount, as determined by ING Groep
from ume to timé in accordance with its administrative policies and procedures, at which

. ING Groep s other subsidiarics are required to obtain the approval of ING Groep for such
transactions; or . ‘

- (e) change our policy with respect to the declaration and paymeut of any dividends on ‘the
Common{Shares :

Up until the date that ING Groep first ceases to beneﬁclally own at least one- half of the
outstanding Common Shares, we will be required to seek the prior written-consent of ING Groep
to approve any annual business plan of us and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and any

- amendments to, or any material departure from, such business plan. On and after the date that

ING Groep first ceases to beneficially own less than one-half of the outstanding Common Shares

+ ' and until the date that ING Groep first ceases to beneficially own at least one third of our

Common Shares, we will be required to consult with ING Groep with respect to the preparation

- of our annual consolidated business plan and any amendments to, or any material departure from,

such business plan; however, ING Groep will no longer have the right to approve any such
business plan or any amendments to or material departures from any such business plan.

- Special Share Rights

| . .
' The Special Share terms provide that only one such share may be authorized for issuance
and, pursuant to the Co-operation Agreement, it will be issued to ING Groep or one of its wholly-

. owned subsadlancs The Special Share provides additional nghts to ING Grogp with respect to
‘our corporate governance, as described below.

'
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(1) ING Groep Nominees S .

* Thc attnbutes of the Special Share provide, among other things, that ING Groep, as the
beneﬁcml owner of the Special Share, will be entitled to nominate and elect a certain number of
directors to our board as determined by the number of Common Shares that the hoider of the
Special Share beneﬁmally owns from time to time! Accordingly, for so long as the holder of the
Special Share beneﬁc1ally owns a specified number of Common Shares, the holder of the Special
Share, being INGIGroep or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, will be entitled to nominate and
elect a specified proportion of our directors (disregarding any fractional number of directors) to
hold office until the next annual meeting of our shareholders or until their successors are elected
or appomted as set out in the table below. S

L . Proportion of Total

- Common Share Ownership, : Number of Directors
. Notless than 33 1/3% . . ooouvvenee e aeineeeannns. 5/12
. Less than 33l1/3%'but notlessthan30%.................... 1/3
~ Less than 30% but not less than 25%. . ......... PR EREEE 1/4
Less than 25% butnotlessthan20%................. P 1/6

Less than 20% but not less than 10% . ... ...:.......... . 1/12

I

The Co-operation Agreement and the terms of the Special Share provide that the rights of
the holder of the Spec1a1 Share to elect a specified number of our directors will be subject to our
obligation to comply with applicable director independence rules, mcludmg those of the TSX,
applicable securities regulators and insurance regulators, including any insurance regulatory rules
that apply to any of our subsidiaries as if such rules applied to us. The rights of the holdér of the
Special Share to nommate and elect directors will not apply for so long as ING Groep, or any of
its affiliates, or any combination thereof, competes with us as described in the section below
entitled “Relatlonshlp with ING Groep — Co-operation Agreement— ING Groep Corporate
Govemancc nghts— Special Share Rights— Loss of Specnal Share Rights™. . :

The Co-operatlon Agreement also prowdes that during such time as ING Groep
beneficially owns the Special Share, it will not take any action as a shareholder that would result
in there being nominees of ING Groep in numbers greater than those to which it is entitled under
the terms of the Special Share and the Co-operation Agreement. Further, for so long as ING
Groep is entitled to nominate and elect directors pursuant to the Special Share, ING Groep will
agree to vote 1ts Common Shares in favour of all nominees for our board set forth in any
management proxy circular to be elected by holders of our Common Shares.

+ (i) Appomtment of Chief Executive Officer

The Special Share provides that until the date that the holder of the Special Share, being
ING Groep or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, first ceases to beneficially own at least one-
half of the outstanding Common Shares, our Chief Executive Officer will be appointed by our
board of directors on an annual basis, or sooner in the event such officer resigns or otherwise
ceases to hold office prior to such time, from among the directors elected by ING Groep, as the
beneficial owner of the Special Share. The Co-operation Agreement provides that on and after the
date that ING Groep first ceases to beneficially own at least one-half of the outstanding Common
Shares and until the date that it first ceases to beneficially own at least one-third of the
outstanding Common Shares and provided that it beneficially owns the Special Share, we will be
required to consult with ING Groep with respect to the selection of our Chief Executive Officer.
However, any decision concerning the appointment of our Chief Executive Officer will be made
by our board of :directors. The rights of the holder of the Special Share with respect to the
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appomtment of our Chnef Executive Officer will not apply for so long as ING Groep, or any of its -
affiliates, or any combination thereof, competes with us as described below under the heading
“Relationship wnth ING .Groep— Co-operation Agreement— ING Groep Corporate Governance

nghts — Specnal Share Rights— Loss of Special Share Rjghts”

(1ii) Automatlc Conversion of Spemal Share

The Spec1a1 Share will be automatically converted into one Common Share concurremly

'wn’h (i) any transfer to a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of ING Groep, (ii) the time that any

wholly-owned sub51d1ary of ING Groep who, at the relevant time, holds the Special Share is no
longer a wholly- owned subsidiary of ING Groep, (iii) the time that the holder of the Special
Share first ceases;to beneficially own at least 10% of the outstanding Common Shares, or (iv) in
the event that the iCo operation Agreement is terminated in certain circumstances.

(iv) Loss oi; Special Share Rights

The Co-opération Agreement and the terms of the Special Share provide that the rights of
the holder of the Special Share, including its rights with respect to the nomination and election of
directors and the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer, will not apply for as long as ING
Groep or any of its affiliates, or any combination thereof, competes with us in a Busmess (as
defined below) i in'the ING Canada Territory (as defined below).

(v) Other Attributes of the Special Share

See above under the heading “Descnptlon of Share Capltal” for further information
concerning the nghts privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Special Share.: '

Maintenance Right in Favour of ING Groep

ING Grbe[L will have the right (the “Maintenance Right”), subject to applicable law,
exerc1sab1e until the date that ING Groep first ceases to beneficially own at least one-third of the
outstandmg Common Shares, to participate in future offerings and other issuances of Common
Shares or securitiés convertible into Common Shares (subject to certain exceptions, including any
grant of incentive options, the issue of Common Shares on the exercise of such options and
Common Shares 'issuable in a rights offering) by purchasing that number of securities in the
offering necessary for ING Groep to maintain its relative beneficial ownership interest of |
Common Shares (on a fully diluted basis in the case of an offering of convertible securities). In
respect of each exercise of the Maintenance Right for any issuance, ING Groep will acquire its
securities on the same terms and conditions, including with respect to the price per security,
subject to any requirements of stock exchange rules or applicable securities regulators, as is
provided in the issuance in respect of which the Maintenance Right is exercised. ING Groep will
not be entitled to exercise the Maintenance Right in respect of any offering in which it exercises
its rights under the Registration Rights Agreement.

Other Services and Rights Provided in Co-operation Agreement

The Co- operatlon Agreement also includes terms and conditions to govern the ongoing
relatlonshlp between us and ING Groep with respect to our business.

Information Sharmg

As ING Groep intends to account for its investment in us using the consolidation or equity
method of accounting, for so long as it beneficially owns not less than one-third of the .

‘outstanding Common Shares, we will agree to provide to ING Groep certain financial and other

information to assxst ING Groep to satisfy its ongoing financial reporting and other obligations
and internal risk management procedures. During this period, we will also co-ordinate with ING
Groep with respect to public disclosure of information. :

1
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Other Services and Associated Costs

The Co- operatlon Agreement provides that we will negotiate in good falth with ING Groep
to reach mutual agreement on services that we provide to each other and other arrangements and
practlces between us and which are not expllcltly addressed in the Co-operation Agreement. The
Co-operation Agreement will also include provisions specifically addressing, for so long as ING
Groep beneficially owns not less than one-third of the outstaudmg Common Shares, (i) the
continuance of d:rectors and officers’ insurance and catastrophe re-insurance for our benefit and
that of our sub51d1anes (provided in each case that ING Groep maintains such coverage for the -
benefit of members of the Group generally), and (ii) our continued participation in existing
vendor purchasmg arrangements, to the extent permitted by the applicable underlymg contract
(including a covénant by ING Groep to ensure our continued involvement in the event of any
renewal, prov1ded that ING Groep will not be prevented from terminating arrangements with
vendors and supplners in"the ordinary course of its business). In the event that ING Groep
beneficially owns less than one-half of the outstanding Common Shares, we will be required to
reimburse ING Groep for any additional cost of mcludmg us and our subsidiaries in the
arrangements referred to in (i) and (ii) above which is attributable to ING Groep no longer
holding at least one-half of the outstanding Common Shares. In addition to the foregoing, for so
long as ING Groep beneficially owns not less than one-half of the outstanding Common Shares,
we will be obligated to first seek any necessary borrowing under ING Groep's credit facilities in
effect from tlme to time, except that we may borrow from other sources if ING Groep is
unwilling or unable to provide such financing under ING Groep’s credit facilities.

Until the last day in the fiscal quarter in which ING Groep first ceases to beneﬁcmlly own
at least one-thu'diof the-outstanding Common Shares (the “Trigger Date™), subject to a 24 month
transition period followmg such date, the Group, on the one hand, and we and our subsidiaries, on
the other hand, are to' continue to provide each other with any and all administrative and other
services (unless otherwnse specifically agreed in writing} which have been, consistent with past
practices, prov1ded to each other. The provider of such services is to be reimbursed by the user of
such services for all costs, fees and expenses incurred and such costs, fees and expenses will not.
exceed the rates 'for such services established between us for 2004, subject only to reasonable .
increases to account for inflation. In addition, any new services to be provided will bear a cost to
be agreed between us and ING Groep. Following the Trigger Date, we are to enter into one or
more agreements with ING Groep on commercially reasonable terms to govern the provision of
such services durjmg the transition period. '

Other Con;tractual Provisions
Indemnifi cation

We and ING Groep will be required to mdemmfy each other and our respective
subsidiaries (mcludmg the officers, directors, employees and agents of each) against specified

losses suffered by the other as a result of a breach by the indemnifying party of the Co-operation

Agreement. In addition, we are to indemnify ING Groep against losses suffered by the Group
(including the 'ofﬁcers directors, employces and agents of each) as a result of any
mlsrepresentatlon or omission contained in any public filing made by any member of the Group,
bl,,t only with respect to information, if any, provided by us or any of our subsidiaries in writing to
any member of the Group on or after the date of the Co-operation Agreement and relating to
information, facts or circumstances ansmg on or after the date of the Co-operation Agreement
expressly for use in such filing and which is, or would be required to be, included in any public
ﬁlmg by us or a.ny of our subsidiaries.

|
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" T ermmat:on

On the date that ING Groep first ceases to beueﬁcrally own at least one-half of the
outstandmg Common Shares, the right of ING Groep to approve any of our annual consolidated

] busmess plans and any amendments to, or any material departure from, such business plans, will

termmate On the date that ING Groep first ceases to beneficially own at least one-third of the
outstandmg Common Shares, the Approval Right, the Maintenance Right and the consultation
nghts with respect to the preparation of our consolidated business plan and the appointment of
our Chief Executive Officer will terminate. The Co-operatron Agreement itself will terminate on -
thé date on which ING Groep first ceases to beneﬁcrally own at least 10% of the outstanding
Common Shares, Ipl'OVldcd that certain specified provisions concemmg indemnification, access to
historical records! dlspute resolutlon and confidentiality are to survive in accordance with their

terms. !

| Oblzgat:ons Subjecr to Apphcable Law _
' The Co-operatlon Agreement provides that nothing therein will require us or any of our-
subsidiaries to take or omit to take any action that. would cause us or any of our subsrdranes to be

in breach of any laws or regulatlons applicable to us or any of our subsidiaries. . _

N on-Competltlon Agreement _

| Concurrently with the execution and delivery of the Co-operation Agreement and for
51mllar good and valuable consideration, ING Canada entered into a Non-Competition Agreement
to prohlblt competmon between the Company and ING Groep with respect to the operation,
dlrectly or mdlrectly, of a property and casualty insurance business in certain geographic areas
dunng the Restncted Period (as defined below). Pursuant to the terms of the Non-Compeutron
Agreement, ING !Groep will-not, directly or indirectly, compete with us or our subsidiaries in
Canada and any other jurisdiction in which we carry on a Business and in which ING Groep has
agreed not to compete with us (the “ING Canada Territory™) in the direct or indirect operation of
a property and casualty insurance business and any ancillary business, including manufacturing
and distribution E(the “Business™) during the penod commencing on the date of the Non-
Competltlon Agreement and terminating two y¢ars after the date that ING Groep first ceases to
beneﬁcrally own at least ane-third of the outstanding Common Shares (such period being referred
to .as the “Restncted Period”). In addition to the foregoing, ING Groep will not, during the
Restricted Penod directly or indirectly solicit our clients to provide them with competing
products nor w111 it solicit certain of our senior employees or members of our distribution
charmel

[

‘ We will agree that we will not dunng the- Restncted Period, drrectly or indirectly, compete
wrth ING Groep with respect to the Business camed on by ING Grocep, directly or indirectly, in
those jurisdictions (other than the ING Canada Terntory) in which such Business is carned on by

- ING Groep from time to time.

Except in certain specific circumstances, durmg the Restricted Period neither ING Groep

-nor any of its afﬁhates (other than us and our subsidiaries} will be permitted to acquire, directly

or indirectly, any business that carries on a Business in the ING Canada Territory (such Business
referred to herem as a “Competing Business”). ING Groep will only be permitted to make such
an, acqursmon m the context of a larger acquisition and only if (i) the Competing Business
comprises less than 15% of the total assets and revenues, respectively, of the aggregate assets and
revenues, respectwely, of the business to be acquired by ING Groep, and (ii) we are glven a right
of ﬁrst refusal to acqulre the Competing Business, on the terms and conditions set out in the Non-
Competition Agreement. If we do not exercise our right or we are unable to come to terms on

such acquisition,| then ING Groep will be permitted, in certain circumstances, to acquire the

!
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Competmg Busmess provided that ING Groep will be required to divest the Competmg Business
within two years 'and will not at any time be permitted to use the ING brand in connection with
such Competing Busmess In addition, until the Competing Business is divested from ING Groep,
the rights to Wthh ING Groep, as beneficial owner of the Special Share, would otherwise be

. entitled under thc; Special Share will not apply and ING Groep will be required to cause its

nominees on our board to resign. Further, ING Groep will be required to take all appropriate steps

i to ensure that none of its nominees on our board serve on the board of, or participate in, the

Competing Busin:ess. ING Groep will also be prohibited from using any information about us,
other than information that we publicly disclose, in connection with the ownership and operation
of the Competing!Business.

Registration Rights Agreement

Concurrent]y with the execution and delivery of the Co-operation Agreement and for
similar good and valuable consideration, ING Canada and ING Groep entered into a Registration
Rights Agreemelit which will provide ING Groep with the right to require us to qualify by
prospectus Common Shares beneficially owned by ING Groep for distribution to the publlc in
Canada. ; :

During such time as we are a rcporting issuer in Canada and until such time that ING
Groep first ceases to beneficially own at least one-third of the outstanding Common Shares, ING
Groep will be entitled to participate in any future prospectus offering of Common Shares that we
initiate, provided that the Common Shares that ING Groep desires to sell in any such offering are
not to exceed 15% of the total number of Common Shares (including Common Shares issuable -
upon exercise of : any over-allotment option) that are subject to the offering. ING Groep will not
be entitled to exerc1se its rights under the Registration Rights Agreement in respect of any

‘offering in Wthhllt exercises its Maintenance Right under the Co-operation Agreement.

In addition'to the foregoing, during such time that ING Groep is unable to sell all or any of
its Common Shares without such sale being considered a “control distribution”, requiring that we,
absent an exemption from such requirement, file a prospectus and obtain a receipt therefor, ING
Groep may demand once each calendar year, commencing 180 days after the closing of .the
Offering, that we file a prospectus and obtain a receipt therefore provided such demand relates to
all of the Common Shares that it beneficially owns or, alternatively, such demand will result in a
minimum offering size of $100.0 million. We will be entitled to defer any such demand in certain
circumstances for a limited period.

In any completed offering in which ING Groep pammpates the pames will bear their
expenses in proportion to the number of Common Shares sold by each in the offering, provided
that if a party initiates an offering that is not completed, other than as a result of an act or
omission by the other party, the initiating party must bear all expenses of or incidental to matters
in connection with the distribution. ‘

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Other than the Underwriting Agreement relating to the sale of Common Shares and
exercise of an Over-Allotment Option disclosed in the Company’s Annual Information Form filed
on March 29, 2005, the Acquisition Agreement relating to the acquisition of Allianz Canada and
referred to above under the heading “Description of the Business — Three Year History”, and the
Co-operation Agreement, the Trade-Mark Licence Agreement, the Non-Competition Agreement
and the Registration Rights Agrecement referred to under “Relationship with ING Groep” above,
particulars of which can be found clsewhere in this Annual Information' Form under the
designated headings, we have not entered into any material contracts during the most recently

!
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completed fi nanc:al year and none are still material and in effect since January 1, 2002, other than
contracts entered mto in the ordmary course of busmess

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the normal course of carrying on our business, we become the subject of claims and are
involved in various legal proceedings. We are not currently involved in any material legal
proceedmgs, nor are we aware of any pending or threatened proceedings, that we believe would
have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition or results of operations. We believe -
we have establlshed adequate reserves in respect of legal proceedings to which we are a party

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR o

The transfer agent and' registrar for the Common Shares is Computershare Investor
Servnces Inc., at 1ts offices in Vancouver, Calgary, Winnipeg, Toronto, Montreal and Halifax.

ADDIT]ONAL INFORMATION

Additional information on ING Canada may be obtained from. our website at
www.ingcanada.com and from the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com. Financial information is
provided in the Company’s comparative financial statements and management’s discussion and
analysis for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, both of which are contained in the 2005
Annual Report. All of these documents are accessible through SEDAR. :

The Manaéement Proxy Circular dated March 27, 2006 enclosed with the Notice of the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders dated March 27, 2006 for the meeting scheduled for May 1,
2006 contains additional information including the remuneration and indebtedness of - directors
and executive ofﬁcers as well as information regardmg the principal holder of ING Canada
shares. l

|
To obtain a copy of the aforementioned documents as well as this Annual Information
Form, at no cost, please contact the Secretary’s Office of the Company at 181 University Avenue,’
7" Floor, Toronto, Ontario, MSH 3M7, or by telephone at (416) 941-5149, or by fax at (416) 941-
5322, or at 1611 Crémazie Boulevard East, 10" Floor, Montréal, Québec, H2ZM 2R9, or by

k telephone at (514) 985-7111, ext. 8367 or by fax at (514) 842-6958; you may also contact the

Investor Relatlons Department of the Company at 181 University Avenue, 7" Floor, Toronto,
Ontario, MSH 3M7 by telephone toll-free within North America at 1-866-778-0774 ((416) 941-

5181 outs1de North America), or by fax at (416) 941 -0006.
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: SCHEDULE A
o . | . .
Mandate of the Audit and Risk Review Committee

. iING Canada Inc. and its P&C Insurance Companies

1. 'Pu rpose 1

The Audit and Rlsk Review Committee (the “Commmce”) is responsible for momtonng and -
evaluating the mtegnty of the Financial Statements and in this regard monitors and supervises the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management programs of ING.Canada Inc.
and its subsidiaries (the “Company”), as well as their implementation. ’ .

: |
I1. Comnositiohl

i .
The Committee 1s composed of a minimum of three members of the Board of Du-ectors as
designated by the Board. Each member of the Committee, including the Chair, is independent,
subject to appllcable legislation and rules. Each Committee member is, or will become within a
reasonable pe:nc;dl financially literate.

11L._Process gnd!‘ODerations

The Committee rfneets at least four (4) times per year and otherwise as needed. The external
auditor is entitled to receive notice of, attend and be heard at each meeting of the Committee.
After each meeting, the Committee reports to the Board of Directors on'matters reviewed by the
Committee. The Committee may call a meeting of the Board of Directors to consider any matter
of concern to the Comnuttce

' |

B IV. Mandate ;

1. Responsibility for Financial Statements, Filings, Returns and Disclosures

Thc Committee reviews the following financial information of the Company:
— reports of the internal auditor
~ reports of the external auditor
. — reports of the chief actuary
- retumns of the P&C companies as specified by the Supenntendeut of Financial lnstltutlons
© and other. authorities _
- 1nvcstmcnts and transactions and any other 31tuat10ns or events that cou]d adversely affect
‘ the well- bcmg of the Company
« — reports of actual or threatened litigation
—  reports of improprieties or suspected improprieties with respect to accountmg and other
‘ matters that may affect financial reporting
— any other;report that by law or practice, or under specific circumstance must be subm:tted
_to the Corimmttee

4

In ‘particular, thciCommittee reviews the Company’s annual and quarterly financial statements
and related management discussion and analysis. The Committee mects with the internal and the
extemal auditor and the chief actuary to discuss the financial statements and returns, and the
Commlttee approves or recommends such statements and returns to the Board of Directors for its
approval ’

t
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With regards to the Committee’s oversight function over financial disclosure, the Committee

" _reviews the Company’s annual and interim earnings press releases before the Company publicly

discloses this mformatron In addition, the Committee reviews and approves the policies and
procedures in placc for the review of financial disclosures prior to their public release, including
certification process and cemﬁcatlon by the CEO and the CFO as required by applicable
legislation.

"In executing its responsibility, the Committee also monitors the Company’s compliance with

legal and regulato:ry requirements related to financial reporting and disclosure.

2. ‘Responsibilit)lr for Internal Controls

The Committee |overse'es the quality and integrity of the Company’s internal controls and
procedures. The Committee requires management to design, implement and maintain internal
controls and procedures appropriate to the Company and .to make periodic reports to the
Committee on the status of such controls and procedures. The Committee meets with the chief
mtemal auditor, or the employee acting in this capacity, and with management to discuss the

_effecnveness of the internal control procedures established for the Company The Committee

receives management’s reports on such contrels and procedures, and it reviews, evaluates and
approves such procedures

The Committee also establishes procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complalnts
received by the Cornpany regarding internal accounting controls or auditing matters and for the .
confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company for concerns regardmg
accountmg or audltmg matters.

. 3. Risk Management

The Committee ' oversees the Company’s risk management policy and procedures. The

Committee reviews the risk management program and practices, including a review of the

Company’s trends and key risks positions and exposures. The Committee receives the Key Risks

List and reports on Risk Management on a periodic basis. The Committee evaluates the

Company 5 cornphance with key operational risk pohclcs and limits,
!

V.' Relationship' wrth External Audltor and other Experts A

In order to facilitate the Committec’s oversight function over the Company’s financial reporting
and disclosure, internal controls and risk management programs and procedures, the Committee
has direct access to the chief internal auditor, the external auditor, the chief actuary, the risk
management ofﬁcers and other experts and may have private meetings with any of them.
I

The Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the appointment of the external auditor
responsible for preparing and issuing an auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or
attest services for the Company. The Committee approves the independent audit fees and pre-
approves non- audlt related services and fees; the Committeé may also delegate this function to a
member of the! Committee. The Committee ensures the qualifications, performance and
mdependence of the extemal auditor.

The external auditor reports dircctly to the Committee. The Committee oversees the work of the
external auditor, receives its recommendations, and approves them or submits them t¢ the Board -
of Directors for approval as the case may be.
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The Commmcc has the authonty to retain outside counsel or other experts to assist it in
performing its functlons and it has the authonty to set and have the Company pay compensation

for any advisors it retains.

Approved by the Boards of Directors of ING Canada Inc. and its subsidiaries

on February 23, 2005.

1
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Claims incurred
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! . |
Casualty insurance
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SCHEDULE B

‘ Glossary of Selected Insurance Terms

An mtermedlmy appomted by an insurer to procure apphcatlons for
insurance, receiving a commlssnon from the insurer for' policies
written.

The expenses of scttling claims that are charged to a particular ﬁle,
including expenses (ALAE) legal and other fees. The salary of the
insurer’s claims adjuster is not included in “allocated loss adjustment
expenses”. ALAE are also referred to as allocated claim expenses.

To accept from the primary insurer or reinsurer all or a portion of the
liability underwritten by such primary insurer or reinsurer.

"The acceptance of a portion of the llabxhty underwritten by a prlmary

insurer.

A person or firm who negotiates contracts of insurance or reinsurance,
receiving a commission for placement and other services rendered,
between (1) a policy holder and a primary insurer, on behalf of the
insured party, (2} a primary insurer and reinsurer, on behalf of the
primary insurer, or (3) a reinsurer and a retrocessionaire, on behalf of -

. the reinsurer.

Maximum amount of insurance or reinsurance available to cover risks
for a company or for an entire market. An insurer’s capacity generally
depends on its share capital and reserves, and on its premium income.

The liability established to reflect the estimated cost of reported but
unpaid claims and claims expenses that the insurer will uitimately be
required to pay.

Insurance which is pnmanly concemed with the losses caused by
injuries - to third persons (in other words persons other than the
policyholder) and the legal liability imposed on the insured resulting
therefrom. '

When a party.reinsures its liability with another, it “cedes™ business
and is referred to as the “ceding company™.

- The amount demanded under a policy of insurance or reinsurance

arising from the loss relating to an insured event. A claim is also
referred to as a loss.

The expenses of settling claims, including allocated loss adjustment

- expenses and unallocated loss adjustment expenses. Claim expenses

are also referred to as loss adjustment expenses (LAE).
The total of case reserves and IBNR.

The total claim reserves and claim expenses at the end of an
accounting period plus all claims paid during that period, minus the -
total claim reserves at the beginning of the period. Claims 1ncurred are
also referred to as losses incurred.
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| . ' Clailims ratio

Coimbined ratio

4
1

1

Commissions ratilo
3

Eérpense ratio

1

" Facility Association

V

. ' ‘

¥ .
General expenses ratio

Géneral liability ,

insurance
I

- Gross premiums written

(IBNR)
Inland marine

l
1
|

Direct premiums ‘written

1.

Earned premiums

i
i
I

i

t
|
(I

!
'

i

"+ Incurred but not reported

Claims and claim eXpenses incurred, net of reinsurance, expressed as
a percentage of net prermums eamed Loss ratio is also referred to as
claims ratio.

The sum of the claims ratio and the expense ratio, determined in
accordance with GAAP. A combined ratio below 100% indicates a
profitable underwriting result. A combined ratio over 100% indicates
an unprofitable underwriting result.

Commissions incurred  in operatmg the business during a defined
period and expressed as a percentage of net earned prermums for the
same period.

The total premiums from the primary"insured in respect of insurance

* underwritten by an insurer during a specified period.

Amount of premium (calculated on a risk exposure or time apporfionl
basis) corresponding to the expired portion of risk or time for which -

-the reinsured policy(ies) was/were in effect.

Expenses including commissions, premium taxes and all general and
administrative expenses, incurred in operating the business during a
defined period and expressed &s a percentage of net eamed premiums
for the same period. .

A mandatory pooling arrangement among all industry participants that
provides automobile insurance coverage to individuals or businesses
that are otherwise unable to purchase that coverage from private
insurers.

General and administrative expenses incurred in operating a-business
dunng a defined period and expressed as a percentage of net eamed '
premiums for the same penod |

Insurance which is.primarily concerned with losses caused by -
negligent acts and/or omissions of the insured in the conduct of"its
business resulting in bodily injury and/or property damage to third

parties, injury resulting from the use of a product manufactured or

distributed by a business, or injury occurnng in the general operatlon
of a business. :

Total premiums for insurance written, including assumed reinsurance,
during a given period.

A combination of reserves for estimated losses that have been
incurred but (IBNR) reserve not yet reported and a reserve for future |
developments on losses which have been reported.

A broad type of insurance generally covering moveable property and
consisting of articles that may be transported from one place to
another, as well as bridges, tunnels and other instrumentalities of
transportation, It includes goods in transit (gencrally other than
transoceanic) and may include policies for movable objects such as
personal effects, personal property, jewellery, furs, fine arts and
others. '
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‘Reinsurance

Loss

!

Loss adjustment
expenses

Loss ratio i

Minimum Capital: Test
(MCT) P
Net premiums earned

|
Neét premiums written
’ : |

Premium tax |
|
Premium taxes ratio

|
b I

' I
Property insurance

] I
Rates :
Redundancy (deﬁciency)

' -

Retention
Rétum on Equ1ty (ROE)

Salvage o

Event that triggers insurance cover. An event or series of events

arising from a particular cause which gives rise to an insured or
reinsured loss. Depending on_the wording of the reinsurance

agreement, such “event” may also include continuous exposure to -

conditions giving rise to losses, which may be generated under certain
forms ' of Casualty insurance coverage. For coverage purposes,
particularly under Catastrophe Excess agreements, the definition of
occwrrence may be restricted or expanded to include claims w1th1n a
certain period of time (e.g., 72 hours} as one occurrence. -

The expenses of scttling: claims, including allocated loss adjustment
expenses (LAE) and unallocated loss adjustment expenses. LAE are
also referred to as claim expenses. .

See claims ratio.

‘A financial ratio calculated by the Office of the Superintendent of

Financial Institutions to assist in monitoring the financial condition of
property and casualty insurance companies.

The portion of premiums written that is recognized for accounting
purposes as revenue during a period, i.c., the portion of premiums
written allocable to the explred portion of pohc1es after the
assumption and cession of reinsurance.

~ Gross premiums written for a given period less premiums ceded to

remsurers and retrocessionaires during such period.

A tax paid by insurance companies to provincial govcmments
calculated as a percentage of gross premiums written.

Premium taxes incurred in operating the business dunng a deﬁned ~

period and expressed as a perccntage of net eamed premiums for the
same period. .

Insurance that provides coverage to a person ‘with an insurable interest

in tangible property for that person’s property loss, damage or loss of
use.

Amounts charged per unit of insurance.

Claims reserves are re-cvaluated at different points in time. An
increase from the initial estimate indicates a deficiency and a decrease

_ indicates a redundancy.

An arrangement in which an insurance company, the reinsurer, agrees
to indemnify another insurance or reinsurance company, the ceding
company, against atl or a pertion of the insurance or reinsurance risks

_ underwritten by the ceding company under one or more policies.

The amount or portion of risk that an insurer retains for its own
account.

After-tax net income taken as a percentage of shareholders equity
over the last twelve months from the date indicated.

The amount of money an insurer recovers through the sale of property
transferred to the insurer as a result of a loss payment.

-
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. " Subrogation

t

A principle of law incorporated in insurance policies, which enables -
an insurance company, after paying a loss to its insured, to claim the
right to recover the amount of the loss from another who is legally
liable for it. :

t
' The expenses of settling claims that are not directly related to any
particular expenses (ULAE) claim, including salaries and other
overhead costs of the insurer’s claims department. ULAE are also
referred to as unallocated claim expenses. o

Unallocated loss
adjustment

accepted risks in order to charge an appropriate premium for each’

~ accepted risk. The underwriter is expected to select business that will
produce an average risk of loss no greater than that anticipated for the
class of business. '

'

|
Underwriter ; An individual who examines, accepts or rejects risks and classifies

; z

i

|

|

|

|

The insurer’s or reinsurer’s process of reviewing applications
submitted for insurance coverage, deciding whether to accept all or
part of the coverage requested- and determining the applicable

i _ premiums; also refers to the acceptance of such coverage.
i .

‘} :  Underwriting capacity =~ The maximum exposure that an insurance company can underwrite.

i ‘
l | Underwriting .

The limit is generally determined by the company’s retained eamnings
and investment capital. Reinsurance serves to increase a company’s
underwriting capacity by reducing its exposure from particular risks.

Underwriting pr&ﬁt " The difference between net premiums earned and the sum of net
. _ : [ claims incurred, commissions, premium taxes and all general and
L ' ' | administrative expenses.
! | . . . . ' .
Unearned premium The net premiums written of an insurer relating to that portion of the
reserves | term of (UPR) its insurance policies which fall within subsequent

i o i periods and which is deferred to such subsequent periods.
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